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SUPREME COURT OF LOUISIANA 

NO. 2023-B-1460 

IN RE: KENNETH M. PLAISANCE 

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDING 

~:ERCURIAM 

February 6, 2024 

This disciplinary matter arises from formal charges filed by the Office of 

Disciplinary Counsel ("ODC") against respondent, Kenneth M. Plaisance, an 

attorney licensed to practice law in Louisiana.1 

UNDERLYING FACTS 

By way of background, on June 14, 2017, Larry Taylor was the driver ofa 

vehicle that rear-ended an eighteen-wheeler making an illegal U-tum in New 

Orleans. Lawan Roussel, the minor child of Mr. Taylor and Melvia Hodges, was a 

front seat passenger in Mr. Taylor's vehicle at the time of the accident. Both Mr. 

Taylor and Lawan werdnjilred. The police ticketed Mr. Taylor for following too 

closely, but the circumstances of the accident raised issues of comparative 

negligence. Progressive Insurance Company insured both Mr. Taylor's vehicle and 

the eighteen-wheeler. 

On June 15, 2017, respondent agreed to represent both Mr. Taylor and Lawan 

_ on a contingency fee basis. However, he failed to disclose the existence of the 

concurrent conflict of interest by representing them both when Mr. Taylor may have 

some fault in causing the accident.2 On July 27, 2017, respondent granted Mr. 

l Respondent is also licensed to practice law in Texas. 
2 Respondent had Mr. Taylor and Ms. Hodges sign a waiver of the conflict of interest but explained 
to them that the conflict of interest stemmed from Progressive insuring both Mr. Taylor's vehicle 
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... 
Taylor and Progressive a full release of all claims on behalf of Lawan in excl'i:li!I 

for the $15,000 policy limit of Mr. Taylor's auto insurance policy. 

On October 18, 2017, respondent filed a personal injury lawsuit in Orleans 

Parish Civil District Court against Progressive as the insurer of the eighteen-wheeler. 

Mr. Taylor and Lawan were co-plaintiffs in the lawsuit, and respondent failed to 

include any claims. by Lawan alleging comparative negligence by Mr. Taylor. 

Progressive later removed the case to federal court in New Orleans, and the case was 

dismissed without prejudice at respondent's request. 

In the latter part of 2017, respondent decided to try to enlist the help of a law 

firm that handles eighteen-wheeler cases. To this end, respondent asked the Leger 

& Shaw law firm in New Orleans to enroll as co-counsel on all claims. On December 

16, 2017, the Leger firm advised respondent of the conflict of interest concerns with 

his dual representation of Mr. Taylor and Lawan, and it declined respondent's 

request to act as co-counsel. 

Respondent then asked the Texas law firm of Derryberry, Zipps, and Wade, 

PLC, to enroll as co-counsel on behalf of Mr. Taylor and Lawan. After agreeing to 

represent La wan, the Derryberry firm advised respondent of his concurrent conflict 

of interest in the dual representation and asked that he withdraw from Mr. Taylor's 

defense. Ultimately, respondent failed to withdraw from representing Mr. Taylor. 

The Derryberry firm associated the New Orleans law firm of Gainsburgh, 

Benjamin, David, Meunier, and Warshauer, LLC as local counsel and met with Ms. 

_ Hodges on Lawan's behalf to advise her of respondent's conflict of interest. 

Thereafter, Ms. Hodges terminated respondent's representation of Lawan and 

executed a contingency fee agreement with the Derryberry firm and the Gainsburgh 

firm. 

and the eighteen-wheeler. He never explained the conflict of interest due to Mr. Taylor's possible 
comparative negligence. 

2 

Petitioner's Exhibits_Plaisance_000003



On June 14, 2018, the Gainsburgh firm filed a lawsuit on behalf of Ms.• 

Hodges and Lawan in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of 

Louisiana. With respondent's assistance, Mr. Taylor filed his own lawsuit in the 

United States District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana. Soon thereafter, 

respondent enrolled as Mr. Taylor's counsel, Those two federal cases were then 

consolidated. On October 16, 2018, respondent filed a motion to intervene in the 

consolidated cases, requesting attorney's fees for his past representation ofLawan. 

The filing of the motion to intervene was ultimately rejected due to a deficiency 

respondent failed to correct. 

Xn May 2019, the parties settled the claim following a mediation. Thereafter, 

Lawan's attorneys petitioned the Orleans Parish Civil District Court for authority to 

enter into the settlement on Lawan's behalf, which petition was ultimately granted. 

On August 15, 2019, respondent emailed the Derryberry firm to warn it not to 

disburse the settlement funds until his fee claim was resolved. Because of 

uncertainty regarding the validity of respondent's fee claim, on September 4, 2019, 

Lawan' s attorneys filed into the record of the consolidated federal cases a pleading 

entitled "Motion to Determine Conflict-Free Status and Entitlement to Attorneys' 

Fees,'' Respondent did not oppose the motion or appear at the related hearing. On 

October 7, 2019, the presiding judge confirmed that respondent had a conflict of 

interest and, thus, was ineligible to receive a fee from his conflicted representation 

ofLawan. Specifically, the judge ruled that, because respondent received a fee from 

Mr. Taylor's portion of the settlement, he could not share in the fees from Lawan's 

portion of the settlement. Respondent appealed the ruling to the United States Fifth 

Circuit Court of Appeals, which appeal was dismissed due to lack of jurisdiction in 

the latter part of March 2020. 

3 
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I 1 

DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS 

In December 2021, the ODC filed formal charges against respondent, alleging 

that his conduct violated the following provisions of the Rules of Professional 

Conduct: Rules 1.4 (failure to communicate with a client), 1. 7( a) ( conflict of interest: 

concurrent clients), 3.3 (candor toward the tribunal),3 8.4(d) (engaging in conduct 

prejudicial to the administration of justice). Respondent answered the formal 

charges, essentially denying that he engaged in any misconduct. Accordingly, the 

matter proceeded to a formal hearing on the merits. 

Formal Hearing 

On April 11, 2022, one month prior to the scheduled hearing, respondent filed 

a motion to continue the hearing, arguing that discovery was incomplete and that he 

was still attempting to retain an attorney to represent him. The ODC opposed the 

motion, and the hearing committee chair denied the motion on April 18, 2022. On 

April 25, 2022, respondent filed a motion for summary judgment, which the ODC 

opposed based upon Supreme Court Rule XIX, § 1 S(B), which prohibits such 

motions "prior to the coropletion of the evidentiary record." The committee chair. 

denied the motion on April 27, 2022. 

On May 9, 2022, attorney Luke Fontana purportedly enrolled as respondent's 

counsel and filed a motion to continue, which again argued that discovery was 

incomplete. That same day, the committee chair denied the motion. On May 11, 

2022, the day of the hearing, another motion to continue was fax-filed on 

respondent's behalf, purportedly by Mr. Fontana. Attached to the motion was a 

doctor's note indicating that respondent was unable to attend the hearing "due to 

3 The Rule 3.3 allegation may have been a typographical error in the formal charges as the formal 
charges define Rule 3.3 as "seeking to collect attorneys' fees in pursuit of a conflicted 
representation," and the ODC's pre-hearing memorandum references Rule 3.1 (meritorious claims 
and contentions) instead of Rule 3.3. 

4 
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health concerns." Neither respondent nor Mr. Fontana appeared at the hearln ., 

After attempts to reach Mr. Fontana failed, the committee chair denied the motion. 

The hearing on the merits proceeded with only Deputy Disciplinary Counsel 

Robert Kennedy in attendance to represent the ODC. The ODC introduced 

documentary evidence and called attorney Michael Ecuyer of the Gainsburgh firm 

to testify before the ,committee. 

Following the hearing, both respondent and the ODC provided conflicting 

information regarding whether Mr. Fontana had actually been retained to represent 

respondent. According to the ODC's investigator, Mr. Fontana denied representing 

respo~dent. According to respondent, he paid Mr. Fontana's paralegal to retain Mr. 

Fontana. Under these circumstances, the committee reopened the hearing to receive 

evidence and testimony regarding this conflicting information. 

The second hearing took place on September 23, 2022. The ODC was 

represented by Deputy Disciplinary Counsel Christopher Kiesel. Respondent failed 

to appear, and no one appeared on his behalf. The ODC introduced documentary 

evidence and called Mr. Fontana to testify before the committee. 

RESPONDENT'S OCTOBER 5, 2020 SWORN STATEMENT TESTIMONY 

Respondent testified that he had not yet attempted to obtain counsel to 

represent him even though he requested a continuance to do so. Regarding the 

conflict of interest, respondent testified that he was aware of it because he had Mr. 

Taylor and Ms. Hodges sign waivers. He indicated that his research regarding 

whether the conflict of interest was unwaivable was indeterminate. He also testified 

that he did not obtain an ethics opinion regarding the conflict of interest from the 

Louisiana State Bar Association as suggested by the Leger firm. Nevertheless, at 

the suggestion of two other attorneys, he had the case that was removed to federal 

court dismissed because of a possible conflict of interest. Respondent believes that 

5 
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the Derryberry and Gainsburgh firms kept bring up the conflict of interest 

they could cut him out ofa share of the attorney's fees. 

MICHAEL ECUYER'S TESTIMONY 

Mr. Ecuyer, an attorney at the Gainsburgh firm, testified that he filed a 

disciplinary complaint against respondent regarding his conflicted representation of 

Mr. Taylor and Lawan. He indicated that he and other attorneys repeatedly told 

respondent that he could not represent both Mr. Taylor and Lawan. Respondent 

stated that he had Mr. Taylor and Ms. Hodges sign waivers of the conflict of interest, 

and Mr. Ecuyer told him the conflict of interest was not waivable. In Mr. Ecuyer's 

opinion, respondent was unable to understand the difference between a waivable and 

an unwaivable conflict. 

After the settlement, respondent insisted he was due a fee for his 

representation ofLawan. Therefore, Mr. Ecuyer and Lawan's other attorneys filed 

a motion asking the federal court to determine if respondent was conflict-free and, 

thus, entitled to a fee for his representation of Lawan. Until the fee dispute was 

resolved, the settlement funds were held in trust, which delayed the disbursement of 

Lawan's portion of the settlement for eight or nine months. 

LUKE FONTANA'S TESTIMONY 

Mr. Fontana testified that he has never spoken with respondent and was not 

_ retained to represent him. He also testified that he had never seen and did not sign 

the motions for continuance purportedly filed by him in this matter. He had no 

knowledge of whether his paralegal had ever spoken to respondent and never spoke 

to his paralegal about respondent. Mr. Fontana further testified that he had no 

knowledge of the $1,000 payment respondent purportedly made to his paralegal, 

6 
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never authorized his paralegal to collect $1,000 from respondent, atrd 

the $1,000 from either respondent or his paralegal. 

Mr. Fontana also testified that, at one point, he discovered that his driver's 

license was missing and that his name had been falsely used in a manner indicating 

he had appeared before a notary public. Additionally, he discovered unauthorized 

intrusions into his ·computer and bedroom, which he concluded were likely 

perpetrated by his paralegal.4 Finally, Mr. Fontana indicated that, at some point, he 

never heard from the paralegal again. 

Hearing Committee Report 

After considering the testimony and evidence presented at the two hearings, 

the hearing committee made factual findings consistent with the factual allegations 

set forth in the formal charges and in the underlying facts section above. 

Additionally, the committee found the following: 

• Respondent disregarded the requirement of a conflict-free representation of 

Mr. Taylor and Lawan, jeopardizing their constitutional Sixth Amendment 

rights; 

• Respondent jeopardized their recovery of damages for their injuries; 

• Respondent caused additional work by and placed additional burdens upon 

legal counsel in at least two law firms who were required to prevent his 

violation of the Rules of Professional Conduct; 

• Respondent unnecessarily increased the workload of both the United States 

District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana and the United States Fifth 

Circuit Court of Appeals; 

4 In a sealed portion of the transcript, the ODC reported that Mr. Fontana's paralegal had an 
extensive criminal history in several states. 
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• Respondent contributed to the erosion of trust in the integrity4 

the judicial system; 

• Respondent delayed, for approximately eight or nine months, the payment of 

damages in the form of settlement funds to three plaintiffs and their families 

due to his persistent litigation; 

• Respondent caused added expenses, including costs and attorney's fees, for 

all parties due to his motion to intervene in the federal court settlement and 

his frivolous appeal to the United States Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals; 

• Because of the increased attorney's fees, respondent reduced the parties' 

recoveries; 

• Even if respondent believed he was represented at the May 11, 2022 

disciplinary hearing, he has since learned he was not; yet he still has not 

provided any mitigating evidence or an explanation for his absence at the 

September 23, 2022 hearing; 

• The medical note provided to the committee was presented by fraudulent 

means either by respondent or by Mr. Fontana's paralegal; respondent has 

provided no subsequent information regarding his absence, the fraudulent 

filing, or his position as to the formal charges; and 

• Despite the September 23, 2022 hearing, the committee is unable to reach a 

conclusion as to whether respondent's absence at the May 11, 2022 hearing 

was due to ·his own attempted fraud or because he was a victim of Mr. 

Fontana's paralegal. 

Based upon these facts, the conunittee determined respondent violated the 

Rules of Professional Conduct as charged. The committee then determined 

respondent knowingly and intentionally violated duties owed to his clients, the legal 

system, and the legal profession, which caused actual harm. 

8 
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The committee found the following aggravating 

dishonest or selfish motive, a pattern of misconduct, bad faith obstruction of the 

disciplinary proceeding by intentionally failing to comply with the rules or orders of 

the disciplinary agency, and refusal to acknowledge the wrongful nature of the 

conduct. In mitigation, the committee found the absence of a prior disciplinary 

record and only moderate harm caused by his misconduct. 

After further considering the court's prior case law addressing similar 

misconduct, the committee recommended respondent be suspended from the 

practice of law for two years and one day, with one year deferred. 

Respondent filed an objection to the hearing committee's repor 

Disciplinary Board Recommendation 

After review, the disciplinary board determined that the hearing committee's 

factual findings were not manifestly erroneous and adopted same. Additionally, the 

board found the following: 

• During the ODC's investigation, respondent was scheduled to provide his 

sworn statement on September 10, 2020. Respondent requested the sworn 

statement be postponed so he could obtain counsel. During his rescheduled 

sworn statement on October 5, 2020, which was almost one year after he 

received notice of the disciplinary complaint, respondent admitted that he had 

made no effort to retain an attorney to represent him; 

~ • Also during his sworn statement, respondent admitted that he knew Mr. 

Taylor may have some fault in the accident; however, respondent never 

disclosed to his clients that an unwaivable conflict of interest would exist in 

representing both Mr. Taylor and Lawan; 

9 
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• When asked during his sworn statement ;.,hy he had 

removed to federal court dismissed, respondent indicated that it was because 

there may have been conflicts of interest; 

• On May I 0, 2022, one day before the formal hearing in this matter, the board 

contacted respondent, but he refused to speak with the board, claiming advice 

of counsel even though he had not spoken to his purported counsel (Mr. 

Fontana) at the time of or even after this false representation; and 

• On August 26, 2022, the ODC served respondent with a subpoena duces 

tecum for the production of documents related to Mr. Fontana's alleged 

representation. Respondent did not produce any documents by or after the 

September 15, 2022 deadline, nor did he provide an explanation for his failure 

to comply with the subpoena duces tecum or for his absence from the 

September 23, 2022 hearing. 

Based upon these facts, the board determined respondent violated Rules 1.4, 

l.7(a), and 8.4(d) of the Rules of Professional Conduct as alleged in the formal 

charges and as found by the committee. The board, however, determined that the 

committee erred in finding a violation of Rule 3.3, finding that the citing of this 

alleged rule violation in the formal charges appeared to be a typographical error. 

Instead, the board determined thatthe ODC intended to cite Rule 3.1 (meritorious 

claims and contentions) because he sought to intervene in the federal litigation so he 

could improperly receive attorney's fees for his conflicted representation ofLawan. 

The board then determined respondent lmowingly and intentionally violated 

duties owed to his clients, the legal system, and the legal profession, which caused 

actual harm. Based upon the ABA's Standards far Imposing Lawyer Sanctions, the 

board determined the baseline sanction is suspension. 

The board found the following aggravating factors are present: a pnor 

disciplinary record (a 2002 diversion for settling a case without the client's consent),. 

10 
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a dishonest or selfish motive, a pattern of misccm 

obstruction of the disciplinary proceeding by intentionally failing to comply with 

rules or orders of the disciplinary agency, refusal to aclmowledge the wrongful 

natnre of the conduct, and substantial experience in the practice of law ( admitted 

1989). The board found no mitigating factors present. 

After further considering the court's prior case law addressing similar 

misconduct, the board recommended respondent be suspended from the practice of 

law for two years and one day, with one year deferred. 

Neither respondent nor the ODC filed an objection to the board's report and 

. recommendation. 

DISCUSSION 

Bar disciplinary matters fall within the original jurisdiction of this court. La. 

Const. art. V, § 5(B). Consequently, we act as triers of fact and conduct an 

independent review of the record to determine whether the alleged misconduct has 

been proven by clear and convincing evidence. In re: Banks, 09-1212 (La. 10/2/09), 

18 So. 3d 57. 

The record of this matter supports a finding that respondent failed to 

adequately communicate with his clients, engaged in a conflict of interest, attempted 

to collect an impermissible fee, and engaged in conduct prejudicial to the 

administration of justice. Based upon these facts, respondent violated Rules 1 .4, 

l.7(a), 3.1, and 8.4(d) of the Rules of Professional Conduct. 

Having found evidence of professional misconduct, we now tnrn to a 

determination of the appropriate sanction for respondent's actions. In determining 

a sanction, we are mindful that disciplinary proceedings are designed to maintain 

high standards of conduct, protect the public, preserve the integrity of the profession, 

and deter future misconduct. Louisiana State Bar Ass 'n v. Reis, 513 So. 2d 1173 

11 
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(La. 1987). The discipline to be imposed depends upon the 

the seriousness of the offenses involved considered in light of any aggravating and 

mitigating circumstances. Louisiana State Bar Ass 'n v. Whittington, 459 So. 2d 520 

(La. 1984). 

Respondent caused actual harm by knowingly and intentionally violating 

duties owed to his clients, the legal system, and the legal profession. We agree with 

the disciplinary board that the baseline sanction is suspension. We also agree with 

the board's assessment of aggravating and mitigating factors. 

Turning to the issue of an appropriate sanction, we find guidance from In re: 

B'ellaire, 22-1084 (La. 9/27/22), 347 So. 3d 143, and In re: Lapeyrouse, 22-0571 

(La. 10/21/22), 352 So. 3d 59. In Bellaire, an attorney represented the buyer and the 

seller with respect to a property transfer without obtaining a waiver of the conflict 

of interest, which resulted in actual harm to the buyer when the sale fell through. 

The attorney then failed to cooperate with the ODC's investigation of the matter. 

For this negligent and !mowing misconduct, we suspended the attorney from the 

practice of law for six months, with all but ninety days deferred. In Lapeyrouse, an 

attorney engaged in a conflict of interest by providing legal advice to both his client 

and his client's estranged wife in connection with their divorce and by disclosing 

confidential information to his client's estranged wife. The attorney then filed a 

defamation lawsuit against his client and another witness based upon the information 

they provided to the ODC regarding his conflict of interest. For this knowing 

misconduct, we suspended the attorney from the practice oflaw for one year, with 

six months deferred. 

Arguably, respondent's misconduct is more egregious than the misconduct 

found in Bellaire and Lapeyrouse. Respondent never adequately explained the 

conflict of interest to the clients and inappropriately obtained a waiver of an 

unwaivable conflict. He also attempted to obtain a fee he was barred from receiving • 
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because of the conflict and filed frivolous ;~~a.dm 

receipt of their settlement funds for months. Respondent's delaying tactics s 

over into the disciplinary proceedings, and he failed to appear at both disciplinary 

hearings without explanation. 

Under these circumstances, a sanction requiring a formal application for 

reinstatement is warranted. Accordingly, we will adopt the board's recommendation 

and suspend respondent from the practice of law for two years and one day, with one 

year deferred. 

DECREE 

Upon review of the findings and recommendation of the hearing committee 

and the disciplinary board, and considering the record, it is ordered that Kenneth M. 

Plaisance, Louisiana Bar Roll number 19738, be and he hereby is suspended from 

the practice of law for a period of two years and one day, with one year deferred. 

All costs and expenses in the matter are assessed against respondent in accordance 

with Supreme Court Rule XIX,§ 10.1, with legal interest to commence thirty days 

from the date of finality of this court's judgment until paid. 

13 
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FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
OF THE 

LOUISIANA ATTORNEY DISCIPLJNARY BOARD 

DUPLICATE 23 B 1460 
IN RE: KENNETH M, PLAISANCE 

(FORMAL CHARGES) 

CERTIFICATION 

I certify that the record contained herein is the 
original and complete record of the Louisiana 
Attorney Disciplinary Board vs. KENNETH M, 
PLAISANCE; DOCKET NO.: 21-DB-066. This 
3rd day of Novembe1·, 2023. 

f/)/~_4,£_ 
MILDRED 8, WILLIAMS 
Docket Clerk 
Louisiana Attorney Disciplinary Board 
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------::'.": .• .LOUISI,\.NA ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY BOARD 
- FILED ; 

018C1PUNMYB<J&l£----··\ IN RE: KENNETH M._ PLAJSANCE 

Doi&'. " ffj- )3- 2-1.. ____ , i, (Bar Roll~ r38~D n., 0 ~ (D 
C!Oli<: -~----DOCKET NO.: \Jl U 

FORMAL CHARGES 

NOW comes the OFFICE OF DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL, pursuant to ·La. Supreme 

Court Rule XIX and alleges that you have engaged in the following misconduct in violation of the 

·Rules of Professional Conduct, to-wit: 

Respondent, Kenneth M. Plaisance, is a Louisiana-licensed attorney admitted in 1989. He 

is also licensed-in the state of Texas. 

O_n June 15, 2017, Respondent consulted with and agreed to jointly represent two personal 

injury claimants) Lany Taylor ("Taylor"), an adult, andLawan Roussel ("Lawan,1), the minor child 

ofMelvia Hodges, who had been injured in a motor vehicle accident in New Orleans. At the time 

of the accident, Taylor was driving a vehicle when he rear~ended an eighteen-wheeler making an 

illegal U-!tun, which raised issues of comparative negligence. Lawan was a passenger in the front 

seat of the vehicle. Taylor was ticketed by police for the offense of following too closely and was 

later found t0 have the controlled substance THC in his system, indicating recent ingestion of 

marijuana. 

At the time he was retained, Respondent failed to disclose the existence of a concurrent 

conflict of interest inherent in his joint representation of both _clients. On July 27, 2017, on behalf 

ofLawan, Respondent granted. a full release of all claims against Taylor to Progressive Insurance 

Company (Taylor's auto insurer), in exchange for payment of the $15,000 policy limits. 

Thereafter, on October 18, 2017, he filed a personal injury action in sf.ate court in Orleans Parish 

against Progressive (who was also the defendant's insurer) on behalfofbotb Taylor and Lawan as 

co-plaintiffs, ·,\lleging the truck driver's negligence. The defendant insurer later removed the 

matter to fed,ral comt in New Orleans. 1 The respondent's lawsuit failed to include any claims by 

Lawan alleging the comparative negligence of Taylor. 

1 This suit was later dismissed without prejudice and re-filed under a different case number: No, I 8-cv-05889. 

1 
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In the latter part of 2017, the respondent approached the Covington firm of Leger and Shaw 

about enrolling as co-counsel on aIJ claims. On December 26, 2017, an attorney with the firm 

expressly advised Respondent of conflict concerns with his joint representation of Taylor and 

Lawan and declined to participate in the case. Respondent then asked a Texas law firm, 

Derryberry, Zipps, and Wade, PLC, ("DZW"), to emoll as co-counsel on behalf of Lawan and 

Taylor. After agreeing to represent Lawan, lawyers at DZW independently advised Respondent 

of bis concurrent conflict of interest in the dual representation and asked that he withdraw from 

Taylor's defense. Respondent initially agreed to do so, then retrenched by emailing on Taylor's 

behalf. When DZW learned of tbis, the Texas firm enlisted the New Orleans law firm of 

Gainsburgh, Benjamin, David, Metmier, and Washauer as local counsel and met with the client to 

apprise her of the conflict issues. Ms. Hodges, on behalf of her son, thereafter discharged 

Respondent and executed a separate contingency fee agreement exclusively with DPW and GB. 

A mediation was held between the parties in May 2018, with the respondent attempting to 

pruticipate as counsel, but no settlement was reached at that time. On June 14, 2018, GB filed a 

federal complaint on behalf of Ms. Hodges an,d Lawan in the Eastern District of Louisiana. On 

October 16, 2018, Respondent filed a Motion to Intervene in federal court asking to re-open the 

earlier action that he had filed and seeking attorneys, fees for representing Lawan on the subject 

claims.2 In May 2019, the parties reached an amicable settlement following a second mediation. 

Attorneys for Lawan thereafter petitioned the Orleans Parish Civil District Cou1t for anthority to 

enter into a settlement of the minor's claims, which was later granted. 

On August 15, 2019, Respondent forwarded a peremptory e-mail to the DZW firm warning 

the client's lawyers not to disburse any settlement funds pending resolution of his fee claim. 

Because of uncertainty regarding the validity of such clalms, attorneys for Lawan sought guidance 

from the federal court to determine whether the respondent could etl1ically share in attorneys' fees 

derived from settlement. On September 4, 2019, DZW and GB filed a pleading styled "Motion to 

Dete1mine Conflict-Free Status and Entitlement to Attorneys' Fees." Respondent was served with 

a copy of the pleading but did not file a response. Thereafter, the federal judge assigned to the 

case, Jane Milazzo Triche, issued a ruling on Qctober 7, 2019, confirming the existence of 

2 After receiving the Motion to Intervene, th.e clerk of the Eastern District served a 0 Notice of Deficiency" upon 
Respondent instructing him to conect the filing, and further advised him that failure to do so within 7 days would 
result in his filing would be rejected, The respondent thereafter failed to correct the deficiency and the clerk later 
withdrew the filing. 
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Respondent's conflict of interest and declared him ineligible to receive a fee because of his 
conflicted representation of Law an. 

Despite his failure to appear and oppose the motion, the Respondent nonetheless appealed 

Judge Triche Milazzo's tuling to the U.S. Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals. That court later 

dismissed the appeal as being untimely filed. 

By his acts and omissions, respondent Kenneth Plaisance has knowingly and intentionally 

violated Rules of Professional Conduct I .4 (failure to communicate the existence of an un­

waivable conflict of interest in his representation); 1.7(a) ( concurrent conflict of interest); 3.3 

(seeking to collect att9rneys' fees in pursuit of a conflicted representation); 8.4(d) (conduct 
prejudicial to the administration of justice), 

WHEREFORE, Disciplinaiy Counsel states that, pursuant to Rule XIX, § l 1B(3), a hearing 

committee chair approved the filing of formal charges on December 17, 2020, that the above 

alleged conduct, or any part thereofi if proven, merits the imposition of sanctions in accordance 
with La. S. Ct. Rule XIX. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Robert S. Kennedy 
BAR ROLL NO. 07463 
DEPUTY DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL 
4000 S. Sherwood Forest Blvd., Ste.607 
Baton Rouge, LA 70816 
Phone: (225) 293-3900 

Please serve the respondent at the following address: 

Primary Registration address: 

KENNETH M. PLAISANCE 
2202 TOURO ST. 
NEW ORLEANS, LA 70119 
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LOUISIANA ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY BOARD 

~-------i IN RE: KENNETH M PLAISANCE 
BAR ROLL NO.: 19738 

DOCKET NO. 2021 DB 066 

ANSWER TO THE OFFICE OF DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL'S FORMAL 
CHARGE OF MISCONDUCT IN VIOLATION OF THE RULES OF· 

PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT .. 

NOW INTO TO COURT, comes RESPONDENT-- KENNETH MICHAEL 

PLAISANCE who now answers to the OFFICE OF DISClPLINARY COUNSEL 

FORMAL CHARGE :filed in the above captioned matter. Respondent states 

there were and are exigent and extenuating circumstances that called for zealous 

representation which respondent answered the call. But for the actions of 

respondent, Lawan Rousell would not have gotten any of the proceeds and no 

other attorney would have talcen his case if the only evidence was an inaccurate 

police report (which was inadmissable) which inaccurately reported that Lawan's 

biological father (Larry Taylor Jr.) rear-ended the Eighteen Wheeler. The 

evidence at the beginning of the case indicated that Mr. Taylor was presumed 

100% at fault for the accident. 

Nevertheless, for good cause shown, Respondent represents the following, 

to-wit: 

Pg 1 
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1. 

That the allegations contained in paragraph (1) of the OFFICE OF 

DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL formal charge are true. Except Respondent object 

that the State of Louisiana has no jurisdiction over Respondent's license to 

practice law in Texas. Respondent practices in Texas and many times Respondent 

was not at 2202 Touro Street because he was in Texas. 

2. 

That the allegation contained in paragraph (2) respondent disagrees with the 

statment "On June 15, 2017, consulted with and agreed to jointly represent two 

person injury claimants ... " Respondent states that the case or claim was in the 

beginning stage and because of the inaccurate police report which would have 

made Mr. Taylor 100% at fault. Respondent disagreed with the statement that "at 

the time Lawan Rousell was the minor child of Melvia Hodges is/was incorrect. 

Melvia Hodges aka Melvia Taylor allowed. Reverent Rousell to become Lawan 

Rousell 's custodial parent and allowed a name change due to alleged abuse 

charges. Respondent disagrees with the statement in paragraph 2 " at the time of 

the accident, Taylor was driving a vehicle when he rear ended an eighteen-wheeler 

because the police report was inaccurate and a more thorough investigation had to 

be done. Respondent states that there was an eye witness that the police officer 
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failed to put on the police report. The eye witness stated that driver of Eighteen 

Wheeler was 100% at fault for the accident. Respondent disagrees with the 

statement that "THC in his system" Respondent states that me had nothing to 

do with Taylor's ability to operate a vehicle. 

3. 

That the allegation contained in paragraph (3) are inaccurate and 

infmmation sufficient to justify a belief therein. Respondent disagrees with the 

statement" At the time he was retained, Respondent failed to disclose the 

existence of a concunent conflict of interest. Again, due to the inaccurate police 

report Mr. Taylor would have been declared 100% at fault for the accident and 

thus, Lawan's claims or case was moot or of no moment Nevertheless, on or 

about October 18, 2017, respondent met with Attorney Ferdinand V alteau and his 

wife so that Attorney Valteau could either represent Lawan or Larry. Attorney 

Ferdinand Valteau agreed and gave respondent a check for the filing fees. Then 

on or about October 18, 2017, respondent filed the original petition in state court. 

This action cured any conflict of interest issues and an un-waivable conflict of 

interest issues. The rest of the statements in Paragraph 3 are inaccurate and or of 

no moment. 
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4. 

Toe allegation contained in paragraph (IV) of the OFFICE OF 

DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL'S FORMAL CHARGE are denied for lack of 

information sufficient to justify belief therein. Respondent states that the 

allegation contained in paragraph (4) are inaccurate and is information insufficient 

to justify a belief therein. Respondent was attempting to give Lawan and Larry 

the best legal representation. Respondent does not litigate in federal court 

anymore, and Respondent was one of the last attorney that are allowed to file by 

Il).anUal paper filing (not electronically). Respondent did not have any experience 

in litigating 18 wheeler cases in federal court. Federal rules mandates that you 

must have a lead litigating attorney on cases in federal court. The statement 

"the respondent approached the Covington Firm of Leger and Shaw about 

enrolling as co-counsel on all claims is misplaced and incorrect Respondent 

approach several law finns to become lead litigating attorney for 18 wheeler cases. 

Respondent researched each firm that had litigated 18 wheeler cases. Again, 

respondent had AttorneyV alteau to represent Larry and Respondent represented 

the interest ofLawan Rousell. Each firm respondent approached had experience 

in litigating 18 wheeler cases. The allegation from the Texas Law Firm 

Derryberry, Zipps and Wade are misplaced. DZW would make these statement 
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only after they settled and respondent requested attorney fees. Derryberry; Zipps 

and Wades did not have a license to practice in Louisiana, and were practicing 

without a license in Louisiana. Derryberry Zipps and Wades could not legally 

advise respondent on Louisiana Law. Respondent informed them that Respondent 

had another attorney representing either plaintiffs. Respondent informed them 

that Respondent needed a firm who had experience in litigating 18 wheeler cases. 

Derryberry, Zipps, and Wades said they had experience in representing 18 wheeler 

cases, and litigated cases in Shrevep01t Louisiana, and that they can motion the 

court for a motion pro hac vice. The allegations that "Gainsburgh, Benjamin, 

David, Meunier, and Washauer met with the client to apprise her of the conflict 

issues are skewed and misplaced. Again, it was understood that Ms. Hodges was 

not the custodian parent. It was understood that Ms. Hodges gave her rights up 

and gave her parental right to Reverent Rousell, and change Lawan's last name to 

Rousell. Secondly, Respondent , out of the abundance of caution, had Ms. 

Hodges signed a waiver of conflict and had Attorney Valteau to represent Larry. 

So, any conflict of interest issues or concurrent conflict of interest, or un-waivable 

consent issues were adckessed and cured. 
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The allegation contained in paragraph (V) of the OFFICE OF . 

DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL'S FORMAL CHARGE are incorrect and misplaced 

and are denied for lack of information sufficient to justify belief therein, except 

that there was a mediation in May of2018; except that on June 14, 2018, Attorney 

Michael Ecuyer of Gainsburgh, Benjamin, David, Meunier, and Washauer filed 

suit in federal court on behalf ofLawan Rousell; and that the respondent asked for 

the original action to be reopen and that he be allowed to intervene to collect his 

attorneys fees; and except that in May 2019, the parties reached an amicable 

settlement. Respondent objects to any implication that he failed on filing any 

pleading in federal court. Respondent does not practice in federal court any more 

and was one of the only few attorneys left who was allowed to file pleading 

manually paper filing (non electronically). The federal court does not mail out 

notice anymore. Respondent did not get the electronic notices from the court. 

Respondent disagrees with the statement that "Attorneys for La wan thereafter 

petitioned the Orleans Parish Civil District Court for authority to enter into a 

settlement of the minor's claim, which was later granted is misplaced, the 

attorneys mentioned above Gainsburgh, Benjamin, David, Meunier, and Washauer 

did not secure this judgment in State court. Ms. Hodges was told to get another 
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6. 

The allegations contained in paragraph (VI) of the OFFICE OF 

DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL'S FORMAL CHARGE are denied for lack of 

information sufficient to justify belief therein. The fact in this paragraph are 

denied except that Respondent does not practice in federal court and did not get 

electronic notice. Respondent filed pleading manna! via paper pleading not 

electronic pleadings. Respondent stated that the court was unaware of Attorney 

Ferdinand Valteau as being the other counsel representing either Lawan or Larry. 

7. 

The allegations contained in paragraph 7 of the OFFICE OF 

DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL'S FORMAL CHARGE are denied for lack of 

information sufficient to justify belief therein ·except that Respondent filed an 

appeal but it was ruled untimely. 

8. 

The allegations contained in paragraph 8 of the OFFICE OF 

DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL'S FORMAL CHARGE are denied for lack of 

info1mation sufficient to justify belief therein. Respondent states that each case is 

different and not a coolde cutter- cut and dry case as the Discipline Counsel 
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believes. Respondent did not Jmowingly and intentionally violate Rules 1.4 

(failure to communicate the existence of an un-waivable conflict of interest in his 

representation) because Lawan and Larry met with Respondent and Attorney 

Ferdinard Valteau and established representation of both plaintiffs seperately to 

cure any un-waivable conflict of interest or concurrent conflict of interest. With 

respect to seeldng to collect attorney's fees in pursuit of a conflicted 

representation, Respondent states that since he had cured and/or corrected the 

conflict of interest issues, Respondent should have been allowed to collect his 

attorney fees. It was only after Respondent requested his attorneys fees 

Gainsburgh, Benjamin, David, Meunier, and Washauer filed a complaint with the 

Disciplinary Counsel. If Respondent did not request his attorneys fees, 

Gainsburgh, Benjamin, David, Meunier, and Washauer would not have complaint. 

Respondent denies any conduct prejudicial to the administration of justice. 

CONCLUSION 

Non-waiveable consent frustrate the client's exercise of autonomy and 

clients choice. The drafters of waivers of conflict of interest have relied upon 

pure autonomy notions in giving clients an absolute right to waive conflict of 

interest regardless of the consequences to themselves. Moreover, clients may wish 

to retain a conflicted lawyer because they know and trust the attorney. Karen 
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Corvy "The Right To Counsel Of One's Choice, 58 Notre Dame LRev 793 (801-

02 (1983). 

Here, Lawan, Lany and Melvia trusted Respondent's advise and 

representation(s). From the time of Respondent's representation, until litigation, 

There were no issues of liability after the eye witness stated that the tortfeasor was 

100% at fault of the accident. Respondent had both biological parent sign a 

waiver of a conflict of interest. In addition, out of the abundance of caution, 

Ferdinand V alteau to represent Larry in the matter and Attorney Valteau paid for 

the filing fees in state court. Lawan and Larry met with Respondent and Attorney 

Ferdinand Valteau and agreed that Respondent will represent Lawan and Attorney 

Valteau will represent Larry. Because of the assistance of another attorney, 

there were no conflict of interest. 

According to FDIC v. U.S. Fire Ins. Co., 50 F 3d 1304, 1313(5th Cir 

1995), the U.S. Fifth Circuit held that the "depriving a party of the right to be 

represented by the attorney of his choice is a penalty that must not be imposed 

without careful consideration." 

Here, in this particular instance, Respondent met all of the requirements of 

Pg9 

ts 

Petitioner's Exhibits_Plaisance_000027



Paragraph (b ), there was no directly adverse representation, nor did Lawan assert a 

claim against another client representation by the lawyer in the same litigation, 

Lawan did not want to sue his father and emphatically argued against such an 

action, and each client gave an informed consent in writing. Thus, Respondent 

can and could represent Larry and his minor son-- Lawan. Moreover, to correct 

or cure any conflict of interest issues, Ferdinand Valteau and Respondent were 

separate attorneys and or law film representing either LARRY OR LAW AN. 

Respondent offer, file and introduce Exhibit !into the record.(text message 

to High Profile litigating attorney Robert Jenkins discussing the possibility of 

being lead litigating attorney in federal court.) Exhibit 1 pnrports and indicates 
Rule 1.7 of the Louisiana Rules of Professional Conflict provides 

Conflict of Interest 

(a) Excepts provided in paragraph (b) a lawyer shall not represent a client if the representation involves a 
concurrent conflict of interest. A concurrent conflict adverse to anotlter client: or 

{1} the representation of one client will be directly adverse to another client; or 

(2) There is a significant risk that the representation of one or more client's will be materially 
limited by the lawyers' responsibilities 
to another client. a fonner client or a third person or by a personal 
interest ofthe lawyer. 

(b) Notwithstanding the existence of a concurrent conflict of interest under paragraph ; 

(1) the lawyerreasonably believe's that the lawyer will be able to 
provi.dc competent and diligent representation to each. affected 

• client; 

(2) the representation is not prolubited by Jaw; 

(3) the representation does not involve the assertion of a claim by 
one client against anoth.er client represented by the lawyer in the 
same litigation or other proceeding before the tribunal; and 

(4) each affected client glves infonned consent, confirmed in writings. 

Paragraph (b) requires the lawyer to obtain the inf01med consent of the client confinning in writing. 
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teau (Ferd) and Respondent's finn were represent the plaintiff 

seperately, 

NON-W AIVEABLE CONFLICT OF INTEREST ARE W AIV ABLE IN THE 
COURSE OF THE LITIGATION. 

In Zelda Enter, LLLP v, Guorismo, 2017 U.S Court of Appeal 11 th Circuit 

Lexis 447 (Oct 4, 2019), the court of appeals reminds us that even a non-waivable 

conflict of interest are waivable in the course of the litigation, The court noted the 

Rules of Professional Conduct which prohibits waivers of certain confl~cts of 

interest among lawyers and their clients does not control the decision of whether a 

client subsequently waives the ability of the attorney. In sum the court seems to 

have caught on the the fact that attorneys/ litigants are hying to use tenuous 

connection with counsel to achieve litigation advantage by seeking 

disqualification of a party's lawyer of choice, 

The courts are increasingly attuned to hyper-technical lawyering seeking to 

avoid the consequence of a parties earlier actions. Legal rights are great, but 

almost all of them can be waived. 

WHEREFORE, RESPONDENT prays that: this Answer be deemed good and 

sufficient and, after all proceedings be had the Disciplinary Counsel dismiss the 

fonnal charge and the Louisiana Supreme Court rules in Respondent's favor 
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Certificate of Se1yice 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a copy 
of the above and foregoing 
pleading has been mail postage 
prepaid, emailed, faxed or hand delivered 
to opposi;'.r co~! ofrecord 
on the {{!:!; of \}~::,,, 2022 

Kenneth M. Plaisance 

Respondent 
Kenneth M. Plaisance 
1148 Silber Road Ste 1123 
Honston, Texas 77055 
504-905 1888 
kplaws88@gmail.com 
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IN RE: KENNETH M. PLAISANCE 
BAR ROLL NO.: 19738 

DOCKET NO. 2021 DB 066 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 
PARISH OF ORLEANS 

Before me, the undersigned, notary public, personally came and appeared: 

KENNETH MiCHAEL PLAISANCE 

who after being duly sworn, did depose and say that: 

1: Affiant states that he is the respondent in the above numbered and entitled 

case. 

2. Affiant states that affiant offers, introduce and files affiant's telephone text 

document records into the record as Exhibit leng]obal . 

3. Affiant states that Exhibit I is two copies of a text conversation from 

affiant's cell phone with Attorney Robert Jenkins dated December 14, 

2017. 

4. Affiant states that the text document indicate that the text message was on 

communicated on December 14, 2017, 

5. Affiant states that the text document stated that LARRY TAYLOR JR., et 

al versus TRAVIS JAMES, CDMT TRUCKING et al 2017-9436, Lawan 
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RouselJ's case) was in the beginning stages and that Mr. Jenkins' will be 

considered lead litigating attorney when the time arises. 

6. Affiant states that Exhibit 1 shows and demonstrate that Ferdinand Valteau 

and Respondent were representing the plaintiffs Lany Taylor Jr. And Lawan 

Rousell respectively. 

7. Affiant states that the phone text document is evidence that there were no 

concunent conflict of interests, or an un-waivable conflict of interest in the 

case or claims because it was agreed at that time that Ferdinand V alteau 

would representLany Taylor Jr., and respondent would represent Lawan 

Rousell. 

8. Affiant states that Ferdinand Valteau gave respondent a check to pay the 

filing fee. 

This affidavit is true and conect to the best of affiant's lmow]edge, memory, and 

belief. 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE NIE 

THIS t/ ~--

ASHLEIGH JOI-INSON 
Notary Publlc 

.r, Notary ID No. 172751 
Jefferson Parish, Louisiana 
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Atty Robert Jenkins 
+15048121999 

Invite someone 

2:46 PM 

•. Saturday, JaITTuary 1, 202:::¾ 

111 0 

Petitioner's Exhibits_Plaisance_000033



Thursday, December 14, 2017 

2:46PM 

I never said that. 2:54 PM 

I never inferred anything to 
ferd. You asked me that 
was it. I was only telling 
ferd. What a good case 
for you both. You jumped 
to a conclusion about me 
saying o was retained. I AM 
NOT !NIN WORKING WITH 
YOU IF THIS IS HOW YOU 
RESPOND. THANKS 3:07 PM 

Saturday, January 1, 2022 

~nter me ... 
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Docket#. 

21·D&066 

i.6uistANAATT0ClR.N!liY il'!SCIPLINA"'· .=y=:=a=.o~ARD=.-------· 

.i.N R)!l; J{JtNNi,11;H)v.t, PLAiSANCit 

;OJJG,:(q£.1.'J:{9; :U.,).'!:\1-9·~~ 

iittROo\:JdTibN'. 

This atmrney. disdpiiaaty, matter' arises out of i'ortlllit. ehmies .:flloo'.1:iy ,the Office of 

piiiciµfuWy CqunseJ(''OpC1')ag~J&nii~1JlM,.Pli\s1m.co('!Resppridi,ht''),
1
Lo\tlslao;fBa,·~ll 

. )'fw.i))i~~ 1.97}~.1 qpc; iµl¢goij, \!11i\' J¼spqi\~t vlol~te\l.Jhe;,f\illowiril! Rv\e,, :o(l'rnfessfcljial 

Coll!l'l.ct':; 1.4, l.7(a);S.3', and: 8.4(~);'\ 

·p:tt()J;iro\JR:ALWST.ORY 

The,fonnru'. ch•tll,e• were·fileiLon Dec"1hbor I :it 2021. Responde;,i filedM>lMwer to the 

chw:ge~ onJ!IIlu(iry 41 2.02:;t A &clieclulibg ·conference W!lli~id onFebrual')':l/l022; at.which time 

th¢ piri:ties selecti;d, Miii l l-1,2; 20'.?2, i!i,'heiliijig dJ\res. Oil Aprll .I t,.2022, Respb!(\!e,rtt tifod;it 

m.otjon fo .. ~on.\ii:\\.\e tile lj~arlµ~; ~li!l/ng.ih!\t )ie,w~. st\ll.11tte/n:pl;iiig,to :fel)>.ii:i aef·attociey and.Jl1.at 

disi:o.v.er,: wasincompleie .. The·motioawas·dimiedoy order:ii~ed,Apiil ts, 2◊'!.2, ·on.April2S, 

2022;,ReseondenHllec\ amotion.fot sun1J118l'i'.J.ud&eme114 w biclicwas;denfod;by order sfgn•dA~ril 

21,. 2622. O,i'May t ·202i; Vill'iffilli:ig;attom;j Luk,fEontana eiirolle<ia; collD.lielfor,Respondent 

iu,iq fili;it a lrlo\iiiIJ. m ctiri,\ii\uil;,;agl)iit,st~i\g Jl\at dlsi:c,yery ii;as iricc!inplefu., Tlief iiiqtioµ_',vlci 

·i Re~pQ!)deutwas adniitte:d to Ute: prO.CtiCQ: of Ul\V..tn'.Lohisiana ·on 0ctolxi-c 6, r98!t • Resp_ondends curreru:ty:e}ig.,lbie· 
to:p_riittlce la'w;- . . . . . . • • • • 
·i•See :tfi15 attached AJi~dix.; f ~ftlle.·texr cl tiies~.ilule:J. 

l 
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:tike·.Fonlalia:, .. atmchii,i, a; cio't:tot's :note'. that ihdicateil; 'in p<ittinent .. ~•rl:, il\at Respondent was 

'1'µijnj,lii· t,c, atti:ild 1diedzjlc'<l roeetl~ am; u;.!iealikconcernsf Mr. Plaiianco andJvli,; Fontana di<l 

)io;~ppefl.!'fi>r-tli\'.Ji•q!Jng off.J1~f\1:, 2W,2;\!M."1t•it>iilS!9 c~nl~ l>:!r, F\int'6ri.;i'i.\'~e iuJ~ui:.~•i~fyl. 

™-• ro<ill~it vi.&~ ~en1~4, im<l 'l,h~ .lje~lng l?"'9IrcJe.<1,. Qf;pl\ty·pi~cip)jif,w; Cgu'aj~\ l½~.eit $, 

·tenne<fy .llj,l.[leared,orr hehalfofOOC, 

Af\er the; May Ii"' ·hearlnll,, dt>c: anil 'ilesponderri: filed, briefs wiih fue·.lioard. v.iiiich, 

coirtaln.ea CQiffilotliig; evidell\:e llS to wheihet Mt. Fontana Willi '®Milly· ,etaiiled· Wrllpreseht 

~Pi?Jtd~ut, J.31, ptde, sigri1;,d,Auw11.o,20i~;;the ql)un!w;fch~kteopeji"fl tl]o 1,.rocee~lfi& ft,,r 

tlit11iiiilied_l'l\lll9S'fa oN~t~Milrlhil wliet\leia M.,: Forl,ta;riaI~Prisoiit~~, E-•s'P.cill,d,,i)t, ,A;Jie~ w~,; 

.sehe<!med fo,,: il,~.feni):,er :;\;i, 10.2.'». a11d was•. lield OP.. tha• <late. O,!"'lY Pfa.c:ip!\nmy. Co~~l' 

ChriswP,her Kiesel •~P,eared,onbehalf of 6DC. ReSJJondenf-faiied lo •!'l'eai:; l!ndpq one •~feared. 

on 'bis oefuiit 

,S~XOFREG'Ol\WIENDA.T~ONS 

For tho follcfi/fu' reascins the Co • • .. ftee:l!,id;;tliat the:onc has tlitoir'l:ltl\o r eiitatio . .. . . g. ·'.. . ... ..1:1.1@ .... ., ..... ·"· .. •. ,_ .. - .. g P. <cl . . P 

.o(cloar !1!14 convinoi\lg evid~nce, esr,,,J,Ji!il!e.d ih.at:al) of.ODC'.,,c_h,arg~a, vfo)aQoiis <lfthe 1lil!~.s·,ife 

pro.verr. ·Spociffoaljy,as.,,lleged; the .e~/dence:offe((:d by the ODC establishes that throu~h'his·act:i. 

, and 6:missioctj, resµ~ndent Kerineth.Plaisance.lii.isknciWillg}pnd intentionally ~lo lilted:· 

coJi!l(ol o.f.h\!er~f ii!. ID$ .rep.reil\llia!ion ); 

"' '.Rule ofProfesslonal'Conduct 1,?(ii)'.(conctirron.f'conflict of interest).; 

• ]t~I.e ,~f prof¢,;;;iortlll coi\d~i;t;. ~.,, (s~ew.,.g to coJle~t attpmeys~ f¢ef \ii. iii#~~\\· of'a. 

co)l.flfote.dTepresenta\k>µ); l\lld: 

• Rul~.0r professional Con dull! 8.4( d) ( coitduct JiieJ\idfolai tii the adinlrtistratlon of justice). 
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:tike-.fonfan~ .. attachln~ a; ao"Ctot1s 'note- that. indicatetl~ :in pettiUent .. p,art\ tfmt itesjiondeni was 

<'')uiajk W atti)ild ;,eiiedljie\i meetl"I! duo ta llealth•conceriis:i' .Mt'. riiafsilhce' a11d:M:r. Fontima du! 

.no.\ ~Piie.ai: !pr, tM,Jw~izjg o.i(tv(•f~ 1:, 2Q22.,li1ll."1tei)li_ils lil oi\i\l~ !;,Jr. f 9nflltii(')'l~e iliJ~ui:~•!/fi\i. 

™-ni<illb)t vi~•• \!e111~!J, i1ncf 'jh~ -he/lling pr.o~.er<Jeq •. D¢P.u&r Pi\~lpliilii!Y C~'\ili~i;\ %>~rt$; 

J?:enned:\'.a)lJ:lear.,d,in;b.ehalf:ofOOC, 

After. th<> Jvi.ny :rtm ·Marfog,, dt>C: aui!. 'Respondent filed." briefs with the' Board. wiiioll, 

coirtalo.ea c◊iiflioili\g, evideill:e ·llli to wheihet lvfr. Fontana was 'actually· tetaiueli- to•represont 
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pro.ven . .Srocifical\y:-M•&lleged;tM e~idei1,i1e,o:ffeted hy·lheODC e.tablishes that.tlirou~h'his· '1<\1$. 

, and omlssionS, res:i,ondent .kenneth.Plalsance.hiis.kno'whlgJy-and intentlortally vlofote&:· 
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Cow,idi;,,Jng the J:>toOfof'. outl•s:ch•l'/les;---eas;.welt"" considex,1tiOIJ.◊f.the·agwav.atill& an4 
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/1/\4 cas~liJW~*- Oolfy'i)j!I,•{ tec(ii1lmelJ4,. tJ!li,t_ ·tf.t 1WJ1qll~i:!\l\ Keruleth M. PiwslUl'ce he 

siiiPeii.d<1(frQm :tile 11?i\¢1i<W9t l~wt<i#'\WP (iYJfaf!i.tw<l 'oiffi(D aay; \Vilij gn~y;_qii dkferrtd;_1,1,4 

_fµ,if«r tAAtin.ac~ o.rAiu1<;e :w,ith Loqi~i81)Jl. S,uprem1> C,,w't.:J.tl!1so -~: 24,·R;esp.9i\4~iii ~¢ ,,qriir•l! to. 

:~resent:evidence :before,a Hearlng_C'ommltlee:demonsttating'.his·.Jiiness-'to .. resume,tho pr~ctlce,9)": . ' ,.. . 

law in.touisian:a: as·•· condition of relristntemen\;-, Hlid also tecommendil tha! the:Respondent be. 

a,sses,;ed witlitbe ci/i!lli and 'eitpeaje~.i'if tlie prpciled\rig pur$ilailt'!O Rtile:XIX,:~,l o,_1. 

the !'onn.a1 ch4(gesread, ill p_ettb;eijt pru;t:: 

6n- Ji.mo 15;, 2<ll:7. Respondent· cons.ultea. with and ag;eed ·to·- jointly 
i¢i)tes¢nt two ~Ms.ogal' inJi.u:y cl~\mSJi(s; titi'\;'. Tayh)r (''T~y)ox:'). ~-u .~'diifo_ ·ajid_ 
Li!Wari Rou;sel (''Lawan1'), 'the niln:ot child bf Meivia: Hodges; .'iVho had been, 
_fnJii1:ed h1:.a motoi, veliiolo·-acciil@{ \n::Ncw :Odeans, A\ the finie- ofihe accido,nl;. 
J:a:i;lor \'i,••:cJriving A velii~\<l."V.:4¢fl ~e re.ar-~nd~d ini::eighte_en,y,~~eier iniiklpg 011 
Ulegal V-iiun,, wblch r-aised lssues=··cii'. cornparaii.ve- ne)lli~ence.- Lawan: was :a 
· • • ., -r "' fr 'f· ·"of\hev hfl r·,;·r:-· ·"·"efdb"pon· ·;t,rlll ~}:!:';~t'totfuwl~i :;,;\10,~i,, !l ~M ~fir· r',w1"";0 la:~: th~ :~~n!oiiea 
substauce :rgc::-in hi)! sysiem, indio_ajlhg· rI,e))t =inge_stlon. of m_arij\IIU)JI. 

p;t:t)ie.ttrne li:ii'W)is ·r~t~!jled; J.<espondeil~.falfoft'<i dlscfo:ie the :Ol(jst~*e a f' 
a· concnrreni -conflict o-l'.iitterestirnherenf m· hls.johit.representairon:·of'both. ¢11~nt,, .. 
Op. Mi ;2'1, '.40.17, Q'n \,ehi\lfW t,~)i-a,i, l.¼;spcind<i\i\ ~te_d: a. ful\;r~J~e ofil)t 
claims ~ttayior to Ptogressive-"Iiisuri11ice C'"ompanY· {Tat!or\, fillto"irisure¢,­
'in exchange:for payment.pf.the $lS;OQO polfoy l!i\iiis,- 'l;heteaJ't~r,:011 Qctob<i, 18i 

}~!;;~!v!1(!~t!;:Iis~~tXe~%tff!t\!~:::if :'i~h~ii°o~!:t~~!~::J 
4w.illi WI ~o,pli!ii)tiffs,, ~llecini!/th!? :<!"iicR di\~er'$ 1\¢glig~il-C:•, 'fije· <lefei;id<ilit 
fusuter lat~rreriioved:the'inatteY16 federal court irt'New Oriei\tis;. fFNL Tlilii su1t• 
was taier,dismi.sse.d·witboulipl\ljudica. and ·re-filed·undeta,cli\Im;eni cru,e l:!Ull!Per::: 
N.;, 18scy-0.5~8QJ • T)je lespd1dehf i. l~W,;ultj\jjlaj ttil]lc!(!iie~Y":oliiitils b!,' La\ii~ii, 
alleging __ the.compruativeneghgence·:ofTaJ.1i>c . 

• In!lie 1we,, patt ntin,1,. tJi~r¢,;r.on!l~iil iii>Pri\aoh~d.ll\• '\::ri'1riiitqiJ.fi¾ <:i~ 
t;~ger a!!d-Shaw )ab'otrt emallililf as co•counsel' on all claims.· 6n:- December -26,_: 
:2i)11., an attorney, with-ihe finn e;q,ressly:aqyJ~ed.Re.sJ?Ond@f nfconf\idt cow;eJ;M 
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Wiih bis.Jointrepj•esentaiibrtofTt\.Yior and.ta'wiirt and;tl~dine.d.to partictpaie:l'n e: 
c;a•~•lesp_on\l?nt th,ii ~sk~d. !l.:'I'.ei<.,i.,, lawJ'\'m,,P~iryb.erry,:, Zij,p~,!l!)il 'WMe, l;'!Ct'.( 

• ("DZ\¥',?~ tcrentq1Lhl/:iwcourlliel' qn beifulf of ta wan and Taylor. After agreoing· lli 
tll!"esent. La.wan, fawyei~• a~ DZW . fudoR.endently adyii,~d: Ilf,spondeiit, .of! ii½: 
C:pncj!i',:e'(rt 9ol}fl(q!'9f f)itjii~t. J,n th~ di,(ll;rep*-~I\14\ii\n \\ft4. ~Sl<•il tlj,\t fi\\ \'fltlfrlt\'"I' 
from :raylor', d<\f<lns~, Resnond1mt ihltlally-.1'!lreed to cio. so,,·lliei.t tefreno'\\ed by' 
.e¢.~)l)t1(1 on. ')'11ylqf~ \j~~iilj'. Wh.~Ji P?W'l~~nie.d o,f l)ilj!;.~\O;'f.~X¥',f.i/rtl eh)is(li/!: 
tire• 'N;,w· 6tleans -law firm: of· Oa!tisbtll:g)i; lioriJamin,, bavid,, M..iniet, an& 
'V(~s)!auer· as focal ~oul1l!_e1' al)d·:met wnh tbe:c.U~t. to,.i,pprise h<:l• .Of'ille .con;fl{o( 
lijsiies; 10.s, tt~\lgeli; qn b'e)ililf (WJ\•r S<\n, tll~felit'ter di]l\i~eq J,{,;siiop4en,1 iiild 
executed.a- sepilml'e contingen~;r-fee;agreement .exclusively wmiiDPW and,GJ3i 

Arn <l!li~on, • ··heldbef{ee,rthe" antes:•• ",; .:0 trrn· Witldl\ • ,e • ·de· • ... ,,,0 •, .. ,;1_()/f,. . ... .N.. . . 'fl. . .. MW< Yr.,, ,.. . .. e .. 14"l!l. ,~ 
atteii)ptihg to· )llfrtici~a:te as.counsel;. but.nd settlerneut was teachedJatthat iii:ne, On 
JUil-~14, )O'iS;.l,ll.'fifod a-'fe~,a\ coJllplomtou, 'iiehalf oft',J:i,. '.fwdfl'l'.l-@P. Lawan. 
iri tl]""E~eui DlsJ:r!ct ~'fl§ulai@.a, .o,n Octqbfrs fii,, 291~, lle•~?Jlil.ent}ii~~ -~ 
Motion to: lritetvene: ,n. federaJ..c·ourt astdng)<J.te-<lpen 1110 ·earller ao\iol), that bf\ had 
:lifod. 1!llil seeli'.fug attolii~Y.s,' fe~s to~ ~eyresentwii,'Lawru.i. bO:tlie. s11bi~ct,;!aim~. 
i'FNi After· teceiving, tile Motion to, liltervene,. tho• clerk of tl\e Eastem-bfoi:rict 
scryecl a·•.'1'ip)ic.o. ~i' P.efi9le11.c_¥" upo11- R\lllponitent. inzjxuci(ng;Jiimlq !'OP:"'lt llio 
• f\liiJ'g,.$\tt'\i:i.r#.ler ad1i(e(\ bim;t½t f"!l\Ji;!> 16. ~i;f so;w,i1jilp: 7 dayswotili:l rqufrin 
·his filinJl woufil. 1i<> eejocted: The respond~nt· thereafter ·J\iited· fo coneci'. the· 
de_figleitcy aiif\ ll!e, i1!•.4' \~~' wi\hdrew ll\c fiwi1i:l .. li\.M~i 20 l 2; t)ie il•r;\'15 f eail]le~ 
ah :alllicab!e settleme,w .foiiowlng: a: ·sec6nd ·medietlot1, .Attorneys ·for• i..aWlllt 
thereiµ\e~.J1etiiio.ned .(\\e QrleJUl.'l; 1'iu:fa4: ClyilDl:i'tJ:ic't Ci/Pit fo, ant\i.orjty 1o.eri~ 
futo: •~~t\(emeu; oft]!o ijll~or' s, f)iruns,·v,hfoli\vas later grnil,ted. 

On :A\1gust'°l !/,. 20·19 ,. Resj).ondenf fol"W8l'Ue4' a peremp.tory, .,..m,il\ to: 11ie 
DZW . .@ii '?iimJlri.g._tiie ,;liell\'.•. lav/Y:er)l, Xtilt.t.il .,;lls~w'~~ ~Y '.$~ttlet\ient fimM 
'jieilding reso Itttio11:ot'hls • fee· cfalm. ::m,cause· of..tmcertaln1')" tegi\rdfug;ilie ·-valldity 
<if.su,li clait)l,1,. a®rJJey,s,for L•Wa\l ;oug~t midrowe.from 1jie, feqe,<J\t o.o.\lltJll. 
d~wi\n4,;e wh~1h~rtho f•epon<)eµt·e~~\d eil:tl~lilly ~Jµ,re.111 ~ttol'lieys~ •fees defrved 
fromsei:tlement, Ort September.·4,-2◊1!!, rJZW and dIU1Jed,a pleading scy,le.d. 
''M<5\i<\n;:ti> Defuii:!)ipe· C<iAf)/ct,'l:ree Slaiti,, iw,d J;)!.;itleme.\'lt w Ai:t9moy~' Fe¥si' 
Respondent\vas, se!"ied witir .a. copy· ·otthe pl<\ading but did not Ille: a response: 
Th<Ji;eaft,r, 'tlie{fe~~uitJuilge ~••!~n7<l fo .the, case, J11P<i Mi!azziJ'Triche;Jssyed ~. 
rulli,f ~xf Qe\ljbe, 7; :2q1 ~-; qo11l;Yi:min&-!he ei,i_sto~l;o of li.esp(,ndeat:s cotiflict of· 
tnte,·es\-:and declared hi1n.ine\igiblerfo receive a. fee, becalll!a :of"his ·c,on'flicted 
teptes(;Ijt!'!Jonof,E~w,an. • . 
• • Despi\e his . failure· to. appe<it ·and .oppose: tlre :motion; the, Respondent 

no,n<J\h¢l~s appe;,\ed )n,dge. 'I',icJ:ie Mil"""o 's_wijµg to the u:s. 'Ritll\ Cil~1/il Cou(t 
of Appeals. Jhitt coiii:t,1~\et )li~riiJ•(e/1 th~ app(>al •~ be)rig u~tlmelt,filed: . , 

. . B>,< lifs a\;1s. ":'d. OIDISSl0\1S; '"".llondent ~enneth. Pla1saJ1ce 'has 'kn?:"'.IIls,{:>! 
'""1- \iltep.t),,jila)ly -v1,:il,jteil Ryle$ of. llrofes•1onru Gon,l!uct t~ (faj)irr~ ,.IQ 
comiIDlnfoate· file existence ·of \in· uuwaivabfo conflict of interest ,'ih. ·bis. 
ieprese~latiotj};. 1.7(a}Jconcl)!l'ent col\fli~\.. of. i'ntor~st1; ,:r, (se.e\qi,g \ii ci){J~Q)' 
a\\di!li/Yil' ;fi,ei h~ pljisi.lit of a qpnfli_c(ed.iepresentotidii); 8.A( d) ( condt1cj 1Wji.tclieial 
io: ilie·adinlnfa\i:atlon o'i'j~stfoe), 

4 
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EVIlJENCE· 

T~e eyi.4en~<¥.'P.tOS~!.Je{b1.(;)Il0>@4 4~#tte,\i-~iid vihich, was t:areiuil'y, coruiid~red ]5y. 

fu¢ l)f)ar)ng G!lnliJtl;te~ (fi #11\iiil! at'tl)jg fii@)ig,_j:gjjsm¢. !if: 

ODC'.Eiµulnh!, 1 .fbi:oµf?# 22 ll'l w,;itain.e.difo ili<,:re.cor<i.otlhi, WM•.ed\iJil,s,lin~ offe,;ed/in!tod.uc;,cl 

atthe firs! lieari"il.onMar l i, 2022; and an.adililional.n/ne 'OtiQ exnibi/, ii.earin!I on tlie,.\ssue·of 

tilei¢~titnaey,.vel non, ·of.itespondent's asserted reasous•in supporto:i':hiimotlous to cotitlnue the 

May. .II, 2022 heli111Jg-c~nslstj;lg ofODC $Jlibiti 21.thtoug)i '.i I. 

Res ondent Pr 'sanc'e .. dld' ni:it a'" ear nii±'dfd'Coµnscl or hli' ; te • • Mtativ(: on bis behhlf. at the ..... P ...... _iu .... , .. ,.PI'., .... , ........ Y .P.!"5 .. .... , .. , ., . 

. M•t ;:1,;2024 !waring, on !Jlo,in<iri.is, a\ vihl\ih tfui~ the:. f\S.lloy,higJV:ideric\i vi~s. i4lcl\iced,.'\l!l 

.ch,,:r&ed. 

6n Juno:is; 2011,11.espondentcol\Sclted with ancl agreciHojbintly represtnhwo. 
j,~rsonil). lnjo/)' ql#.ffi~~ts, Law Ta;!lqr ('".j'eylor,"),. AA a9J!l\ -~ J;a#ii, ~Oi\~tel 
("Lliwan•j; tile ·mmot' child. of Mi>lvla, Hddgeo,, wh6 had been injured 'in a:.:motor 
yelijcie accfde11t in-New (),leans. AHhe. tlme of11)e a,cide\U, 1'ayfor was_ gi;M,i,g·a 
Veliicle' • him.lio'ieilHiiile" Ort 'j" lite''it-Wheeiet'tii,il)tin";an{Jk aLlJ-h,m'• Wliich . . W,. .. . ,, ,..,,_,,g .e ... , ....... , .. ,_g, .. g. •--,, ., 
nlsed issu~ of~orrrp!trativenegligence:'Minor child La wan.was a:.: p~sc;11ger in the 
ftont.s\l<it,of th~N;,])i<l)e l!!)d was-it!~ injqf~d: Jny\or viiti, \i~1ed1>Y Jiql\le for tr,e 
offense of': following 'loi:r closely anil was· iater .foiJ!ti:l to. have, the ·.con1ro1leii 
substance 'J'HQ in his·aystem, in4Jcat.ln1pec~ni'ingeslio11 of.\mltifu.m,a; 

At the time he was ,retained,. k;,spontlentj'al/qd·ta disclose· ihe' eJ<is.te11JO• .of.a, 
~~~~\µTerit,cb:n.fUcF 9·~ ~~~~e,~~. irtlie'r~('.i'~ tiJ*J9.~tJ¢~1#~1BJl.QQ.,·<?.f_Q9f:1?.: clit!llt.$ 
Talyor·'atfd-.the·.mincir-child (tawrui), Ou July. 27; ·20.!7,, on behalf.:af.Lawan; 
Respond~nf grant~d a full·. ,elea:.:se of ~11 cla#)ul _;,.gafp,,t Taylor 'i:9 Pi:<>gt\\Ssiye 
Jiiliµla\\lie 96ii\R,llll1'. .craylgr'~· #ut~ fi/i\)lfer)" i!) "*i;hlill@l 'for paymenr. ~f-, the 
$1.:i,000 policy hmlts. Thereafter, oil October 1 s; '2017; he-liled-.a.per$ohal r\l)lltY 
i,.cµqti !11;~(~!~ ,CO~l't iii OrleaniPati$b;, i!(,imsJ Pr9gt¢ssjyl: (yi)lic)i, ",~ii. \\}so ,tJ,¢­
tle:fendaht's insurer) oli belialf of boih-Titjiloi: .. imd Lawan' as:co-plail:itfffs, alle~g .. , 
1he frucl,: driver's negligenq;;. Tho defendant. insµrer Jater:,.•in~yed))l~· r(Ult\<lf to 
(ed~ral 99iJ/:I iii Ue'i.i Qil~il(is, '(Ihil(stjit'&~~)i\tet dl~l,lii••~d,)0:tl\o'ut ¢.,jyqiiie imd 
re-filed. under n, tliffetent, case. ntuniier., No. 18-cv0058.89.J ·~ Respondent's 
lit;li~titfa/led IQ W~lude MY. rl~init by f..awari 11U~ging the. q<)itipii,~tlye negllge11~f 
of Tat Ip,. 
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in the Ja'tter'iJaft oho 1:t, the' Resporulent'"lii>t'Mchedihe, Cbvlhll!on 1u:ttt of Le!)!" 
and'.S!,aw ,1bo.µte,,rolling·~ c,Q,QQ\1118el. ?!' al.I cl,µm.,: (jl'1:0.ieceinb.e, ,;~; 20)?, ,im 
~ttti,ri~y wftl:f.:th¥ {itnl,;~l/re,s~(Y, prlvt~e'c!R~iiP/!_1dent'1if'a~ii}li¢t ¢oildeiil8 "';'ith his 
~ResvQnclent's) JOl'Ilt re~resentation.o(" ,both J'aylor 1111d, L/iwan; and ileclfued to, 
11i/l#i\i)'.l~t,:i w 1li~ ~/lli~. 

Pfsreg91:dii;g t7,ai, r,efmanJffon; ~sp_o!jd\\11t ,he/\, -~4, (l,T~l(\i• \~via Jlwi,, 
Deiiybei'o/,;Ziw,;,~d W~~~,PLG,.(:OZW''), to,el!rbll as co'cpbiilicl onbel!iilfof· 
both, Lawan aµd 'tavlor. Aften1g,:eell'J$,,fcnepresel:lU::awan, '/c;wy,rs qi, DZW' 
inik"alid"r1il M,1,-'a Riis"'onirrrV,fh"' co· 1Jiiw 'iitiioniflldt'aif,nl r'stin tll '-du'' 
rqi,;;eii~i! . .,;J,jkJ~:i;~~wi~d'r~-~ifr:ri'l'1iii,ior;sdofense, e • •• ,•• ~-. ,,., 

Respo,uiont 'fnitial/y agt_efr,d to _if;, so1 ,,but! tfiereaj/er ~evetse'd Mt positlo>< b)I 
enrolling:. on:1,'ay/01·'1, beha!fi 

When·'OZW· leatned'ofihis,,th~ •Teiea,.:fim1,enliat~c!_,tbe:New Or!eal\s'.Jaw fi11J1Qf 
GaTusbur h; Biin1anil' 'David ,.,euniel:: '·d:Wasliii "·'(i:Ja· 11tii·")'1Js'lo6-.'' ... g ~- .n. ,. 1 JY,-/,' " > ,all.!. . ..\l~ _'µ1$_ . I:,,'~ . '. !l,1 

counsel imd:ml:il wltb:th'.e clietit(Ms Hoilg;es;Lawan•s·m~tli•~) to,ilpptise her cifth~ 
,Ql)/Jiot;,issue:c,Ms .. :fto.d&eP, o,,;behalf,9'.f'her:son,:there;,i\~r <lisch~1·1(,ed R•J!llo~denr 
a!jd :eJ1ecu.t~~ (1,s.~j,~t~ .\i,9)jtjµg~h¢y~e.aJlte~meµt l)Xtlu,,\yelJ'With. P~W' il!l~ GJ'!. 

1\. nie~i~ti,611, "iV!l~ Jielcf ~~tw¢e!i. t\Je,P.,\\i'li•s •in ,May' 2.Q18, Vi,i1),:, thejt,spqnd!ir,t 
attempti~ifto'parlicip~toas counse\_out no•settlement:was readied at that tim~. On, 
Jiu)e, t4, 20 l.~; GJ!i,:isl\µr~lt l'iled a fo~erlll complaint-on,l;,eh,Jl( of ly!s,.F(o~ and. 
);i\viait lll t1ieEJ1itero D.istJlct cifLb\ii~Jani,, pn·O/Hobilf 16i2QJ~.R•~o,h4entftled 
a' M/J//on • toJnterveni!:,tn fedetahaur/ asfinir, ta re:open the,wrlier aotro,n'Jhat'he 
figgfillld a114:~e•l,ihg, m!o,·neytfe.esfor fepr~~¢~tlligj:,IJ)!faf1 oh:th_e,subfe~tc/ainjs, 
(A:f\er.teceivlt1gcthe Motion to' lntetverio; th,;, clerk of \lie Ei\!Jtem District served.a 
':l'iotice of;Qeflci~"'.up,onJl,espondent w,i!j1J,cti;tg him to cqrre,qt.\M;flli11g,')UJ.d 
furthir-adylj~d h!'!l .'that fail\lte tb ~C) ~b V!ithifi 7 days,wowd rc;sµl,t fu,, W•'tiliJ.g 
would be, ,r'li ec'ied,;) .Tho Re~)l'oildenl'thOieaftedltlled'to 'Correct fue deficiency.,111,d 
t!1'1 cJei;k; l\iiefviiil;qJ:oy) sJie1'iJ.ilig. 

To, ¥-Y 2019, \he pe\')i.es l'\l,ached: ,an ~i~ab!~ ,settle,fl1enefol!Pwing ,ii secon<i 
• edlaliot'r,. /1.ttciii_iey'a· £or.: La:wl\I\, thetellfu;r ,. e,titiooed the :otleilhs' lfailsh, Civil l1li """' ' • " , "" " '" ""' "P. ,,,, '"'" "" "" ", ' 

i:iisirlct'C'ilurf for authority til'Onter'inio. a~ettlemetit ofthe mirtor'o claims,, wllfoh 
wii\l later gfal)te,c1., - , 

On Augu.,:t)i,- 2.01!!; J1,e.spondenlfQ1:wardp1{a,perep,piory ~-mwJ I.a //iq, DZW Jinn, 
wa,Wilg; thf cll¢nr'i /il)ijiiifs no/ Ji>' i:1/sbiiJ:sii, di;iy •~t/(•iJtin/ Jirrfds 'paMing 
resolution afli!s/eec-claiim Because of uncerh,/nfy.;regardin~:tkvalifilty of such, 
c;laiinil, f#\oi\leys fo\1 Pai'{~.s~\if;ht. ,',• (.gjri\9e ;ii:rijri'tlfe (¢~al _9q@tp <letemilµe: 
whether tlie: respbnd:ertt Muld ethl~ly. share .m :atto);()et;' feM, ,derived :front 
settlel.llep,!, Qn /:tepl\lm~ex 4,.20)9,.0ZWanc\ Q1li\,s~urgh lllpd apleadfug s!y)edc 
"Matiorr_ t6 Bet<iiJn111.<' C9nflio}liree-S,t1it\Jl! llllil'. l)tlji!lemj/it;tQ Attoifleys' Fee~'-" 
R•spondent.W!IN<tved wiiha cQJ,y,af ilie·pleadif¾ but <lid not ftlfl'a respon~•--

6 
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Jfi.erea@,, !li!i fe~¢r~l Jii~gil' i\Wgn'°. !!i'~ cas~. t)if ;I9n'.◊tJ!~l.~ .~(ml, "l)ibhii 
Millitio; ls"?ed a /'"Tlnif' dir ·Dctoh~I" 7j. ,26J!l co~fn~,'i/~ ihe exm_tence: of 
IJ;espo.nde«t;'s coti/fjct of fnf#re.sf, µnd, deaf~r~d )i.btl lne/,g//i/w to r<CfWC• g:fe!'lo 
beiii®t.'o:fi.l,:cb)lfllh\~il enr!M 11tatiall nffr • ·_, •. ,. • • ...•... il!fl., ... ---~e,. .. e . .,.,,. ··•. l\V/, __ 

Pespj¢ 'JM J}!!\l)'i> !(,,_a\)p,ai' l1!J:'d\ip~.QSHh~ ~<\lioj>, !)le',.;R~o\\4¢~t'.i!9ft~theWJ~ 
app~ed-Jtidie Trlche·.Mllazzoh>'mlintto the: U,S,.-Fifth Circult C-ourt,o£Appeals.­
.Tliatcaw:! J.,ter (\lsmis~e<.l;th,; ~~p;,al ll'l 1/~ing·unt_im~\y: 1il<I\. 

EVIP.EI'! C!c:,h:Dl,)U <::El? 

Tµete,al:frpony,p1e.se1rted-UlJJ'.e!iuf\eq~·onc c_onsist~d'qf ~ wil!)i;ss}in~ $A4il!adli!;tlai) 

-of22 re\evant.:!'r.obafive.docwnents; 

the·testlln011y .of AttoinefMicikLEcuyen,t'Gainslmrg in New drieans, est~biished !hat 

• -ljewils ihv6lved:h,.•it\iga(ion coi\c$l'irli:igtlte te,,po11,d~! K°ent11:iliPiafaat1ce i'nwiifoh'i'lalsanceand 

ljad been priqr, co(JajeJ fiif'.illi!.4.\tifffiyl\testal;!liihild Jh/, Joll9Wilig: 

'Eew~nec~il'll.d 11:p.hb~e:call fiq)ll_.orti;,;i,ey_Bi'.4til,Katz._at th~ f/e1W_ait '!'!oii)iaii 4tvi'fitin, who 

ad\;il,e_d \lw,t he:.(,Katz).had been co)ltae½d hr-~ome-;Te,1%:, #\orriers·vil>o. \:ta,fb.ei;11.relll:\1Jed tg 

represent 'ihctmdual~ ill Louisiarta-i1woi1ed in- a yehlilo acc1dent. • (rhe, acc.ldent: in, q_~estion· 

:fovolved ilie.fa!het rui:inrhg/into the· back of an: 1 s,wheeler; re,ruitrr,s,:itt inJucy to tho minor son· 

Lav/an.) 

_potential conflict between:.th~fathor andihe enilit (Law\llJ, '9!!Cseni~ by-his.moth\'!'.); and c~uns~l 

·was; thel.efore seeking_ tb- af:filiat<\·dhlrtsbur$h a,- counse1 for :ot10 of the two.-eases, (;'he Tex.as· 

attorneys advised: tliatJhey. were not licensed td ptactice·in tiWstato' of Louisiana, anii therefote: 

Tli~ Tex~~: @o,rney !iii\\ i~c.aiy1d a, cal). shoj:\:ly 't#oi()_ tM ,a;;•-h~ll in;1scti)l¢ M<l )Y,is 

·advised-that tbere.1iad been11n·earU,1 sJate courr.ca,-e_ fil,w.. by.Re,aponderittliat lwd beeii removed 

7 
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ia.federai Murt. ,Adt/itiooali):, it'was learned ihat tb:e,maiter Ji•d'b«mseitled .on behalf of th.: mfnot 

ch/Jct: ai,ainst tfa, iiltiiet's'ilismet''foniie. p6l1¢)Clihiits,. (i'lbtwithstandinttlie' fact that.iawan's 

fsit/1h, ·~;Jrjv~r Jifthe ·v,hli:l~; Yi~~ ii1JW. R•sli~.ii\lcii1'$ iJll~n,at ~e tin\~, Re~ji\jndil\tt .¾u_i·· fiied 

's\lifii ii l[e}J11if i5/ii./l tlil:~• ipqivi<!tMlili ll. sj~.; i;'<li/rt .tili~ding-1:l)j~g !\it, ',itij#lil;ciil; )i~!)~\l;",l>flJiith. 

\ho:driv~;and·the pnsieni,er in U,.e vebi¢k,:thei:$\o,. chil.il: (Law,II)):and fµrlher ;igne.tJ:~ attR,:ne,y 

for both plaintlIDJ 

Resyortdea.t,Flaisail¢e·ililJisted ori sharfu~ the fee b~oan8<i hec{i'ialsante). ciafuled to ltave .. 

d,one WO;!<'~<! .wtis t~etff¢r,e·e(lti\JeJ!,1!l a;fe~, Tru, T~ill!• att~tnet,; ihon adyt$.~d R.;;ipondent ~bout, 

~kci!rif/f4(of iht~ii§i,,~•ri!Biriii!h41 if~ (l?/tJ.isfpicii), ¢1iql,4no,.fejji;i~i!~t hot,h t'!efajher qi# i~.~· 

.c.l/lli/..Alt\)9~g]tRespcn;tdenl~isteµ't~theJia<(o.Qtaine4w;tlv~i:lcuy~i,aeylseq,R<:iljiQiul~f\li•l, 

.It was: an ,\U1waivabk coniHch TherefQ!''? Eq)ietfciih10.neil • an</ prepared: fo:Jile • mo!lon.1o.· 

deteanine cotiilict:,-:fiee.status:dt'.ii.esponilent~laisance. 

Ecuyer tl,ien elij;,JalJl'.ed 10 tho soo:(L~wan}and motber.....:imd to Re,ipoii.denthimsoli'--,thaf 

,I cQ(lflii,tof lt\l<:!e¢\ e~i~ted 'il!i.tJi. \'!i>llliii§•''* ~eiii~t1ri1iltl¢i1; 1;iec•~~:\iie ra\i,#· ~o)Jlt! hav.e ~orp.<> 

fi\uJt .. ii;t 1hili c·ase, a\l.d'. al~o:.11~ii~\1$0 o{t)\<i\.f'1!ilt itwal a, (iqnwaiy;ible. c~m!id,·1,'Ji.eiefq\e,Eiiuy~t: 

el<J\lained lhat.i/il, wou/i:ti-ea.tilr~ separaie c(/l/n,rel. fodbe fi>ther.and·mh\ot e.hl14 andj)lat bis:fian 

was prepated io·teyresent fue· molher and also·ihe:child:irt tlils eiaim. 

j,;,p¢r1bnil!,i; wlih that e:ip1imdtibn,, Re,paridont expresseihin:uittlel'Yfandi'ng that h~ could' not. 

1'epi'•.t•~.:o,oth :i(q~:i. l;tcfiusilliey hi(d))po/)\t'agq14 d(~!:qftMr tqi?fig .a/Jli~t th¢ ,;pnflic(, 

l;fowewr, it wa[ l~\er det~@:i#!J:'\\WlR¢;pon@l\t \i!!d aC:wiiUy onrq\led !\S c9ims~) for tho fatlie,r 

LarrY Taylor.tr. ·Once ai!ain,:ITl.fa was. afrer-.lh• i]iscu,s.fon:11'.1. Wbicn:l;;cuyef·and Ms co-counsel had• 

explained itrRespontientPtcdsance.tha/ h~ c.ouidnol'representb01h std.es oJt~elifigatii:m .. 
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This was explained fdJliemotber,and olifld'.by. Ecuyer. 'theo,aller;, ihe:eliant&'~rs/Oo.dil'i~t~y, 

could not ii!>foi'Watd withRespondent'as: coun1fehlii-ih,nnattet""and signed a new retafuer :without 

Res 'ortdilnt;Plii!sanci; itdi; . , P. ~· . ·., .. -.· ... =-·-· ./ ...... 

H<\i/l~vei-, !lftjl* <Nl\6)\id)llg ,~ ,sµb!/lilJi\il\I, s,ii\-fiii'Ji"e :Sott!i')tlont, wl\iqli ~' aft\1ed a\ 

purS).)auic!l1 m~!lJo;U911; .11,espo n4enkP lqi~an~~-n.e.vpt/ie lj,s;, Jf[e4a pe~i/.o~ /P. ,.o/lect atto,hei'i/fe"r!ll 

,(demandi11rJi.S% a.[ths,selt1emen/) m:_"fhe,par1!on·ofthe,case inv.o/viiigi1,e;seit/ementf.!:w&!i?Jytf,. 

and'lawmf's 'claims; Joi/owing: ih1t•m•'dilii1on., i:lav'in~ tecei'vecLtlie-. petl\lo:t1 i'iom:Respo_ndent; 

Ecuy~, anjl i/ls:f.ellqv/ atlorheY s'atte\lii? te\f to: iiavo:a.coilversation Wiiii the Respondent whihh.was 

follo~d'\ii i!!t :~,:~lJi>itge.:of-¢ii:i~~ iifr<i#ng \hilt;\he{e.'/iil,i;: ~ cri\>fi;,t:t, •.nil tliatH~-.tR.~•ii.on4eI1t) 

i;ou\!\no trei,eive .11 fe<1, 'I1t_eyf u;:th;r millceted \),lit s~chion<;\llCN/o\ll4 plJ(iA R.~spil:riderit Plaise;/ic.e· 

in violat\i)p::ofU\e .. Pro:!'e$siQt\al Riites o!' ¢on due(. When Re•~ond~nt l''ialsatli)e ve;rsls\ed,. c9unse) 

filed.With ibe.-0ourt the:aforementfoned'.'\Moiion to.·Detennltre.:Conllicf-'Free .. S~tus". 

\lase~ on;t!,is filing; the;:gresiiling federafjudgo M~d that:l,ebause\i)oisance bad received· 

~ fe~([l'.oili;tli~ se!\lement of tji¢fatl1¢(~: (fayji?j"):cJan'¢, ]l.espo»fiejit;,'i~s fi~t entjtie!l to sli:aro fu. 

the-ft~ !i:~in-\hi;, .. ~e#'®~i1t~fpli\li\tlff pl~liii)i 9.f.M~i,iia aii,d ~, fJ4"iv•1•~r, .,,./l ilj/ei' U,'$, 

J:/lstrictJ'ud1;e '.Tr/cij•}iJ/rtlJ/zo enJer•dfi.er m ling,. Hie. 1!e,pQn!le11iper ,iii/en, fll14 fii •<!..<i. Noiice of 

App eat wtt!i. 1he: 'VS'5th,'Cii:c1d(Cow1 o/A:ff!i!:alsrJiirt)wr dela).1/ng-distrlbuiton:,of the,.sei/.le111eni• 

ju,rds ta:tl;,; clients. 

Ec'ii.J,et futtlter. t6stlt'ie flh\1) th~. 4iiay w~ sl~cm.); ~ecalil!~ ~, ih~:tjme Jii<l.gec'l'riclie 

Milaz:w: eri\eieii h<;, 9i4ef, 1:\te fUll<!s w~re r~_a4jto b'~ ~i~l,~is~4 .f,rt,W µ)i\iritlffs by :9l'd~i oft\je. 

Orleans Parisli.Civll ti:fatrid Court. '1'herefoxe!· because .~nhe:.al'Jleat,. !lie. set!4,mrn1; mQney, WI!? 

he1d in trust; &iayii,g: ii-un\ii \1ierulfo!l',ot iiie'Fifth;.Ciiouit; whicn.occurred on. M'.arc}:r23;.2b'.i;O. 

-A~ a-result;, tbe oaile:diil not becom:,;-ti!lai IJiitil Matcl>.21;_2020, 
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FINDINGS.i.WFAt:r. 

Considering af1 ·orthe· testii'noniai aitd suppottfo~ docinnentilty: eviiltuce· presento<l."'--. 

jp.oi~g ah -~!,>rio6~ti;ti1,teq<lti:Lj l(l)q cq_urt lliihil$,,l!i~ ¢on,lrril!t0\!:ijaji, ~~te~'!l1 _tiiat ihe· 

l.olal,i.h>·o,Ol)C''s • "". •·u : es· "i•ff .. ···••'co . llif . C e"'b" "u·re!iabli,,-an" 1lnis'oll ..•• ,. ·" .. ()"11001\ Jn'.W .. ~,-, 9PW,.,, 111P .. ~,. C~ .wl\ll...... .... .tt, ...... 

faois P.res~nled fulJy-suppo.rted,aJlchar~•••· to wit:. 

Thai: by .and. throu¢,. .hfa acts anct'orniss/ons, Respo1!denl i<ennethiPlailiance has·, 
. knoviliigl)' '!1'!ilJmw1tii>iiolly. v\illa..t~1l Rllle~ o_f J',rofe~lioni,,l 9!ij.d,i,.c\ l A(fiii.\iire to 
·c•oniniunlcate the· exlstenc~ of an unwaJvalile conflict ··ot. foterest in· his. 
represent~tlQn)i L7(a) (co11,ouri:en! ,conflfi:t of\niere.st)';; ):'l (~ee)lµig .to. c9U,;,1, 
aJtorofy.G' Jee} in, p1\i'silit of'ji c.OJ.1/lj!'ie~ ·represontation); ii)id iM(~)'(c~nlluct 
• weiudfoial t.o .the adinlriisfration of justice l 

Ali set 'forth herefuabove; the tommittee:!inils that ilie. eyi~nc~•prescnted 1\~IJroven b,r 

·clear and· convinc"ing:evidence tliafihe.respondent h-,cbargod.br bb.C-vio!ated the, 

followfog:RJJles of Ptofessiona,l c'.onquot: 

•· 1,4 (ii\i\irre io. coiµmunica,e the exis\ence bf$ in\viaiyable ,;9nflict o.f ii\i!'fes\:'i# 
iµs ie.ilr•?eiitat\o'\l)i 

• l.7(a) (c<:>t).curreotco.\lflictofiniere(l))~ 

• 3,3. (see~to cohect-itttomeys'·foes i'n ptiisulr oi':a confiicieil•,epreseniatlon);,1:Ulil 

Th,e Re;po~qent'.s imo,;,fng iin,d'repeate,f lll!<\Stetice ori contlmiiilg to reptesent hoth:th.e, 

plaijiliff f\i'!her· m<\ m\~ot. ~hild i.n spill': of,hjs t:o@ict ,-is c\e,y;fy e;qiliJish•d by ci;imp~lllng; 

\1!.l'4U!!Ulli:d testimony. and supporfing evidence;-jnqJ~dJilll: 

:♦. Respondent'•· documonted-hisisteoee oiHeoelpt,of awohibited fee fr◊m'wlikh-he 
haci:.bee1t.d.i•\M)lif1ed.by virtu<',.ot])!s·having.~en.exp!icitly.adyisei!by'botnTe~.i\s 
'"'4•fcotil:iliiii,i: eou¢el 6rhl!, lµlV(•\¥abJe cqnfliot; • 

w 
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., J,le.sp9nd7nt's':l)Xclilsfon,fi'ol\\"t!ie, el)Ji/lfotecl iep'resentatiow of. both thit :t'athet and 
cminor child pli\lnlil;f~ by fu,ulfu~. and ordecof'iho .. U:S. O!strfot C';ouris-@d' 

:•: Hi~ p,ersfstertt'-un~uc~essfu!-appeai' of srud •disqualii'katfo!'i tb' th~ 'tl,S, Fl1\h­
Qi\ctiii:C0u,tofApBe•l~. 

R~~-din$ Respo!liient's vfolatlo,t of 1i,ulb, of, Prcfussfonal '!'.ioniluct 8.4(d). ~condnci 

ptej\\didili Wthe :admfoistratipn-o(/ustice), the evidence P,rosenteci tirte<l,uivoca1iy eMablisliedthat 

:th· Res oridi:nt:· "tetra' fed fosis,ciii;ii o ie ·,e ontf" '\lie iii'"'e(it$ 'ofl;ioth.ilili ii.:c~ iu:id;:miiiot "e .... P .. . ~ e. !i . " ... P. P .. ~ . ,,g,..... ·"'' ................. "'""'. .. .. . . 

cbili!.follow:irigJ!ie atiill ~¢~)\l\11)1 iui4Jnjtfrj¢aqddJt/.o'nally:pre}udie~dlh•iii;/ml!l(slff,l/ot, ¢fN~n;; •. 

:~ Respo.nd~µt ~ViA.!mc¢4 q--s.igw~¢~t 4.iSF~~<!:fgr· ~~-r·e~(lii:~!t~t of. 
col)]'l_i¢1rfr~i,·represen!'!llii:ni tifal'leailt Mo'clients, tb1l.'ljeopardizfog their 
constitutlonal 6~·'All'.\endmentrighis; . .. _ • • . . • • 

o In so ooiif • ,, .. ondenJ:'hlsiJ:" eb 'aidiiec\ theJ; teco'I" ·: ofdilma es:for .. ,,., _ .. Jl!¾,~ .... -....... J .. P. . .. .. .. ."'Y ..... _.,g,_ ... 
theidaju:des; • 

o Respolident e&used aqd)tlo,;u,1,w!)rk.by •~d]l~ced· additional ~-in'<!im~ µpoiJ. 
!~gal ect~J.rk at leasUwo fumswho were te<juired tci~tteilipt.u, Jii:oVeiil 
t1,e·vidfation-oflhe Rtiles i,y \v,sp.onde1-1t; . 

o .lf'l'?it<j}:i,tfufthi,i iMieas,d UW~~~i..sat1iy1f~ ,Yqrkl~~:~fbo\fi '.1i" \J,if 
Dlstrtct Court:fortlre.Eastem D1str1ct ofLoutS1acaand tho U,S; l'1ftli 
Cµ:,;~i\ <;:o.ll):t bfAj,peaj.s; . . _ . , _ 

o 11.esHotident contributed'fo,11ie•eti/sTo1t-6f trust !tl·thecirrte&rity oflho bar· 
,md. thejudi,:i;\1 sy_i(em; 

o jl.espOJiderii _sigpi#c~Uy ci"4Y•i th:e P~Y(\;"?t ilflia,:page; ih tl1o'foi'tt1of' 
settlement furidsfo three plaintlffs.and theiI'familioafor approximately 
¢ight qr. nli//! moftiµj <li(~fo R;esp~n~.iW~),•!3i~pj,(litig{i{#m; • 

o Respondent cailsed.added·expense,,_iricludh1g:costs· and attorrte;r's 
fee~ll J:>eh~l'of affpJJ.it[e$; especil\\ly due to ReSJlO).!.denh ll'.\o(ion tq.: 
)ntet:,6rtF'ii;1•thf fe<let)/l (\<)UI:f "seti(,01ei\,! '1!\d ~it subi!<!qile~t frivolous 
appeaHo 1he t1:s'.Fifth Citcuit;:anil 

~ l)'tcrefaZ! th~ att))!!l•J's.'feeo aµµ tl\~re],y- r~i)¢el\ .th~ r~¢ov~'ri :\>Ji \lie 
parties at i's"sue. 

'5,ANG'.f!QN 

findin$ .. offoWYer misco.ndi.xct; a,corcmiitee shall CQnsiclerth,e fii)lowillg fa9t9rs: 

ll. 
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I 

(}) W)iethlir.th~ ia\'i)'et iJ;;;, y)biatei! ~-!luty.,;wocf (o~• tiii~Ilii tq th,/ )?tfl?J\6,10 tlii> 1ega1 ~1Btern, 
· or,to the·profession; • • • • • • • •• •• • • • 

(2l \VJi6.!li~f ~;; la(\1'.01' \if;\¢4'(,ite,irl!i,iili,llyi 1\i}.~gly,. •'!Fil,eg~g¢ji.tljl, 
0). '.Th~•li!M!lfitot'tlio·actual ot potential.lnju;y caused.by theiawyer's mlscondncf;:and· 
( 4}: The;e;iistenqil of any .!l1Jg~:,•ting or mi)li,a\in~ 1:Mt¢\'.s. 

1:'ler~ .. ~esp<in4ii.nf vji:ili\tffit\' guj:\\i~ 9:Yi,Ocl to.:ms cJi~i)!(s);; th~ Wi!a.l •Y~\~\11; (ii1\\h.1~g ih\i 

f.e!ltira.I ,md il@i~ of, LcQ~iil,ia.cp1rrls); oth\ir, counsel iij.vo/vea: jl)/tlie ljµw.ti!i!ii !!I)\\ 1\io: l¢g~ 

P,tofussion. 

Respctnd.ertt acteJ,wii!, know(edg'tt Md'inlentio. til~t ho.liad been expresslr ad.visea and. 

q,atlt, •w#ii otili1:'.ccinfl!cl.. 

. Respon<lent' s misconduct caused actual, tanrpliie harm; i11cli.!dibj,: 

* pel?.xe4 ii ayrilc!l.t to ~ti;ftiiiiily_ofai\pi;oliiirl~\•1y s!,<; lo elil\lt.monti,is;i\#W 1µ.~ petMsterif 
litigation; 

:•· ,/idi!i.iional;ex~•uses·on behalf.of all parties,especially due io·;Respoooenl'~ motio~ to 
ihterveiieinthefud" [ciiiirt.'eitle. f '\{hls-subsii ent"• ealfo))ie.U,S.Fi.fth ........... er.ii .. , .S .. ~ .. 11!; ....... S\l.,,.1/Pll ......... . 
Gitcilittand. . 

•, Adaiiionalatlomey'sfees·~y requiring otbedegai.cou.n,iel to.do.m-eil:e11SiY•·aJJ1ot111.t of' 
cith • ~-unriecess0~' Worli.--'tl:ierefuio:teducin' .re "ie"< b • the hi' ;· d ~attn- ·the." .... er\'ll,S. " ...... "" . . "·.. .... . . .. , ... g; .. "9 .. ,", ... Y. ... A~ .. e.,.~.- ~-a/' .. 
directtesultofthe:Jrrotrauted dela7 ofresolutloll art!! litigation.Respondent caused ... 

A./3A. Stijndard.s .. far• li@qstrig Ldi.vJ'e;<· s«1>"c(loll,f sag·g•st tl;iat ls ·tli~ basel,ine, sanctibri. £or" 

R;espo,,,l\:ri.t i inJ.s!'ow!µct 

Those:Sianclordr r.«l,liire that ihe:.disciplme,to. be wposed ''sh9.uld .. <li;poµd:upon the.:f)lJl\s, 

artd ri!rcums\J!nces of the case,·snollld' be.J'ashfoned in li,!l,lil of'.the ... J'Uf!lOS~.or laY11en,i!is,i1;1liiie, 

arul-mlit take. futo,account a~gtavatfug "or mltigatiiig, cfrculhstilrrces'''{$tartdiird. 7-:i);(See. generally 

,R;iµ¢ TQ; AB~MR)',DE], 

Thus, v;J.tl; i:¢g/trd tQ. eilcl).categtjlj< ~f.#~~oiid1)cf,.tl:ie .flli'nctioil..S Gii1)iin.it\ii~ pi:ovi4ef\he 

following: 
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-Digo~.sioi1-<9{pcilicy, ,~~tili$ \>ilif<jh. fii'e arti!illl:<(fe4 \tj !¼tl9i:te.<l c!ii;e~'tci i)l!iJlpj:t ~ufi\i)l\llqtloi,l~; 

Jllld 

•_;plnaJil'l ·"'"commendaiinnas til ·tlw level of san.ciibn'unl'osea.:i;'ii,. the; gb1enJ:1Uscondl)ci, alise.nt. 

aggtavatlng;oi,Ihltigatlna_circumstantes. 

YfoJ(itjOi,$ bf'tho·Rul•S'of Profc,sional Coh'duct .. 

R_e,ippndei\\5'! (oljll,il.jq Ji~y~ 'vjgla\e/\ aj\' f\lli:i\as ¢1u\i;ge,.fr 

.•· R1ile .of Professional: Cottduct'. 1.4 (t'ail\Jre·io: communicafo:fl'ie eltistence, tif an 
iµi_'\vaivab)e.,piµligl•ofiiJ.t~re~ i,;i.hisrepr~~mila,tibµ); 

, Ruleofir,oiessiolllll,Conciucll.1(~) . .(concilrrentconilicfofmforostJ; 

• R,u_le of prqfei(sli:(n~ 9>ti~ucf3,nseeltltig fo "!Jli~ct~l'to);iie'ys' foes'inpi\i&l)it:o£ a 
conflictea representatio.n);;and 

·• Rule gfpajfessid\i?l Gotidµ~t &.!f@(coiidµetp,ejudi~ialto.th~•illlininl!'(nltloroof 
jusifoe). 

'buttes Viofuted. 

:.• Duty to. the i.e;,ar System 

.Mental S!iite . . ..... 

'>. intentloiuJl. 

m,m· and Elien1: ofHanu. 

• Acfuru. 

MITIGA'I'ING and AGGRA VATINGFACTOR$ 
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TltoC<>llimitttie hall conSidereil t!iii'hifowfo~Mlilwil11gF«dors{ 

L ·Tiiettespdt!dent' s absence -ot·.ey;prfot ciisolpimm,>iiifraciion:i or issuiis, 

2( '\']ie, ff½i't f/i,\t_ lh,(}),O:i'lll. naus,!;!i, w/liWJe:il, \~ .mo~erate/ii~~~ aµ i\.WA~w 9( 
availkble.relevant:case:law, 

_Thi>Cotnmittee h"•'coliiildere<t ihe'followntg Ai!ilJ'avn'ti'n~).\'actot's:, 

J ,. ·Tlie"ev'tdence;estabiishe~thattlie,Respondent'neiiJi&-•nily or·deli&erately failed 
jq \'!!fi\\~q q(1J/T:i;n1Ji~L@ll j);qqi,~s. •• 

:He;w;IB giy.en muitiple.:op]Jort;lnitiei lo provide:tl1e.cpmmittee· will) miligation, 
'lo exjir<j~s rewors¢; at \il c<ijit~t, challimge, or expl~lii, fhi, OQG'j ◊lai\il~; pr to 
asslst·in:,any way hr:the:fact.'llndihg 2;ocess. To. the cotttrary, ·he ai 'lie.$1'. fl\iled 
'to d<) iq td. any i!,eg# ivhaisoe'vei, • • • 

2,. A val:iem: <if ~nduct evl<len.ced PY Responde.nt'.s• co;iiinµ"'1, ipsiiit.,nce on 
cojifiloteqr!'ilt.ef~Rtll!i.QJ1.0£twJ>p~ties,c ' 

:t •. ~fusai qfR••iiPMi;r.itfq ·a¢k.nil:iiledge tl/e°'wr\ingfill ii~\til:O: o(\he co\lflict-
. ~nit 1efusal to heeil 1nultljile·aihrtoniiloti~, warnillgs'and 1uli~gs. • 

4, 1' .s.e!fisn,. cr"3rl)' fi\utiicili]fy driyen tilotive .for Respondem;~ patferil of­
mainialrihig;'the conflkted rerreseniatlons in questi011 .. 

Sunun:lcy l'.if Evid~Jice. boating on 11dilitfo1hii.•~gfa.vAting cltcnmsfah.ccs: 

Testhlii>ny; 

M$ .. Jii,nlije:Telio . 

.M.r, Luk.e'Fontana; Attorney 

Doeumetitacy:·'Evlciente, 

At j! ~ea1inil 611 Septen:ibec :ll5, 2022; ODO fuit~ei S\IPP\eiti~nt<J/1, E:xruiitt§ +-22 V!ith ,µ,; 

•d.<liti\irlal iji~e QD.C ,Nl\bi\s,,'.2.3~31, WJiii,il J;i,.d')ie~ Jlr~yio~sJ.y iiili<i4¢ed at t4~ lltltji!J Jjel!til>'g 

on'Mar .J 1,;2022. 
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1 • .~lfl•J1Je11JlllJQl\Jf.,JJlt.lll.G• 
,.~ . '= 

;Acco.tdlng Jo: ovid"tlca.anil :t"'llU11o"raddupe~:a1«! consjil_e~ .!)y ihe.;Ci>mniitt~,, 

,: • R.•8Jl·"!f4til1t :('lail,mc'e'.<l\4 )lbt'aJJMiir a/ Jhii sc\!ediiled 11elirlllg'on the merifu'oii M'~y' 
h, 2\ii:i',,nor did le&al counsel.o~any-tli!'re.entaiiyo•fod1i\;n; • 

• .OiLQi~mq1i\lil~-pl'ji\o::_]0:ay lJ hearb)g,i'li.rcol)i'Jllltii;-o:reteivec!.i'ot1he first tfu\e a. 
niollon·/i)ed nf.9':06am;,requesting_,a· . ¢oni/mianc~ •. -and: fndfua!Jng. ibat res_ponqo\lif, 
<,,iii(wi<l~ftlf•fc@'e ot;i'.lll.~~~,il. <jqc)'.o,t,}:o( fu,9)lfi reil.jq~d th>it1J~ fy/:\\J! l q, 
•2022 (the:day. liefure1, Dt, ~c}i~lroLagariie'-Nfa,Y,.;Ml)i hadr'."lfrici~d:R':~l'.on,cfent 
. irom anr wq1·k; - ,elated activities; an<:1,,:bil!led µP.oii iliat,c.9.llJ.!Jl.sel fo• R1'/lpon<l.ent. 
was,ru;kilig(oriail',i,di;r i;antiiitJinK,thepf/!ceeilhf.!js,. 

,•· ·rrn,,fiJ¢;:dQ~l.\llleri\ hNeasJgnal;ure:pU!1loited'.ro))~tbat,.of.Ur .. r,agar<Je-1"fay, statl):ig-
pr~ds~)y !he §ati\e i!nt>.g" • • 

•• Tbe.wotion.1iaw.ib.e s)!!J;!l!lure,,of a p,;rson pU!Jlgile,i ii:J Jegaj ~o.u,nsel;;Mr'. Lulfo' 
J/ontiu)~(!'15'J!O'fer; 1\j(Foil);atia w#fipl j*,ei~i!i,) .. 

,·, .fyll-, R,gbe,;t ·i,;:"11\e;ly· fii dpC'no1!,il lha(if l• i))!)wi\li~ uj,/l,li. the R••~Ql)qew;,t,fat 
leru,t)tillke a _fulqphQrie•ciJ.tl ai!d-repr~s~iit tM ilue-fuots to, the commiitee, in ol'<!el" 
1()'. give: 'thi, fle•dng Committee 8l! . Ojl~ortunity lo. .queitl,:m- }µ!)1. "tllis W;IS• 
~cki;io;,y)!(<fiie\\'by l,!)e C:oji!witl!,& • • 

t. This placed ilie Collllll(tiee:in'the-position.ofnot J\avrng 'll)._ enrollinent of'co,wseL. 

• Toe thwroi)'.tee Mtlwt"il!)!$di)J~\1ll~ Resp<indent had not indfoatedn willin~ess 
to.-commuJ:J,cate 'With the: C1>mmlttee or anyooe,fQr·tb,~tmatter, 

•• Tha m,,;,fug" C.oin!rilttee c!w.lt- ask¢4 ODO< representat!VeiK.eiiiledy or orid 'lo 
attempt i~.conlaclihe Respondont. .. noilng,that;Re$pOncle)lthad htmg:\l)' the phone 
;1M,ieyjse4 tg1;i)~ fu ~y rf P!~•elilii\i~~-of90C.1Ji:e d:ty~~f1f~, •• 

.. •· it is inlporfuntnote·ibe¢according io,0DC ~ttorney Iw1ieri K~pnedy; ib.e l3.oat4 
. at\ol!)pl~\t- fq r~l\llh tbq µi.uh_b\!i' 1.ir<>'il_ded, ,1/,iti,, /1'1. _s(lcc¢s~; a,i\d. M!litigniiJly 
represented :that" the; day befure, the Disciptinazy• Board'. clerk's· b'ffice contacted 
R..tS]lomfont'Wh.o+efuse,l)Q .sre\lk iQ tb,em,. 

• In response. w. 6b0Jcassertlon thartlie:e.;ideru;&presenteii possihl)(' su~gested' and 
aii!ftce tu .<!ttompt fo g<>in a .\l!l1ttluu.11JJce; !he .. caJ.llllli~e.ejn ana\>1ll)dant~. o,f ca11ti91,1 
d•Wroiined iliiit/lt wot)ld be apJ.l,optiltt~ to. ii)Y~~tigaw wMt\i.er ~~· ef(ort was 
leg;itihlJite; with the comft\lttee· ·col1ch1ding,-tliat' "What. w~•re Jookln~ :for is .•. 
s9ro\'iJ1i~g lhit; .. qiio ~11iho1:,\lc~te tli1 assertioiitni:,,de"jir [l<.<isptzj~1'!~l ijlo_tjmi. and 
• !he')e\iifunac)'af tne,taill<erte4J •gtotirids:. 
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"' Having_ lde~1ilied atto,ru,_f F6ntanais· reg/stored _a&!ress, Oi5C attorney l<'.bnrteciy . 
. r,equ~ed; !.lie, opportun!t,: .to; l,la/<o a Mt<t gf. ov1deupe. of OD.~.s efflii:18 t<> tj tq, 
loi;ate Mr, Rontaill!. 

i '.l'Jl lli,l.t $\1. .. ,QQC ·x•P!Pl~nNtl~e J'/iijjjie, Tel.(<) test,iJ):ed \lil~t 011tli,.1ll~t i)lti, 
· accOJ\lpanled QDC•attorneyKenliedy,to Mt,.Fontanafa address ·at l 82?'Bt11gwr(iy, 
Sti in;l:,i~w 6r1ean,r, w.here th,;y·fuundrto:mefo mrswer,.'.th~door.:MQreover,1)1,efl'; 
~'w,'s,)gt\•o,f imY.o!l•lreinii,i/t'es_ent;'ilod h~ n~>,e'@'the fi:o'rit <)oar,: 

•• thete wJI;;·.also;no$.in11 indfoatini>; ·the id~ify .olilie,persons ltving ah\ie.,idl\ress., . 
. !ll'.\!l!l\l sigtj~gio,11:~ilt§\i~v~; in.cl.\iWii ilq d.Q?!~of • ••• 

•· The:witness,.:.:Mz .. Telio,;alsa,repros'l!lted and y;ro,te:'tl\at neither-sb,e nor-lrer,.offic~ 
l.(~d, i¢c/:ived >illy 'ciintaet o, ~0$:iil!l)ic•Jioil ftoii) !ilt9fn¢i frijih!)ii, !!i:i'ii\'to: tM 
filin~,oflh,im.otibll, 

• They a<J.,clitlc;,niiJli' !lllemi\ted ii> ~.n tl1f/i,1ephonen,uin~erpi.o,vid¢d ruid, rec1\iv¢!fa: 
vofoettlilil immedlateir, wlth,no ring, • 

"' Slje:atso te:xtei;I ftclep)li;,:,,e ti.ll!'i!1ier e,i\d \e'.(t.a me;,sage ideirl:ifying:horsel(:{!1lk\hg, 
Mi:. Fontana.to.tetnmthe caiL 

At1lie folio_w0'up hearing on Septembetl6, 2022, ;he.Conimittee-fu an eft'6rtto <ieteruilm,·. 
ihe.legitimacy vei .non, of. Re.•~ondent's· ass~cms:.of me.dlcal 1JI1av;illal)iliiy, heatd the teslim,o,i,i 
·of2 witr,~~ses:; 

Mr. Liike l'orita1;,i. attorney 

~pc !iw;stigato,A1ai1 (Jronaqe 

:Mt Fontana p);Qylged festjiiloli:,' )inde,• oath as follows, 

• li:e, does not practice: law, thereiore-.cumnil'y ineligjble (tor·the:)lruit week pnor.:to 
!he· \eiitimony ),,,and•)'IBSc prev)ciusty.'atiJtct\ve m.~li•r af.t!ie Lou~(!, liar; for tho 
past.y'earpifor t~'the,hearihg,:he·was al;ofo jlractitioner. 

·• ~rring lo tl\e_ previous M•Y. l I,, 2Q~ )1,~ai;h1,; dafo, .. prior, l<i. th~t ~Y, lylr; 
Fontan:a testifi¾h&_·never sp_<ike'with_R~spqnden~ afid sinte-May I 1,2022',;he has 
had.110' c<>nurt.unlcations with Resp.o.ndeni._ 

• '.the wij:ness was'.not ~ware 'i'ilpt hi#onw,t:p>irltleg~I.; Chase Cwpbell, had any_ 
cornmunicatlons·with the R••~o11dent: 
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;· fonfaipi ••~tjn;~~ tb~t; iie. ij•v~r a\ifiipjized ~ii)ijpb¢it, !~ i;iiak1 Ji.ili & '"'1 
representation- to:tl\e.board, ... nor did he .everc speakwlth· Mr. Crunpb.ellreaa(<)ing 
t•Pt•~e,itingliJ,. ~li\lsM!?~ llttii/.iii~ii!:i~in•Y mJ:!rls Q:i:.:\jll:y.Qt\i~rni~l\et: • 

.f Tli<>·wifoess:tesfiifed,Jhal;.at some,•poin\; Cll!llpbell dJJ,:work fpx hih,; (11onl®~),, 
HQV.'.eyei'; ~i'l:~ i/.11<iii\!; b~i!cvetMat\l l'rofu Qajllji~~li,~W".l;- • • 

, '.tho. wllitess. examined the.mol:ion for eorttinuance:and testilfo!.lhat badn~ye.,s.een; 
i,bllf t\1!iifort:oefore:, He I/liil# noted. lh•U~ flid ~<it s!fl(),\hil; d.ocii#ieiit';,4-tll:~,qt 
recognize 1ho'telephone·muntet)_jrinted on lt (50.i!:732-5348),,ditl mt'rec·q~nlze. the 

, .Z!l''Code;. did mt(eeognize tl1,, nos(offu:e li91', on, ihe qocl',I)l!'ll!; a,nil .ci>nw.)iy-io 
I>i\J,\e t p(the motr<inJ,oijti11ue, ~<1W<i~t:l])a}.1fai> not1"1iiil!Jid aJi i~i>li'l!•nted, 

•- Fo11iana :f\u:ihe,, foiii±fled •.t!Jai,;~ ill_d •see:a,sigpall)J:e ;11.\\\c)l resenib!ed.1i~ o,w 
sl • atute' but that hi' 's' """h••e "•,ui'iiotauthorized. d' tiils doc .... e 1 .. . gt_l · ,· ., .. - .•. ,S. ... ~1-'f. .. 'l - . , ... , . . . ... !\ -. . .. . . . \J.l1l: Jl,.,i; 

!' l'ontana Il~o ';es!lfie;jitha( fie 4id not oign, the ·c<:1ciifi~•\<> of se;:yjce, 

·; EidiibkniJJlifioc 24 was introduced~ which was jrreSeJ:111'<! M artother motion. fot 
cQntln- fili)d fu,·the,Respondent (ostellS(l,ly,by Atlornei E\>Iitana)·Qll N:~y n, 
2,_022. pticiaga\ii;tlii; y;itn~!i t¢s\ifie~ tbar_~~;iijd not recogpize.tJ\o· doclimehl'br 
tb.e:infonnafion contained.in it, il.O>Idid-he•file iH. 

• Flirt.lief cort'fraf'• i<>' e resematiowdh iiie:request ,,.or'il.cn"tinllaticii'fil &,on·Ma· .. .. . ' .... '), . r. p ..... '• .. '· ' ......... ,, .. " . . • . .. )'. 
i 1, the wltmlss,.tesfifieii that.he never commurtlcaied·with the ind,~idual.named Dr; 
Micl,tell'e Lali,n'dlHi!tiy; 4id Iii;it ~-,; di,; l•Wr 1;ie~irtg l\•t' s}gjiature: an,d !i.OW, 
soiightnor·authorlzed oii di'i;ned the motion &iiltracy.to its 1ndlcatfon, • • • 

• QDC: Eiµi[~it -~ilinb(# ;u;, w~ pio\1\\9~9, • !Mi)J:lfiW): M ~- ~i):i9jajiil)irit ./ilfd 
Respondent Plaisance ·on: Aug;ust<i';,-2022,iiidfoatiiig ilie itesllondeht 0''1ielieved he 
Wl!~ repres.en\~d by atlo,:ney l'qplal)n,~ 

;,.. ODd.'inttodticed Bxl,ibit,26, li.which.is a:rtteMago·hnvhfoh Respondent_pUtjjorts to 
];1.ave·paid $1QOO.to cha.se Camp)l~ll.. • 

,•' Ortcoi ag~in; witness 'Fontan,d1ad no khowledge of any stich..•pazmeirt; n:ot·did.he 
<1nthorize:Crunpbell io.coU~c.t.$i OO(f;,nor, did he,reco(ve $f-OOO filr,anygneJeg,itdlng 
\higfu<l!lei: ' • 

! Witness l?oni<l!la testified ilµ,, lie never ,<:ike.4 i;\imphell 10: hi\lldl.e 1hls )!latter for 
lilm, 

,• tl\lring_ hls.\esiiinony;):'onima ~dde<l. i!iat.at. one )'Pint,J,e hl\d'disc.ov,;red il\!ith\s. 
fl,llv,i;(s, lic~llS•:lli4 di~awearf~, ,<jrlc\ .t\li\t ~: n.ani~ had ti~en n&il4:Jit .'l' inai;\net 
itrdicatlrtg incortect!y ihat he 'liad (l].i),'eared-befure a,no.tarJ public, Be: also· 
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&,cqy§re<fQ!l~uthQriz,;(( 'ih~f.on~ l11!o h!s:.compu\~r l)lld. his ,bodrqoqt, wh\ch. no· 
. Qo@li/dedJ!l¢ly1ii(d. qee.n, c;tii;ted IM by.-C!ii)lj,~,e!i; 

QDG m'le~tigalcl(t\.l011Qrlil1Jice,.as witjle~~i 

~: OiJC:•in'l'eiiigaior-/li:lmaco:~stified\-inlo!!.alia, that he had emailed a stibpoernr 
dµ:c<,$ (e¢\Jii!- tiiteiiJ<iitdetit b~t )j\\fl ,e~eh'e~·~o fy09fd~ por a,.iem\>µsii,. 

:i".onclnsiw, 

fhe,.Cotnmittee:coitectiveiy:Believes tliat although !tis: posslbie ·tbat Respondent bell<veti 

lie Was-tepiesfoteci fot the May, H,,.1022 hetitln~; puJ:suantlo Mr, Fontana!s ~stinion)'; ihatbeli'el' 

\i,o\11\1.hiive, µµd~r'tpecii:c\lµl;rt~s; becm·u¢~<l'Sii)iii))le, sll1C~·w1ti\es~:(~ttqm~y)Luk~ F~\llan~ 

~d i)jij:t lliet\vo melJ.hlid nevetAi9ken.'I:~W~foi~: 

f,, .),)N<\i'I if ths> . .R~:iJiop:d¢~t PlalsaMo k~!!et•c:J h~ wa,; te~ro$enti:d at:th\l•May 11,:2oi2 
C6irunlite,{hoarinfi, ho. has: since lem:llea that-.lie W!IS·.not, yeti= still lldt pto".ide& 
tho ¢,oll)niitlee. wifu l!hy qiiijgl\@ji o(ev~~ ah e>ij,)analion fq(hiG ~b;ei)co; 

2. J:he siJigk:medical:fom,. pro.vfdea to·Jhe commlttee·wa.s.p.re~ep(erl'by,. 'l'/e,no:w 
lrnow :i'raudiilentmeiiiis either b: Mr. \'liilsanc hlms¢Jf bt b rl.ttbrne i'.wi • oils . ·• . . . . -· ... ,. .. .. 'I . . , " ... e ... " .. Y. . . Y .. !ll . 
·Fontana's. former· paraiegal referenced' ·m :bis testimony .. The comtri{ttee ha,, 
;ieceive4 no; sub~ei:(<!eiit .. i#or:il)atipt oiq,1/,ln.!i'ig lylf. ):'laisance'~ ~15.setic~ rii,r the 
apparently fraudulent .fihil&s;: hi:ir .Mr. Plaisanco's.positlon :os to lhe ·andor!ying_ 
charges, 

3. ·The.Comniitiee finiis"ihat,sincdhe: Septembe,16, 20:\2 hearing,.we can.reach no 
~QP:Qlµsipµ. ~i! .(er Yl.11.~fu'~i ReSI)OJ,1.denf; PI.ats.fillC.~~ -~-~~~~~ :iM: .4U~ • ta NS. 9$ 
attempted.fraud' on'the con:lrillttee;-or because ·110 ·was ·a, victiln. ofthetaraie&•i' 

lt(s.lJiiJi.oqii#t1<>'~<,>l<>,tha,, b~qJ$e:11i~ evidtnce: ~nilng to in;dl\!aJi!rui:'!nlotlt t9 absl):uct t)io 

pro.ceedU>gs)brou~,folse andJiau<ll!leµt r•ilre.l~P4tioJiil .. andJorgery fo not, !\S i?.f 1lio\llite. of tT),e 

wdtin~ of-\liis: Report; conclusi ve;------t}u{'Committe, wi/1 r.efrdin /ram. qny :c~nsidera,t/art of such; 

tn JMiitoning its-tecbtffmended Sat10tioi1. 

))!'o'ri.~ll)Neps, t)j~ RWoii.qeµt'/ p_eip\i;tei>t ni,iiirpi\i'ticlp~t\iii) lji tb.i~. pr¢ci\$_s <\I\c! fi{u~ \0 

engago.-tl,e,LADB ia-uµto it:ielf o, sign!ticMt aggraralor; wl,\c_h CO])l'!ider6d. with..th~ titiderJyjilg: 
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,c.on:flfoi-bai:.ed, cooiluct:demruid•-a ii\(nilicani sane if on, Such•'• carerull)'. moasure,l.sanotlon will 

ensure:tbat,the Responilent'inostcen~~il in.art.tADB)mioess JlJie want,no (lractic,dn ih'k~tate 

~gli4i, 

. Iii, l!/l'f,t otiR~Mdimt'.s, !1iliuro:fo 'e!i)i"J!~ with LADB: <!Ii<f't~ persistent llllllllsw.erect 

factuai ··u:esfioiis $Uiroiind'· .. tiw ii,4;r .. • '\,•1bis ciis , t!\~ Committee b<llie ·es •"atte 'i.hn ·.-., ., .. <J! ...... , ... u;tJl ... u;. !l'\1,-. , ... 0, . . ... .. . . .• Y .· 'I' . 4.11' .. g "' 

\;e!lllwi~iit?-)~isru:iii, (ii, ·g,ig~ge With\ptoc~s•' is iLnec~•w. c<imJ:,i>M~t ofiu\y apptopg~re s,ii1)i,qqii. 

ih tliis maiieJ);:as·iliscmse~ ~e1P.V(, 

Ca~ela\\'Aiihl'9'!is' 

t~ B\J.irrd, an,illor (;uiµ{,hi\ve. 41\po,ei:l san.ctlo:QS 11'1ll!'i'~ li.:om ~µpl\i:·.repJim1l:ncl;{o sh.oil 

.suspenslon:s l)~4v~on concu:rrentnonflicts of interest similar to: ihe· fucis present fu tiiis ma\\e, .. 

ih .)',i re Jlidrine, ilte;dourt upheld the Iimtt<Ps impoiiitlon,<if a: pubti,neprlmantl for engat\''ng, in a 

concuirentoonfllct of interest ili:ld for iirakmg false-i:epres~ntati(ins to« triilunaL , 20.n ;i20!ff,t.a,. 

1017,/11), .n Sq.~iP4$, !!!/;.U,lsoJn f~· Ylcfrine; 1Q0PB-Ol5';R!lli\lg gt: tl,ie J;;oiliii:i!J,a, ~6/lfoy 

Pii,clplinl)lJ '\iiifl'l:<1(6/S/l l). ¼, Vidri.n• w;isin.i!lally t<it1Med !ir'tv,nio)ings ~ee!lingt<i ptp\1(\((j 

the:wjils of their deeeaseil. p~renis.. The .. slbling,,wer.e.named co.;ezecutors·in·lhe·wills; The,.wiJls 

disinheiiled'..tbi:ee ·bther' siblfogs. However;. :ihe two •siblings' dectded 'not-to ~roceed' with. the­

ptob,ate, I¼lther;_ Mt: Vi\fr!ne pt~p'•re~ aiid fl~ •t>•iit{o):I 01i'bebaitof (!il fiV<l sibllp.g,,i \eeliliig·Jo 

wilt Su),se.<i~rn\ly, \he.two. si):ilfugs. favore.d )?y the will~ 'b,;d ~ charts•:rif.hOJlil.and,lvir. Vi~.ij\~ 

.file,1 the w\lis for prcibnt.,.pn their behalf,. w)lfoh was detrimental to: \he ihree:other slb!fn~s. The: 

iicard found. ihat·Ml·: Vldrirurneg_ligentlr eng_nged.in a conflict or'ii:tterest.and.knowlngfy filed 

pi~ad\res contain fog t'nisrepresentat/:oris', The Bciard. det<:hi:Iin~l'(ti~t· Mi:. y\d;tµi~'s m.fscondlfct 
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caused'actual.UBl'.ltl,in;llie fonn offrusitaiiotuu:id \lelaY,,but iidid'no\ cau,.e·ac'tual. lmanci!Jl'h!ilnr. 

The'onl){ aggravatlnfffru,tor Was Respondenif s sul,sttintfo.f •XJ1.erlence iit tlie:practice• otlaw. Thero. 

\yore. ~•1~f~\ Wtiiwtfu.g fa91,-0fs,i a\1;,euqii ~f-~ i>#,qt dj,~j~iiii!ey r¢<iot1; ii\>$~ilce of.a cl!s\ionest'Or 

selii,iiti, \liolil'~;, \!in ejf eff¢\Jo ic~c.iifil t)jf)'CQiiseq!\e1+c¢((i r [lie mi.s¢<?\idi!ct, ~JJ <iM :free'4l~~li):j1lf~ 

\o. :\he:. discipllll?lJ .board and -~ coop.eriiliYe; a1:ti\ud!'. toward: th.•· .w.oc;,eed!hg. cliarilqter. 1/nd 

reEutat1011,; ann·remorse .. 

. in,Jn re Brriv//n', th., Bollin publiofl' reprimanded Mr. Boevers 'f,as-ed U\)On a. conflict of. 

i)it~r.efeth,e Ji;aci With (Ill" e,i'e·c.ut!')r. of a su¢~essidn )hat was ·aetel'mine&. to be Mt. Beevers; ·client 

r_ep,ese11J;e<J: t)j.e exe9uto.'s f~the.r,i)).,a con.foi,t~g ~ui)c.ess\ci/1; .lvfr, .B~evets·too.R, cef:tajn actl9ji_s 

agajniUne )))(ecuiodn.ihe spccession !ll•iter; includin~ filfug .a moti◊)l to hav.e llllJI remove.,tas 

o~ecutor, Iiwmrdeteimined that the oxecutor wns; fu.fitct, toP.teseniedbfMr:-Beevers ariii.hfo law 

iiim. TJie Bo_ru:~ ·uph,iW'!he Q>rfunittee's ii.nciiuiw that Mr: ileovers acted llegllgl'!ltl~ and.ct/il'.Mt 

.ca1]i!i:: .. Wi:f li,Wi\l l:µJqzy. 1Ji~':fo)lo\'lhlli aggrava:(ing;taew,ra. W'il/:i>present,tw,p Jlriof dlsciplfoacy 

offepl1.~s a,i<l sµbsli!iitial ezj)~rieµce it!the p;iictj¢e.<i0aw.1\1ftignti,ng·r4c\01s.iiic\µo,e<( fyU 1¢il,.free· 

disclosm:e·to OPC•ancf coo_peratiYe ati.ii:u,de loW1U'(l tlie pi:oeeedings; absence of qishone!it·or-s.elfish, 

moth/ei• charlictet ot·r~putatfo1½ remorse~ and:rem:oteness.ohI:ie, pd"or·off®ses .. 

lli fn:fe i'!ook, ii;;, CourtCsusjieilded-, Mi::, Cookfot' iix monills; with iill but.ii\irty days 

deferred, for~ng~gj\lg. in.tM c9*flM<ifji,;te~e~1 ¼• sucqosslon:\1)'\tt:I'!, ;),Ol~-W76 /t_2i5tiQl8), 

·119'~q.Jil 272. Three siblings:J;u1e4 ¼< Cop)<Jo colll!'lete tfui si;J<,ce,s\011 offu~ir.d~ceiise(!!)ioljli;:t'.' 

At the.direction.of iwo .. of ihe sib!ini,s, ~iCook prepared •iudgement.of,possession conlra;y fo. 

the• interest.of th~-tbitd iiibiinl;!i, Upon- reallz!ng this; .the thltd sib1in~ liirei:l Bnother .. attorner io. 

protect~tidJ?'lisue'ltls:lntetests. Despi\,; iius coniii&t;;Mi\ Cook,;ionth1uedto repre.sent t11e·oiher 
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two:s/blltil!": the,Com-ffotlhathat Mr: :eook.acted.noijlfgently .. The tonowin~ mitlg~t/ng_:falllors 

were)!tesentdll<l'."ahsetfoe bf:a prlor'disciiplimitz recor4, tho; abselI&l.:-of:a illshortezt ot'·selilsli 

@oitw, fi)(i.Wf~ fl;~• d/scioM'ftQ .~1~ 4lsiripli:ni!!'i ~d al\(l 11- ~O'.Qll~ratlvo alli\tide,toward tl\e 

ptoq<ie.\liii~,./P:!W<i:iiiriii\i'd/i ·ii,_ tJ,e•pl!loti~¢; o.f \~w X~ilm.if~cf !?-012:)\ ail<!: teiii6tW1 T~\\ 'gf\):y, 

aggraya).ipg f~!itor pres@i·W!\ll;:li!r;' CoQ\i:is lµdilfere~.tq,i;nakii1g restltutio~ 
•· .. ·... . ' .. ' -

·rn in reAi:i,g,us/;-.ihe.Cburhuspende.iUas .. AuguiHor two::years, with ,iJl but,.sixf:)'·days 
. .. . . . , 

defuret!i for aflnwlng a wrongful iieatli action, to prescrt1ie., n'iislllading :the client aboui tlie 
•. ,. ' . ~ . . 

pt~scrfplj?/W. llit<ffalijtig to withdtayi from•.thetilatter ~ftet Ming slliid for mai111aclli:e by ihetlient 

(t!iei~fo' ot~~tli\'g a.ci)#)ipt). ':i.0J\f•l54'<i (W/,1}00), 45 -~q,3d.10Ji)". Tlio·Coint fo<!i)d $.at Mil; 

A~/l'1?\.acfedkm>"1Xm~1y.!"<c\ .. 601Jsed,lic;ti1ru)i!ltlll, ·Tli~ Cq~#cii$nii~i!t\le.f<:i1I<iw.lµg;aggr~f~ti\lii 

fa\lioi:s:·;,_rior41sclplliJatY,: Q~nitl-91 a:dishanesi.or,sellJsh motive,. and-sulistl!IJ.IW. experie,we fr1 tli.~ 

p(l!ctibe; offaw. tlie:mi~"g~tilii,, facto ts 0£.-fulland-fu:e di&cli>sll.te•lti the .discipilnru:y--·_boar<land I)._. 

coop eratl.ve- attitiid'e ·rowatd the -proc·eecliiig_S m(f remoteness·. of prior offenses ·wer~alSo presentL .. . 

llils.<ilfnq•_Sanctlom.:• 

11:mre::ls-liere ls no clear:and conv/ncfu~ eyidenc,e ofoconofriic-or other;CiBsb:uctiot1; as:discussed 
it.Q9J~ .. : • 

1'he1'1'is nqwewr, ·.cl.\1$:lll!d-c.oµvincjng evidence· of llQ .atiempt by '.Ri,s11ondent ~-cooperate; or-
:PY1frti\-'a'dq,ms;ftlie.tri~\ii1A1. • • • 

'J:1ie Qo\!l't.hl>1•ilJipR~~¢iip.i\loI\~-J~ilf imd ii,day f~tfai)\lio lo cci<ipei:~fe. 

The, aciual offense-producod acfu,µ ),•fill· to lhe lndi'vjdv,ils. represenied. li:L thl.s,_ca.se, 1),e·.cl;ienli' 
re¢oYof1<it:ln.oi,et~fy' d('.in~gesthey wi;re'.c!ue·y;as ile]/iY~ci, Vl'ltt\ #4\t:i,<,i'ifll increa,seli e/C'ii,ns~• of 
uonecessaiy,,prottacied ii\w;ation. 

TheResP,otideb.t was"Jieveiilteioos •~g,'essivo to.hail~6ntil iiio re)l.reaentatlomuid pursue this matter, 
notwith~lalldiµI!' QfoarN1.aimng~.tha1 ~e:had &-~_on!li,ct ~d·tJ\eso wer~. agway(rtQ;s, 
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Ni:ite\n,o;sp .. 
-NO adinlSSlOit 
No ;eroediat.fon .. 
]ialipig'tci· *gw, :eoiminµ,ii91te or'r~ond, 

coNCJ'...llsroN and ful.c6MM'.ENiiA'l'lON 

Res_£◊nilent- PlaJ:sance eit&er ne~ii~•n~y-or· delibei:a11'ly faileiJ..to engage/in the\LADB 

proces~. despft{hayiilil. r_eceived multipfe oppqttunl.tles. to p,o,Ade the Cciromittee with mitigation; 

to expf~ss· rej\j\\iS:<;,,!lfeifpl/liif art!> contciit tl'.i~ ODG'~ c!iili;il~; 

w,,- ~on:iiiui(~ 1ht!t ev~ifl¼spon<leri\ l'ilus!itrce b91leveci no-was typtesented' atihe Mey•f1, 

20~ Jilf<i~iriii,,_he s)iii,e J¢i'riicil. l~.at he w~ npt, ye\ has stilJ. n.o~pro:vitl<i4 tlie ·Cop,li)tl\fue wifu l!ii.Y 

miti_i;a\iqn pr.~1.ai)aiiqi,: fqi )jj,s a);i~ce, 1:)1e sing!~ mecltca! f<m)J, prqyi<J."!i,fu )lje,aj¢i:iiifteil was 

~resonied:-by_;. we now know,.ru; sef.fortb. li.ei:einabove; fiaqdulent means-<,i\be, btRespon4e1w·. 

bim,;elf ()~ \iy··tl1e-,l'otmet·para\eg_al. We, hlWe received no subse'!uent- inibnnatfon cx,,limung 

P\aisances abserice;;,or tb.i:nippareutly:U:audu1ent.~s~ ot Re"sJ?6Ildent:\S_positiottas t6 undei:lJ~'g:' 

-~1\~g~ .. 

Tli.e• G.oi\\n:uttee t)letef'ore agrees tba~ dospite··¢urc September. iii, 2022-: hearing, w,,; crut 

i:e•~h )io cs\\iclwiim Iii! \Q. 'l!li•thil{R!lspoµd_en! :eWusan:~~s ~bseruie waf dup t_i'(bis owi; ~\tempted 

fiawi. on.the collJlllittee w \lecansdte v;as·a.yl.cfun oftlio r1inneqiaii!)~ • 

. Nonetheless, Resj?ondent;s ~e,siste11\ abse11ce in thlis process.·an~ fatlur.e tQ engage-with 

LA.D!Hs·asignificant •ili'\f"Valor;.sucb:that ihe Committee conoiudes that a reoo=enil•d sanetioru 

• of two Y~"' ah\! oji.e l,{i,.y ('@'t\1 •olle year defel)ced) is appropdale, 
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~-

· C,tefyiiy p6JiWdetjljg't\>,e 9J~1«:JID4 fQiiv\il.diig, \io/~fi)t¢d: ajl~ evi\j\ <;<i:r;tip~tlhi,~.e'/ld,;ni;e 

oftlii;-Rzs\loi\~¢til's. c;cih<lit¢1-im_.-well .~ th~ •il&!ava!fhg aii4 i:\l,tlg,i\lrii!: f(iiMi, \i~el'lt.,....J:h.e 

Col!l\1)"it(ee,re,collllllends \!Jlit;l!i~.R~P.ndo~tKem>Itl\M;.J;'-lai111IDRe be. ll)l/lp!lll4~4l'iorp;ihe. Jlr~~ii~• • 

·of.law,-i'm-mo '(2):,¾J• '1D,d oll!l"(l) day;,wtili on«,year defh-rl!%and !\irthercthataccorilliiw tq 

ttitlliiian• Silpteme Court:Rule, '.x'.1)0.4,. :Respondertr b1;:requited to' present ~vidence.'\;efore,,<L­

B~iig. Ci>rii\nttt•W il$!>Mli•!½Jtliia, :ifui1ss. tit:te.•Wli• \h~ pra_ciic~. of l\1,w in I:ouiiiiimfi' •~ ~ 

: cq~ilitioh ◊fre~li\¼,:i:i~~t;'. ri!)d. ih<>Il&iniiJlqphri);t~e-*6 tei::qiilb)¢rids l1t'4 \hfR.i,sl)o\idti*t. be 

\\$!!Cijs~/! w.th t)ley CQ,,ds· an<!,e.xpe!)Ses: ofll\e proc,;eding;J?lll;Sllant 1o ,R'l\\e,XP<,.§.1:Q,l, 

• Tl)). Oj>lni.o~is).ll!animoJlS.:and ha!! boen~eviewe<f 11 eaclr-Comrnitleemember,•ail ofwbQm 

.concur anil who have; autliotizect Jatnes B, Letten,.He~ring Committee !19'.Chair; t<fsigiHm their 

~.ouiii~,;. ..\tjorµey.:Dj~ci'illiil<ify' B_oara. 
Reai'wg Committed! 9 

Jaine~·B. i.etten;, CoJitl1i.itfeo tlialr 
.CoHn.W.; Re\ngold,_l,a1vyedVl'.en1ber 
R~:tWfP; Vent/'i;~l'Ji.\ll!c' )¼"¢#\1>~~. 
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APPENDIX 

lluiei.4,·Cominimi6ition 

(a) A t~'i-'Y~(s/wil:\i) N'<ili\i>dY- W'~mi t!i~)\µ¢~ ?f:"£'1 ~"-~]•///!! ~( ~ir<iitil&\an9fwit11 M.~Ji~ct'tc, 
·which th,t.clien\J·•· lni'oi'n\ed. :consent,: as- defrned m.RuJe. 1.0(ej, ,s re<(Uired \>w!li:e~-li.u)es;: (2) 

• • • -",f • ·rrt '"fj "' r • ···, w th' • •• • ~ 'h''h th" cl"rif''" b" ,r· .. ,ii;• l' b6 .;eas¢'.•s.:i! ,911sµ ___ , •mt __ :-¥'.• ,_c )<i!Jl'..a,.9 , .. -~- tr)<!Jltlll. ,y·.w_. \C ..... e . ..W.,. ~ Q. !¢. ..W-~~\' , ... 'l. ,.: 
• accornv,Hshedic(il) keep'. the clieritre;,ionably. infortn:~<hJ;out tho status b£1he•matterf (~) :pron1ptl,­
c.ompl1,-witii r1,M9ntib.le req,u~s. forlnfo)l\\atiou, JID4{5J <:o,w1J.ltw.l1h\h~ g(ient. ~P!lllhllY ri,l<fyaµi:: 
. lj:irt_ita.)lon' ~ij'the .ll!.\\'Yet' il&>iidugt}// lliiri' tlif ~\•1fef kilo\i/lil \liat'tlte {\j<lnt·expectJJ assilltiirlce not 
:~etmiffod byihe'Rules :of P;<if-essioru\L Conduct or oihei-law. • 
:@m J~#i>Rsl,l,al) giy~ft\e ,>li~ni iiiffi~i~itl µ,fo,'iilatlojl )li,i,J<)r.ligiP,aieJnt,jllig<#\tly'.iij qecl$r<ip,s­
conceni'fug;the objectives of \bi; represenwtion mtil the'meallS by which theyaro tot,,; j)Utsue<i 
( e) A- l.ilWYer y,ho, proy.ide~ aJ)y fo,lll1, o.t'...fin<Jllcl!ll. assis!aJtcl" io, a;pl/el\\;d.urifig J:!1¢ C~l)* p(a, 
,eprest\<i tajion -~~Mt prior _iQ ptov_i.dink '.•~l'l',!iiiM,iiil. _a!l_si staric~, fnf o(lll: the·ollent lit wriifng,of the. 
ienns-and condJi:i:ons·under, whlch-1!Ucktrnanclalassi,,tance ls .. made; )noludfug·liut·.not'Jimit~g io;. 
••~Ym•iit ,0W1Mio_i1s, 'lli.f 1mJ\ositi9') ,\ict ~!ii- o(!J*r;:st ¢r othl#''\ilii,;tges, ~n<l 'tJ'!e J~oiii:\ <il,d. 
liinitatfons imposed.upon lavqerll ·~tovtdlng, ffuanctal •assistance !IS set.fotth ln .Rule 1.8( e): 

R,1Jl.S ~.?, Co,Wk(o:(Ip,\tf~st:a.Ct\tt,ent i';Ifouts 

(a) ?1<ceJit as 11/i)tjded \iii>i\r!ii;i'aph.(l\), !\. Ta:1)'~t &\i!!ll:no.t/epre$0Ij( a cliehfjf the repr~eil)!itlii11 
,jnvolves-.-a.concurreut ·collflict :of-irtterest. A ·ccncutrent confilci of interest .. exists iii .(1) th•• 
.1:epi;e,~niatjop, of OI)JI- di"l\t :will Q~ d.irec\lir aqye(S', lo !'cllqther ~lilii:tt; dr. en. til!l,i:e is, !tsiglill:ii)fl\i( 
iisk''tl\ijt'thii·re!iiesent\lifon· of one .?r'lhiite .6\i_ei>t,vwill be marerially liinitetl bi(the, laWj'er's' 
·,:esponslliilitiesti> another-client, a.fo;meqilioril oi:a third_pers.op oc.by-a:pefS'olli11 ili,emstcgf t)lis 
Javder, •• • 

,R,,li) ~;~1 Caitdot J'ii~/lrd t~e 1,'iib'uriill 

(l\) A \t\w:ter,s_li~tl i,;ot Jlrtf!.v.>ingly.: U):~e:.~ faJsfstateii\ef\t _9f !)ict §r)~'/i'; til •,lHtmn:ai or r,ul to 
•ccil-rectafulse stlltemenl of m>rter1al:fact odaw-prevtously:made tQ;the-triounal.by the lawyer; (2)' 
fail Jo discJose·tq t)w tri],unitl legalal\!ll9!.\iy iil. t~ .. co!llrgl,lihi!; Mi•dictioi,. ki:towii' i9 tliela!ef ~i}<i, 
\,,fd!tectly-auve,;s,; to.tho-potition:af the ·ctfonlanll-not disefosecl by."opposlng· co\ti!Sel; o, (31 off et 
e0dertci that'the'iawye1-Jqi.owatohe:llilse.Jf;a'(awyer, tli.o lawyei'.'s ~l!OI1f,.or a\Vl\ttess·pa\l@.hy 
·tl)~ )a'//S'er,:hjlli o.tfe!'.1i&in~t,eri1i) ~vl<}.ence.imc\ t1ie. \a:':"1•rc<i/il•~ tii \<11!\V! ofiii\~als/zy, \hr lam:et 
shaii take.reasonallle remedial. rheasti/es -including, if necessary, dis,;losure.to-tl'ie,ltiburu,.L A 
fo,wyer,m_ey l'."fiise:to offer ev,ldence, qib,erthan the te~iimqµy,t,f¥ d,f,ti<latil ii(a, ~rln:ii.rt,tl,rnaf\.er, 
tl;il;tihe lawyer reasqhilblj. 1:ieliev.e"s fa :(also. 
(b) A.!awyei who.represents a clien).in.an •4judicatlve.1'roceoding an<l who knowsthat,a_pur§o11 
• e 'd • fo en , .. · iii, on ...... or haii eo:· a ed·ii.-ci:iiriiiial or: '"'udWonf co111l\ict·tdated'.io tl\:e \lit\'.~--- g\ijl;!o _, .. g?gu:>~' . . ·. g_g_ . . ' ., .. " ""'' ..... ' '.' .• ...... ,, 
vrnco~ shall rake.reasortabl~ r~medial. ·measures, including, if l'lecessazy, 'disclosure to. tli.e. 
trib1W~t... . . . . . ., . . 
(c):tli¢ dritie,-sfared.- i\i-.~ag;aphs,Ci\)aild{b) Mnt[nue to ine conclusion·oftho·j,'n'(iceeding-an:d 
ll-Ptily eyendf ()()mplia11~ re~uires disclosure Qf fnfonnaiiol) 0U1enyise p_roi!',ct¢ by''l!.ule'l,6. 
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(cij.IV:,:,ili ll!!'Jiru:tfprol;~-i)illiig; ii Iawye1'ifuill Worm the fdbtiual i,ifa\i hlatetlai fucti! knovm to' the 
hiw;,er:1iiahvili enable the iribmiatlo. imilre . .in; infonn.ed.<\e<iiilfon,.wlicther.or not th~:.:t\wl:!! jlIO 

~Jtyeii,~1. • 

Jtls,J?,ofo.ssfonal niis.eondu~Hor nlawyedo; 

(&iiiniiagein conduct fuat is yrojuilicial to: the: adm.inisb:auon of jusi:ice;., 
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" 2 a xv 

LOUISIANA ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY BOARD 
2800 Veterans Memorial Blvd., Suite 310 

Metairie, Louisiana 70002 
Phone: (504) 834-1488• Fox: (504) 834-1449 • 1-800-489-8411 

Website: www.Jadb.org 

M:r. KennethM. Plaisance 
Attorney at Law 
1148 Silber Rd Apt 1123 
Houston, TX 77055· 

December g, 2022 

Mr. Christopher Kiesler 
Deputy Disciplirulry Counsel 
4000 S, Sherwood Forest Blvd 
Suite607 
Baton Rouge, LA 708i6 

RE: REPORT OF HEARING COMMITI'.EE 
KENNETH M. PLAISANCE 

DOCKET NO. 21-DB,066 

Dear Parties of Record: 

Enclosed is the Heaiing Committee's Recommendation filed with the Board on 
December 9, 2022. 

Pursuant to Louisiana Supreme Court Rule XIX, §24(G), you have twenty (20) days 
from the mailing or electronic transmission of the hearing committee's report in which 
to file a notice of objection to the report. If an objection is filed by either party, the 
matter will be docketed for appellate review by fue Disciplinary Board. 

If no objections are filed, the matter will be filed wifu fue Louisiana Supreme Court for 
review and final order. 

In addition, attached is the statement of costs incWTed in the referenced matter. 

/db 
Enclosure(s) 

1 copy of Hearing Committee Report 
1 copy of cost statement 

Kindest regards, 

~f)~ 

Donna P. Burgess 
Sr. Docket Clerk 
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I 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

JN RE: KENNEI1l M. PLAISANCE 
DOCIIBTNO. 21-DB-066 

I, Donna L. Roberts, the undersigned Administrator for the Louisiana Attorney 

Disciplinary Board, certify that a copy of the foregoing Hearing Committee Report 

and Initial Cost Statement has been mailed to the Respondent or his/her Attorney 

of Record, by E-mail and/or United States Mail and E-Filed to the Office of 

Disciplinary Connsel, this 9th day December, 2022 at the following address: 

Mr. Kenneth M, Plaisance 
Attorney at Law 

1148 Silber Rd Apt 1123 
Houston, TX 77055 

Mr. Cbristipher K:ielser 
Deputy Disciplinary Counsel 

4000 S. Sherwood Forest Blvd . 
Suite607 

Baton Rouge, LA 70816 

DonnaL. Roberts 
Board Administ1'ato1• 
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THE LOUISIANA ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY BOARD 
2800 "Veterans Memorial Blvd Suite 310 

Metairie, Louisiana 70002 

COST STATEMENT 
ORIGINAL 

Name: Kenneth MP!aisance 
1148 Silber Rd Apt 1123 

Statement Date: 12/09/22 

Houston, TX 77055-

Case/ Complaint Date 

0038024 11/05/20 

21-DB-066 12/13/21 

21-DB-066 02/26/22 

21-DB-066 02/26/22 

21-DB-066 04/13/22 

21-DB-066 04/18/22 

0038024 04/22/22 

0038024 04/22/22 

2l~DB-066 04/26/22 

21-DB-066 04/28/22 

21-DB-066 05/02/22 

21-DB-066 05/02/22 

21-DB-066 05/02/22 

21-DB-066 05/02/22 

21-DB-066. 05/05/22 

Description 

Deposition 
Sworn statement of respondent 10/05/20 P.O.# 20957 
V#:20948 VEN:Associated Reporters, Iuc. Ck#:4566 

Fonnal Charges Filed 
12/13/2.021 Formal Charges-Formal Charges 

Other - (See Memo) 
Conference call 02/08/2022 
V#-:22573 VEN:Prerniere Global Services Ck#:5650 CkD:3/15/2022 

Other- (See Memo) 
Conf"erence call 02/02/2022 
V#:22573 VEN:Premiere Global Services Ck#:5650 CkD:3/15/2022 

Other-(See Memo) 
Online search 04/28/2022 
V#:22831 VEN:TransUnion Risk & Alt.emative Data Solutions 

Witness Fee 
Wimess fees for deposition 4/27/2022 
V#:22741 VEN:Frnncis Valteau Ck#:5727 CkD:4/2512022 

Investigation 
Staff investigator expense to attempt service of subpoena on witness at 
237 W Main St New Iberia LA 4/20/2022 

Investigation 
Staff investigator expense to serve subpoena to witness at 237 W Main 
St New Iberia LA 4/20/2022 

Other M (See Memo) 
Couference call 04/25/2022 
V#:22854 Vfilf:Prcmiere Global Services Ck#:5791 CkD:5/13/2022 

Other M{See Memo) 
Courier fees 4/25/2022 
V#:22818 VEN:Federal Express CkJl.:5778 CkD:5/13/2022 

Other M (See Merna) 
- Staff investigator expense to serve Subpoena to Franklin G Shaw at 512 

E Boston. St Covington LA 70433 4/29/2022 
Other M (See Memo) 

Staff investigator expense to serve subpoena to Michael JEcuyer at 
1100 Poydras StNewOrleaus LA 70163 4/29/2022 

Other• {See Memo) 
Staff investigator expense to attempt to serve subpoena to Ferdinand 
Valteauill at 237 Main St New Iberia LA 70560 5/2/2022 

Other M (See Memo) 
Staff investigator expense to serve subpoena to Ferdinand Francis 
Valteau Ill at 107 Stockstill St New Iberia LA 70563 5/3/2022 

Other - (See Memo) 
Courier chal'ges 4/27/2022 
V#:22819 VBN:FederalEx.press Ck#:5778 CkD:5/13/2022 

Charge 

$299.00 

$10.00 

$0.15 

$9.10 

$0.40 

$172.96 

$92.00 

$96.31 

$0.75 

$20.81 

$57.21 

$164.60 

$107.21 

$21.!8 
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THE LOUISJANAATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY BOARD 
2800 "Veterans Memorial Blvd. Suite 310 

Metairie, Louisiana 70002 

COST STATEMENT 

NalUe: Kenneth M Plaisance 
1148 Silber Rd Apt 1123 

Statement Date: 12/09/22 

Houston, TX 77055~ 

Case/ Complaint Date 

21-DB-066 05/05/22 

0038024 05/09/22 

21-DB-066 05/26/22 

21-DB-066 06/24/22 

21-DB-066 08/26/22 

21-DB-066 08/26/22 

21-DB--066 09123/22 

2!-DB-066 !0/17/22 

21-DB-066 l'l/09/22 

Thank You. 

Description 

Depo.sition Transcript Fee 
Minimum fee for Ferdinand Valteau, ID 4/27/2022 
V#:22806 VEN:Associated Reporters, Inc. Ck#:5767 CkD:5/13/2022 

Deposition 
Deposition of witness Ferdinand Valteau ID 5/5/2022 
V#:22803 VEN;Associated Reporters, Inc. Ck#:5767 CkD:5/13/2022 

Other~ (See Memo) 
Conference call 05/02/2022 
V#:22949 VEN:Premiere Global Services Ck#:5866 CkD:6/1512022 

Deposition Transcript Fee 
Swom statement of respondent 5/11/2022 
V#:23013 VEN:Associat'ed Reporters, Inc. Ck:#:5894 CkD:6/30/2022 

Other~ (See Memo) 
Conference call 08/10/2022 
V#:23247 VEN:Promiere Global Seivices Ck#:6058 CkD:9/1/2022 

Other - (See Memo) 
Conference call 08/17/2022 
V#:23247 VEN:Premiere Global Services Ck#:6058 CkD:9/1/2022 

Other~ (See Memo) 
Staff attomey expense to attend hearing 9/23/2022 
V#:23359 VEN:Christopher Kiesel Ck#:6125 CkD:9/29/2022 

Hearing Transcript Fee 
Hearing 9/23/2022 
V-#:23473 VEN:Associat.ed Reporters, Inc. Ck#:6202 

Suspension 
Pending final judgment 
Pursuant to Rule XIX, Section 10.l(c) 

Balance: 

Charge 

$143.00 

$312.40 

$0.90 

$379.25 

$22.43 

$26.08 

$86.13 

$379.25 

$1,500.00 

$3,958.33 

i 
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

IN RE: I<ENNETII M. PLAISANCE 
DOCKET NO. 21-DB-066 

I, Donna L. Roberts, the undersigned Administrator for the Louisiana Attorney 

Disciplinary Board, certify that a copy of the foregoing Hearing Committee Rep01t 

and Initial Cost Statement has been mailed to the Respondent or his/her Attorney 

of Record, by E-mail and/or United States Mail and E-Filed to the Office of 

Disciplinary Counsel, this 9th day December, 2022 at the following address: 

.Mr. Kenneth M. Plaisance 
Attorney at Law 

1148 Silber Rd Apt 1123 
Houston, TX 77055 

Mr. Clu·istopher Kielser 
Deputy Disciplinary Counsel 

4000 S. Sherwood Forest Blvd 
Suite 607 

Baton Rouge, LA 70816 

DonnaL. Robert<; 
Board Administrator 
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Docket# 

21-DB-066 

·~ 
"F\led-Qn 

LOUISIANA ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY BOARD 

IN RE: KENNETH M. PLAISANCE 

DOCKET NUMBER: 21-DB-066 

RECOMMENDATION TO THE LOUISIANA SUPREME COURT 

............................................................................. , 

INTRODUCTION 

This attorney disciplinary matter arises out of f01mal charges filed by the Office of 

Disciplinary Counsel (11 ODC11

) against Kenneth M. Plaisance (11Respondent11

), Louisiana 

Bar Roll Number 19738.1 ODC alleges that Respondent violated the folJowing Rules of 

Professional Conduct: 1.4, 1.7(a), 3,3,2 and 8.4(d),3 

PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

The formal charges wet'e filed on December 13, 2021. Respondent filed an answer 

to the charges on January 4, 2022, in which he denied the allegations of misconduct in the 

formal charges. A scheduling conference was held on February 2, 2022, at which time the 

parties selected May 11-12, 2022, as hearing dates. On April 11, 2022, Respondent filed 

a motion to continue the hearing, stating that he was still attempting to retain an attorney 

and that discovery was incomplete. The motion was denied by order signed April 18_, 2022. 

On April 251 2022, Respondent filed a motion for summary judgment, which was denied by 

order signed Aptil 27, 2022. On May 9, 2022, attorney Luke Fontana purportedly sought 

1 Respondent was admitted to the practice of law In Louisiana on October 6, 1989, Respondent is currently eligible 
to practice law. 
2 As discussed later in this Recommendation, the reference to Rule 3.3 (Candor Tow11rd the Tribunal), as opposed to 
Rule 3.1 (Meritorious Claims and Contentions), in the formal charges appears to be inaccurate and may have been a 
typographical CITO!". 
1 The attached Appendix contains the text of these Rules, as well as the text of Rule 3.1. 

11/3/2023 

Petitioner's Exhibits_Plaisance_000066



T 1 1 

to enwll as counsel for Respondent by filing a motion. to continue~ again stating that 

discovery was incomplete. The motion to continue was denied by order signed the same 

day. On May 1 I, 2022, another motion to continue purportedly was filed by Mr. Fontana, 

attaching a doctor's note which indicated, in pertinent part, that Respondent was 11 unable to 

attend scheduled meeting due to health concerns. 0 Mr. Plaisance and Mr. Fontana did not 

appear for the hearing on May 11, 2022, and attempts to contact Mr. Fontana were 

lllisuccessful. The motion to continue was denied, and tl1e hearing proceeded before 

Hearing Committee No. 9 ("the Comrnittee").4 Deputy Disciplinary Counsel Robert S. 

Kennedy appeared on behalfof ODC. 

After the May 11th hearing, ODC and Respondent filed briefs with the Board which 

contained conflicting evidence as to whether Mr. Fontana was actually retained to represent 

Respondent. By order signed August 10, 2022, the Committee Chair re-opened the 

proceeding for the limited purpose of determining whether Mr. Fontana represented 

Respondent. A hearing was scheduled for September 23, 2022 and was held on that date 

before the Committee. Deputy Disciplinary Counsel Christopher Kiesel appeared on behalf 

of ODC, Respondent failed to appear, nor did counsel appear 011 his behalf. 

On December 9, 2022, the Committee issued its report in this matter, finding that 

Respondent had violated the Rules of Professional Conduct as charged, The Committee 

recommended that Respon·derit be suspended from the practice of law for two years and 

one day, with one year defetTed. The Committee also recommended that Respondent be 

4 Members of the Committee included James B. Letten (Chair), Colin W. Reingold (Lawyer Member), and Robert P. 
Ventura (Public Member). 
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assessed with alJ costs and expenses of the proceedlllg pursuant to Rule XIX, Section 10.1. 

ODC did not object to the rep01t. On December 29, 2022, Respondent objected to the 

Commlttee1s report and its finding that he had violated the identified rules. He also 

requested that the rej)0tt "be overruled, denied and declared to [sic] harsh of a sanction," 

ODC's pre-argt1ment brief was filed on March 21, 2023. Respondent's pi;e-argument brief 

and response to ODC's pre-argument brief was filed on April 3, 2023. Oral argument 

before Panel '1C" of the Board on was held April 201 2023.5 Mr. Kiesel appeared on behalf 

ofODC. The Respondent did not appear. 

FORMAL CHARGES 

The formal charges read, in pertinent part: 

On June 15, 2017, Respondent consulted with and agreed to jointly 
represent two personal injury claimants, Larry Taylor ('1Taylor"), an adult, 
andLawau Roussel [sic] (''Lawan"), the minor child ofMelvia Hodges, who 
had been tnjured in a motor vehicle accident in New Orleans. At the time of 
the accident, Taylor was driving a vehkle when he rear-ended an eighteen­
wheeler making an illegal U-turn, which raised issues of comparative 
negligence. Lawan was a passenger in the front seat of the vehicle, Taylor 
was ticketed by police for the offense of following too closely and was later 
found to have the controJied substance THC in his system, indicating recent 
ingestion of marijuana. 

At the time he was retained, Respondent failed to disclose the 
existence of a concurrent conflict of interest inherent in his joint 
representation of both clients. Ou July 27, 20)7, on behalf of Lawan, 
Respondent granted a full release of all claims against Tay I or to Progressive 
Insurance Company (Taylor1s auto insurer), in exchange for payment of the 
$15,000 policy limits. Thereafter, on October 18, 2017, he filed a personal 
injury action in state, court in Orleans Parish against Progressive (who was 
also the defendant's insurer) on behalf of both Taylor and Lawan as co­
plaintiffs, alleging the truck driver1s negUge.nce. The defendant insurer later 
removed the matter to federal co tut in New Orleans. [FNl. This suit was later 
dismissed without prejudice and re-filed under a different case number: No. 

5 Members of Panel "C" Included Paula H, Clayton (Chair), Aldric C, ("Ric") Poirier, Jr. (Lawyer Member), and 
Susan P. Desormeaux (Public Member). 
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18-cv-05889.J The respondent's lawsuit faired to include any claims by 
La wan alleging the comparative negligence of Taylor. 

In the latter part of 2017, the respondent approached the Covington 
firm of Leger and Shaw about enrolling as co-counsel on all claims. On 
Decembel' 26, 2017, an attorney with the firm expressly advised Respondent 
of confHct concerns with his joint representation of Taylor and Lawan and 
declined to participate in the case, Respondent then asked a Texas law firm, 
Derryberry, Zipps, and Wade, PLC, (11DZW11

) 1 to enroll as co-counsel on behalf 
of Lawan and Taylor, After agreeing to represent Lawan, lawyers at DZW 
independently advised Respondent of his concurrent conflict of interest in the 
dual representation and asked that he withdraw from Taylor's defense, 
Respondent initially agreed to do so, then retrenched by em·olling on Taylor's 
behalf. When DZW learned of this, the Texas firm en1isted the New Orleans 
law firm of Gainsbmgh, Benjamin, David, Meunier, and Washauer as local 
counsel and met with the client to appl'ise ber of the conflict issues. Ms. 
Hodges, on behalf of her son, thereafter discharged Respondent and executed 
a sepamte contingency fee agreement exclusively with DPW and GB. 

A mediation was held between the parties in May 2018, with the 
respondent attempting to participate as counsel, b11t no settlement was reached at 
thnttime. On June 14, 2018, GB filed a federal complaint on behalf of Ms. 
Hodges and Lawan in the Eastern District of Louisiana. On October 16, 2018, 
Respondent filed a Motion to Intervene in federal court asking to re-open the 
earlier action that he had filed and seeking attorneys' fees for representing La wan 
on the si1bject claims, (FN2. Afte1· receiving the Motion to Intervene, the clerk 
of the Eastern District served a 11Notice of Deficiency11 upon Respondent 
instrticting him to correct the filing, and further advised him that failure to do 
so within 7 days would result in his filing would be [sic] rejected. The 
respondent thereafter failed to correct the deficiency and the clerk later withdrew 
the filing.] In May 2019, the parties reached an amicable settlement following a 
second mediation. Attorneys for Lawan thereafter petitioned the Orleans Parish 
Civil Disbict Court for authority to enter into a settlement of the mi11or1s claims, 
which was later granted. 

On August 15, 2019, Respondent forwarded a peremptory e-mail to the 
DZW firm warning the client's lawyers not to disburse any settlement funds 
pending resoh1tion of his fee claim, Because of uncertainty regal'ding the 
validity of such c_l!).ims, attorneys for Lawan sought guidance from the federal 
court to determine whether the respondent could ethically share in attorneys1 fees 
derived from settlement. On September 4, 2019, DZW and GB filed a pleading 
styled 11Motion to Determine Conflict-Free Status and Entitlement to Attorneys1 

Fees." Respondent was served with a copy of the pleading but did not file a 
response. Thereafter, the federaljudge assigned to the case, Jane Milazzo Triche, 
issued u ruling on October 7, 2019, confirming the existence of Respondent's 
conflict of interest and declared him ineligible to receive a fee because of his 
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conflicted representation of Lawan. 

Despite his failure to appear and oppose the motion, the Respondent 
nonetheless appealed Judge Triche Milazzo1s ruling to the U.S. Fifth Circuit 
Court of Appeals. That court later dismissed the appeal as being untimely filed, 

By his acts and omfasions, respondent Kenneth Plaisance haB knowingly 
and intentionally violated Rules of Professional Conduct 1.4 (failure to 
communicate the existence of an un-waivable conflict of interest in his 
J'epresentation); 1. 7(a) (concurrent conflict of interest); 3.3 (seeking to collect 
attorneys1 fees in pursuit of a conflicted representation); 8.4(d)(conduct 
prejudicial to the administration of justice), 

THE HEARING COMMITTEE'S REPORT 

EVIDENCEffESTIMONY INTRODUCED AT THE HEARINGS 

In its December 9, 2022 report, the Committee noted that QDC Exhibits 1-22 were 

introduced into evidence at the May 11, 2022 hearing. Witnesses at the May 11 th hearing were 

Michael Ecuyer, the complainant in this matter, and Janine Telio. The Committee described Mr. 

Ecuyer's testimony concerning the Respondent's participation in the underlying lawsuit at issue, 

particularly Respondent's conflict of interest in the lawsuit. Ms. Telio's testimony also was 

discussed in the Committee's report; her testimony related to ODC's unsuccessful efforts to locate 

Mr. Fontana prior to the May 11th hearing, 

ODC Exhibits 23-31 were intTOduced at the subsequent September 23, 2022 hearing, 

Witnesses at this hearing included attorney Luke Fontana, Jr. and Allen Grimmis, an ODC 

investigator. In Mr. Fontana's testimony, he basically denied representing or filing pleadings on 

behalf of Respondent in this disciplinary matter, and his testimony was described in detail in the 

Committee's repol't. The Committee noted that Mr. Grimmis testified that, among other things, 

he had emailed a subpoena duces tecum to Respondent, but had not received records or a response 

from him. Hrg, Comm. Rpt., p. 16. 
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THE COMMITTEE'S FINDINGS OF FACT 

In its report, the Committee appears to find that the formal charges, as alleged, were proven 

by ODC. id. at pp. 5, 10. As to the issue of whether Mr. Fontana represented Respondent in this 

matter, the Committee determined: 

The Committee collectively believes that although it is possible that 
Respondent believed he was represented [by Mr. Fontana] for the May 11, 2022 
he~ing, pursuant to Mr, Fontann1s testimony, that belief would have, under the 
circumstances, been unreasonable, since witness (attorney) Luke Fontana testified 
that the two men had never spoken, Therefore: 

1. Even if the Respondent Plaisance believed he was represented at the May 11, 2022 
Committee hearing, he has since learned that he was not, yet has still not provided 
the committee with any mitigation or even an explanation fat· his absence; 

2. The single medical fotm provided to the committee was presented by, we now 
!mow, fraudulent means1 either by Mr. Plaisance himself or by attomey/witness 
Fontana's former paralegal referenced in his testimony. The committee has received 
no subsequent information explaining Mr. Plaisance's absence; nor the apparently 
fraudulent filings; nor Mr. Plaisance1s position as to the tmderlying charges; [and] 

3. The Commlltee finds that since the September 16, 2022 hearing, we can reach no 
conclusion as to whether Respondent Plaisance1s absence was due to his own 
attempted fraud on the committee, or because he was a victim of the paralegal. 

It is important to note that because the evidence tending to indicate an intent 
to obstruct the proceedings through false and fraudulent representations and 
forgery is not, as of the date of the writing of this Report, conclusive -- the 
Committee will refrain from any consideration of such in fashioning its 
recommended sanction. 

Id. at p. 18. 
RULES VIOLATED 

The Committee·also determined that ODC established that Respondent violated the Rules 

of Professional Conduct as charged, The Committee stated as follows: 

As set forth hereinabove, the Committee finds that the evidence presented has 
proven by clear and convincing evidence that.the respondent has -- as charged 
by ODC -- violated the following Rules of Professional Conduct: • 

I .4 (failure to communicate the existence of an un-waivable conflict of 
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interest in his representation); 

I. 7( a) ( concurrent conflict of interest); 

3.3 (seeking to collect attorneys' fees in pUl'suit of a conflicted representation); 
and 

8.4(d) (conduct prejudicial to theadminisb'atio11 ofjustice). 

The Respondents knowing and repeated insistence on contin\ling to 
represent both the plaintiff father and minor child in spite of bis conflict -- is 
clearly established by compelling, unqualified testimony and supporting 
evidence -- including: 

Respondent's documented insistence on receipt of a prohibited fee from which 
he had been disqualified by virtue ofhis having been explicitly advised by both 
Texas and Louisiana counsel of his un-waivable conflict; 

Respondent1s exclusion from the conflicted representation of both the 
father and minor child plaintiffs by finding and order of the U.S. District 
Court; and 

His persistent-- unsuccessful-- appeal of said disqualification to the U.S . 
. Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals. • 

Regarding Respondent's violation of Rule of Professional Conduct 8.4(d) 
(conduct prejudicial to the administration of justice), the evidence presented 
unequivocally established that the Respondent1s protracted insistence on 
representing the interests of both the father and minor child following the auto 
accident and injuries additionally prejudiced the administration ofjustice in the 
following ways: 

e Respondent evidenced a significant disregard for the requirement 
of conflict-free representation of at least two clients, thus 
jeopardizing their constitutional 6th Amendment rights; 

o In so doing, Respondent also jeopardized their recovery of 
damages for th~ir injuries; 

• Respondent caused additional work by and placed additional 
burdens upon legal counsel in at least two fums who were 
required to attempt to prevent the violation of the Rules by 
Respondent; 

o Respondent further increased unnecessarily the workload of both 
the U.S District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana and the 
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U.S. Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals; 

" Respondent contributed to the erosion of trust in the integrity of 
the bar and the judicial system; 

o Respondent significantly delayed the payment of damages in the 
fonn of settlement funds to three plaintiffs and their families for 
approximately eight or nine months due to Respondent1s 
persistent litigation; 

o Respondent caused added expenses ~- including costs and 
attorney's fees -- on behalf of all parties, especially due to 
Respondent's motion to intervene in the federal court settlement 
and his subsequent frivolous appeal to the U.S.Fi.fth Circuit; and 

Q Increased the attorney's fees and thereby reduced the recovery by 
the parties at issue. 

Id. at pp. 10-11. 

As to the sanction, the Committee analyzed the Rule XIX, Section 1 O(C) factors 

and found that Respondent had violated duties owed to his client(s); the legal system, 

(including the federal and Louisiana state courts); other counsel involved in the litigation; 

and the legal profession. The Committee also determined that Respondent acted with 

tmow]edge and intent in that he had been expressly advised and inade aware of the conflict. 

The Committee found that Respondent1s misconduct caused actual, tangible harm, 

including: 

Delayed payment to the family of approxi~nately six to eight months due to his 
persistent litigation; 

Additional expenses on behalf of all parties, especially due to Respondent's 
motion to intervene in the federal court settlement and his subsequent 
appeal to the U.S. Fifth Circuit; and 

Additional attorney's fees by requiring other legal counsel to do an extensive 
amount of otherwise unnecessary work~~ therefore reducing recovery by 
the .injured parties as the direct result of the protracted delay of resolution 
and litigation Respondent caused. 
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Id. at p, 12. 

Aggravating factors found by the Committee included Respondent's negligent or 

deliberate failure to engage at all in the disciplinary process; pattern of misconduct evidenced 

by Respondent's continued insistence on conflicted representation of the two parties to the 

lawsuit; refusal ofRespondentto acknowledge the wrongful nature of the conflict -- and refusal 

to heed multiple admonitions, warnings and rulings; and a selfish, clearly financially driven 

motive for Respondent's pattern of maintaining the conflicted representations in question. 

Mitigating factors found by the Committee included absence of a prior disciplinary record and 

the fact that the harm caused, while real, is moderate. 

In determining the appropriate sanction, the Committee noted that H[i]n light of 

Respondent's failure to engage with LADB and the persistent unanswered factual questions 

surrounding the filings in this case, the Committee believes that requiring the respondent 

Plaisance to engage with [the] process is a necessary component of any appropriate sanction 

in this matter. , , ," Hrg. Comm. Rpt., p. 19. The Committee explained that the Board and 

Cowt have imposed sanctions ranging from public reprimand to suspensions based upon 

concunent conflicts of interest similar to the facts presented in this matter. After discussing 

tho similar matters of In re Vldrine, 2011-1209 (La. 10/7/11); 72 So.2d 345, In re Beevers, 

16-DB-014, Ruling of the Louisiana Attorney Disciplinary Board (1/22/18): In re Cook, 

2018-1076 (12/5/2018), 319 So,3d 272; and In re August, 2010-1546 (10/15/10), 45 So.3d 

1019, the Committee determined that a two-year and one.-day suspension, with one year 

deferred, is the appropriate sanction in this matter and recommended same. The Committee 

also recommended that Respondent be assessed with all costs and expenses of these 
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proceedings in accordance with Rule XIX, Section 10.1. 

ANALYSIS OF TEE RECORD BEFORE THE BOARD 

I. Standard of Review 

The powers and duties of the Disciplinary Board are defined in Section 2 of Louisiana 

Supreme Court Rule XIX, Rule XIX, Section 2(G)(2)(a) states that the Board is "to perform 

appe11ate review functions, consisting of review of the findings of fact, conclusions of law, and 

recommendations of h_earing committees with respect to fonnal charges , .. and prepare and 

forward to the comt its own findings, if any, and recommendations/' Inasmuch as the Board is 

serving in an appellate. capacity, the standard of review applied to findings of fact is that of 

11manifest error." Arceneaux v. Domingue, 365 So. 2d 1330 (La. 1978); Rosell v. ESCO, 549 So. 

2d 840 (La, 1989). The Board conducts a de novo review of the hearing committee's application 

of the Rules of Professional Conduct. In re Hill, 90-DB-004, Recommendation of the Louisiana 

Attorney Disciplinary Board (1/22/92). 

A. Tile Manifest Error Inquiry 

The Committee's findings of fact are not manifestly erroneous and are adopted by the 

Board. For further clarity, however, the Board also adopts the majority of the findings of fact 

proposed by ODC in its pre-argument brief.6 These factual fmdings are listed below (citations 

largely omitted). 

Respondent's Frustration of the Disciplinary Process 

1. On September 10, 2020, during the ODC's investigation, Respondent1s sworn statement 

was scheduled. Just prior to the start of that sworn statement, Respondent attempted to 

postpone it in order "[t]o obtain the services of an attorney." Despite receipt of the 

4 See pp. 2- IO of ODC's pre-argument b1fof. 
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complaint nearly one year earlier, Respondent admitted during this October 5, 2020 sworn 

statement that he had made no effort to retain an attorney to represent him. 

2. The fonnal charges were filed in this matter on December 13, 2021. On January 4, 2022, 

Respondent filed his answer to the formal charges. Respondent thereafter failed to submit 

his identification of persons having knowledge of relevant facts, as required by Louisiana 

Supreme Court Rule XIX, Section 15A. On February 2, 2022, a scheduling conference 

was held. Therein, the parties selected May 11-12, 2022 as the hearing dates. On April 

l l, 2022, Respondent filed a motion to continue the hearing, claiming that he needed more 

time to retain counsel and that discovery was "incomplete.>' ODC opposed that motion for 

two primary reasons. First, Respondent had made no serious effort to retain counsel in the 

two~and-a-halfyears since he was served with the complaint or in the four months sfoce he 

was served with the formal charges. Second1 Respondent already had ample time to take 

any legitimate depositions. By ordq dated April 18, 2022, Respondent's motion to 

continue was denied. 

3. Respondent did not file a prewhearing memorandum. On April 25, 2022, Respondent filed 

a motion for summary judgment. By order dated April 27, 2022, Respondent's motion for 

summary judgment was denied, See Rule XJX, Section 18(B). 

4. On May 9, 2022, a second motion for continuance was filed on Respondent's behalf. That 

motion represented that Respondent had retained attorney Luke Fontana C'Mr. Fontana") 

and that a continuance was needed to "review discovery1 take depositions, and determine 

if discovery is complete." By order dated May 9 2022, the second motion for continuance 

was denied. Contrruy to the representations in that motion, Respondent had not retained 

Mr. Fontana, and Mr. Fontana did not file that motion. At the hearing in this matter, Mr. 
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- -
Fontana testified that in his fifty-seven years of practice, he had never represented an 

attorney in a disciplinary proceeding. 

5, On May 10i 2022, the Board contacted Respondent in advance of the hearing, Claiming 

"advice of counsel," Respondent refused to speak with the Board, Respondent had not 

spoken to purpo1ted counsel (Mr. Fontana) at the time he made1 or even after, that false 

representation. 

6. On May 11, 2022, just prior to the start of the hearing, a third motion for continuance was 

filed on Respondent's behalf. That motion again represented that it had been filed by Mr. 

Fontana, and that Respondent "was under the care of a medical doctor for health reasons" 

and had 11 been restricted for any work-related activities." Mr. Fontana did not file this 

motion. The alleged medical fol'm attached to the· motion was presented by fraudulent 

means, either by Respondent or Mr. Fontana1s fonner paralegal> Chase Campbell. The 

third motion for continuance was denied. 

7. Respondent failed to attend the hearing on May 11, 2022. During the hearing, ODC 

reqt1ested that the record be temporarily left open to allow Respondent to umake any 

evidentiary presentation he wished to make to supplement this record." By May 11, 2022 

Minute Entry and Order, the Committee Chair granted ODC's request and ordered that "the 

record of this matter be held open for fifteen days, until May 26, 2022, to allow Respondent 

to make any appropriate filing or submission." The Board served that order on Respondent 

the same day. Respondent did not file or submit anything by that deadline. 

8. In light of concerns regarding whether Mr. Fontana actually was retained to represent 

Respondent, by order dated August 10, 2022, the Committee Chair re-opened the hearing 

for the limited purpose of determining whether Mr. Fontana represented Respondent. On 
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August 26, 2022, ODC served a subpoena duces tecum on Respondent for the production 

of records regarding Mr, Fontana's alleged representation ofRespondent. That production 

was due on September 15, 2022. Respondent did not produce any records to ODC by or 

after that deadline. Respondent also did not attend the re-opened hearing on September 

23, 2022, Respondent did not provide any explanation for his failure to comply with 

ODC's subpoena or his absence from the re-opened hearing. 

Tlte Underlying Misconduct 

9. On June 14, 20171 Larry Taylor, Jr, (l'Mr. Taylor") and Lawan, the minor child of Mr, 

Taylor and Melvia Hodges ("Ms. Hodges11), suffered injuries as a result of an automobile 

accident with an eighteen-wheeler truck. Ml'. Taylor was the driver, and Lawan was a 

passenger in the front seat of Mr. Taylor's vehicle. On June 15, 2017, Ms, Hodges signed 

a retainer agreement for Respondent to represent Ms. Hodges, individually and on behalf 

ofLawan. Mr. Taylor also retained Respondent to represent Mr. Taylor1s interests related 

to the accident. 

10. From the date of the accident, it was clear that there was an un-waivable conflict ofinterest 

in representing both Mr. Taylor and Lawan. Mr, Taylor had rear-ended the truck, and 

therefore, had some comparative fault and liability in the matter, The police report 

documenting the accident specifically placed fault on Mr, Taylor and noted that he had 

been issued a ticket for following too closely to the truck. Mr. Taylor's drug screen also 

tested positive for THC, indicating that marijuana was present in his system at the time of 

the accident. Respondent admitted during his sworn statement that he knew Mr. Taylor 

umay have some fault" in the accident. At no time did Respondent disclose to his clients 

that an un-waivable conflict of interest would exist in representing both Mr. Taylor and 
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Lawan, 

I I. On July 27, 2017, Respondent (on behalf of Lawan) granted a full release of all claims 

against Mr. Taylor to Progressive Insurance Company ("Progressive"), Mr. Taylor's auto 

liability insurer, in exchange for payment of the $15,000 limit under rv:lr, Taylor's policy, 

Respondent thereafter disbursed those settlement funds as follows: $5,000 to Ms. Hodges 

(on behalfofLawan), $5,000 to Mr, Taylor and $5,000to Respondent as his attorney's fee. 

12. On October 18, 2017, Respondent filed a civil suit in state court (Civil District Court, 

Parish of Orleans) on behalf of Mr, Taylor and Ms. Hodges, individually and on behalf of 

Lawan, against the truck driver and the truck driver's insurer. The lawsuit did not assert 

any claims by Lawa.u alleging the comparative negligence of Mr. Taylor. On December l, 

2017, the defendants removed the lawsuit to federal court. Respondent thereafter 

dismissed the lawsuit without prejudice. When asked why he dismissed the lawsuit) 

Respondent testified during his sworn statement, "I think because of the fact that there may 

have been conflicts of interest. n 

13. Shortly after the lawsuit had been removed to federal court, Respondent approached the 

Covington law firm of Leger & Shaw ("L&S firm") about assisting him in pursuit of that 

litigation. On December 26, 2017, the L&S firm advised Respondent that it would not do 

so and that Respondent ushould consult with ethics counsel as soon as possible as to how 

(he) should prnceed[.]" 

14. In early 2018, Respondent next approached the Texas law firm ofDerryben-y Zips Wade, 

PLLC ("DZW firm") to gauge its interest In assisting in the litigation, On Mal'ch 9, 2018, 

Respondent and Mr. Taylor executed a Consent to Associate Counsel permitting 
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Respondent to associate the DZW firm on Mr. Taylor's behalf.7 On March 28, 2018, 

Respondent met with the DZW firm at its Texas office to further discuss the matter, During 

that and subsequent meetings, the DZW firm discussed with Respondent his un-waivable 

conflict of interest and the need to have separate counsel represent Mr. Taylor and Ms. 

Hodges (individually and on behalfofLawan). 

15. In May of 2018, the DZW firm associated the New Orleans law firm of Gainsburgh, 

Benjamin, David, Meunier & Washauer (uGB firm") to serve as local counsel in connection 

with the claims of Ms. Hodges and Lawan only. On June 12, 2018, Ms. Hodges, Lawan, 

and Respondent met with the GB and DZW firms. During that meeting, Respondent's un­

waivable conflict of interest was again discussed. As Mr. Ecuyer (the complainant and one 

of the GB film attorneys) explained during the hearing: 

[The GB firm) tried repeatedly and had discussions early on and throughout 
about the conflict of interest, that [Respondent] couldn't represent both 
parties ... [T]here was a conflict and [it was] un-waivable, 

**' 

[Ms. Hodges) and [Lawan) came to my office. (Respondent] came to the 
office . , .. But I explained to [Lawan] and his mother about the conflict, 
and . , . Respondent, when he was there, that there was a conflict of interest 
because dad could have some fault in this case and because oftbat fault, it 
was an un-waivable conflict and that there would need to be separate 
counsel for dad and for [Law an] and mom, and that we were prepared to 
represent mom and [Lawan] in this claim. They consented. They signed a 
retainer , .. , With - and [Respondent] expressed an understanding that he 
could not represent both sides, . , . we spent a lot of time talking about that 
conflict. 

May II, 2022 Tr., pp. 47, 51-52. 

7 However, the consent document contained in the record (ODC Exhibit l, BN 34) does not show that the DZW firm 
signed the documenL 
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At this meeting, Ms. Hodges was presented with a retainer agreement that reflected that 

DZW, GB and Plaisance would all represent Ms. Hodges and Lawan. The retainer was 

signed by Ms. Hodges, individually and on behalf ofLawan, Plaisance, and GB attorney, 

Michael Ecuyer. 

16. On June 14, 2018, the GB firm filed a new lawsuit on beha!fnfMs. Hodges and Lawan 

in the Eastern District of Louisiana, entitled Hodges v. James, Case No. 2: 18~cv-5889 (E.D. 

La.). Respondent was not listed as counsel on that complaint due to uncertainty as to 

whether he was admitted to practice befor'e the Eastern District, and moreover, 

whether he was eligible to practice law, On that same date, Mr. Taylor ~w assisted by 

Respondent ~- also filed a new lawsuit in the Eastern District of Louisiana, titled Taylor 

v. CDMI' Trucking, Case No. 2:l 8-cv-5903 (E.D. La.). Mr. Taylor's filing was submitted 

as a prose filing. On June 22, 2018, Respondent filed an ex parte motion to enroll as 

counsel for Mr. Taylor in his case, which was granted by the federal court on June 26, 

2018. 

17. On July 16, 2018, the feder~l court issued an order consolidating both matters. At no time 

prior to the consolidation did Respondent terminate his representation of Ms. Hodges and 

La wan. On August 29 ~ 2018, attorney Chris R~binson filed an ex parte motion to substitute 

himself iti place of Respondent as Mr. Taylor's attorney in the federal suit. This filing was 

the first notice received by the GB firm that Respondent had earlier enrolled as counsel for 

Mr. Taylor. This motion to substitute was granted on September 12, 2019. Mr. Ecuyer 

testified about his surprise in learning that Respondent had enrolJed as Mr. Taylor's counsel 

in the consolidated litigation: 

This was after we had the discussion in our of-flee explaining the conflict 
and that he could not represent both sides of the litigation. When we got a 
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j(j -
copy of this [motion to enroll], we went back to Ms. Hodges and [Lawan] 
and Texas Counsel and said, 'Don't Imow, - 'He didn't call us. 
[Respondent] didn't call us. Didn't advise auytlling, 1 So we had [Ms. 
Hodges and Lawan] redo another contract, hiring just Texas counsel and us 
and took [Respondent] out of the representation in that retainer. 

May 11, 2022 Tr,, pp. 54-55. 

18. On September 6, 2018 1 Ms. Hodges executed a new retainer agreement, individually and 

on behalf of La-wan, with only the DZW and GB firms. 

19. On October 16, 2018, Respondent filed a "Motion/Petition to Intervene to Collect Attorneys 

Fee" in the consolidated action, claiming that he was entitled to collect an attorney's fee 

from any settlement of Ms. Hodges and Lawan's claims. The pleading was later stricken 

from the record as deficient by the clerk of court. 

20. On May 7, 2019, a mediation was held, and the consolidated action was settled. Respondent 

collected an attorney's fee out of the settlement of Mr. Taylor's claims. Respondent again 

asserted that he had a right to collect an attorney's fee from the settlement of Ms. Hodges' 

and Lawan's claims. On June 171 2019, the DZW firm sent Respondent a letter which 

stated, in pertinent part: "Importantly, we have previously discussed our concerns, on 

several occasions, of any potential fee sharing with you given what we believe are clear 

conflicts of interest that exist in connection with your claim to fees from the settlement of 

Plaintiffs'[.]1'8 On August 15, 2019, Respondent instructed the DZW firm not to disburse 

any of Ms. Hodges' and Lawan's settlement funds pending resolution of Respondent's fee 

claim. 

21. As a result of Respondent's actions, counsel for Ms. Hodges and Lawan sought 

8 In June of 2019, Respondent produced lo DZW two undated waivers of conflict of interest purportedly signed by 
Ms. Hodges and Mr, Taylor. As previously discussed, Respondent's conflict of interest could not be waived. Ful'thet·, 
without any meaningful discussion of the conflict issues, Mr, Taylor and Ms. Hodges (individually and on behalf of 
Lawan) could not have givell informed consent, even if Respondent's conflict had been watvable. 

l7 

Petitioner's Exhibits_Plaisance_000082



confirmation from the federal court that Respondent could not shat·e in attorney's fees 

derived from their settlement. On September 4, 2019, the DZW and GB firms filed a 

Motion to Determine ConflictMFree Status and Entitlement to Attorneys' Fees ("Conflict 

Motion") in the consolidated litigation. Respondent was served with a copy of, but did 

not file any opposition to, the Conflict Motion. 

22. On October 7, 2019, the court issued an order which confirmed Respondent's conflict of 

interest: 

The police report at the time of the accident placed fault for the accident on 
Taylor, and he tested positive for THC following the collision. 
Accordingly, it was clear from the outset that there was a possibility that 
Taylor was at least partially liable for the injuries sustained by [Lawan] in 
the accident. 

*'* 
Here, it is clear that Plaisance1s ability to secure damages for [Lawan] 
against those who caused his injuries was limited by his loyalty to Taylor, 
a possible cause of [Lawan's] injuries .... 

The order ultimately concluded: "Because Plaisance received a fee from the settlement of 

Taylor's claims, he is not entitled to share in the fees from the settlement of [Ms. Hodges' 

and Lawan's] claims." 

23. Despite his failure to oppose the Conflict Motion, Respondent appealed from the court's 

order to the United States Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals on December 18, 2019. On March 

19, 2020, the appeIIate court dismissed Respondent's appeal due to lack of jurisdiction, 

B. De Novo Review 

The Committee correctly found that Respondent violated Rules 1 .4, l.7(a), and 8.4(d). The 

Board adopts these findings and the Committee's reasoning therefor. The Committee erred in 

finding a violation of Rule 3,3;·as the citing of this alleged rule violation appears to be a 

typographical error in the formal charges, Instead, it appears that ODC intended to allege a 
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violation of Rule 3.1. Each alleged mle violation is discussed below: 

Rule 1.4: Rule 1.4(b) states that ''the lawyer shall give the client sufficient information to 

participate intelligently in decisions concerning the objectives of the representation and means by 

which they are to be pursued.11 By failing to adequately inform Ms. Hodges (individually and on 

behalf ofLawan) and Mr. Taylor of his un-waivable conflict of interest, Respondent failed to give 

tllem sufficient information to participate intelligently in decisions ?Oncerning their 

representation/choice of counsel in the state and federal court litigation. As Respondent testified 

in his sworn statement, he did not explain the issues associated with his conflict in any detail to 

his clients: 

I didn't get too much into it terms of cross examinations because Larry 1s a laborer. 
I mean, he doesn1t have a legal mind. , .. I didn't get into too much because both 
of them [Mr. Taylor and Ms. Hodges] are laborers or lay persons. I didn't get too 
much into the details of the cross examination and those things. I just said, "We 
might have a possible conflict of interest/' 

ODC Exhibit 3, BN 167-69. 

Respondenes failure to give Mr. Taylor and Ms. Hodges sufficient information concerning 

his conflict of interest violated this Rule. 

Rule 1.7(a): Rule 1.7(a) provides that a lawyer shall not represent a client if the 

representation involves a concurrent conflict ofinterest. A concurrent conflict of interest exists if: 

(1) the representation of one client will be directly adverse to anothet· client; or 

(2) there is a significant risk that the representation of one or more clients will be materially 
limited by the lawyee s responsibilities to another client, a former client, or a third 
person or by a personal interest of the lawyer, 

Here, Respondent's representation of Mr. Taylor was directly adverse to his representation 

of Lawan and Ms. Hodges (who filed suit individually and on behalf of Lawan) in violation of 

Rule l.7(a)(l). Mr. Taylor was driving the vehicle during the accident in which his son and front 
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seat passenger, Lawan, was injured. Mr. Taylor rear~ended a truck, and therefore, had some 

comparative fault and liability in the accident. The police report documenting the accident 

specifically placed fault on Mr. Taylor and noted that he had been ticketed for following too closely 

to the truck, Mr. Taylor's drug screen also tested positive for THC, indicating that marijuana was 

present in his system at the time of the accident. Mr. Taylor's fatilt was sure to become au issue 

in the consolidated federal court litigation; in fact, Progressive Northern Insurance Company lists 

in its answer in the Hodges suit as its Fifth Defense that the accident was caused by the negligence 

of "Larry Taylor, and/or other third parties over whom [Progressive] had no control.'' ODC 

Exhibit 19, BN 317. 

Further, there also existed a significant risk that the representation ofMr. Taylor would be 

limited by Respondent's responsibilities to Ms. Hodges and Lawan. Mol'eover, his representation 

of Ms. Hodges and Lawan would be limited by Respondent's representation of Mr. Taylor. This 

circumstance violates Rule l.7(a)(2). 

Rules 3.3 and 3.1: In Louisiana State Bar Ass'n v. Keys, 88-2441 (La, 9/7/90), 567 So.2d 588, 

591, citing In re Ruffalo, 390 U.S. 544, 88 S.Ct. 1222, 20 L.Ed. 2d 117 (1968), the Court held that 

due process requires that an attorney be given notice of the misconduct for which the disciplinary 

auth0rity seeks to sanction him. A Rule 3.3 violation is alleged in the formal charges. This rule 

addresses candor toward a tribunal, and provides, in pertinent part, that a lawyer shall not 

knowingly make a false statement of fact or law to a tribunal. However, the facts of the formal 

charges do not allege conduct involving a knowingly false statement made to a court, as is 

necessary for a Rule 3.3 violation. Accordingly, it appears that the allegation of the Rule 3.3 

violation was a typographical error, 

Instead, the facts allege that Respondent sought "to collect attorney's fees in pursuit of a 
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conflicted representation/' and describe how he filed impermissible (i.e., frivolous) pleadings to 

recover an attorney's fee despite the existence of an un~waivable conflict. More specifically) 

Respondent sought to intervene in the federal litigation and improperly receive attorney's fees for 

his representation regarding ''Lawan RouselPs case or claims.119 He also appealed to the Fifth 

Circuit Court of Appeals the district court's ruling which confirmed his conflict of interest and 

prevented him from receiving attorney's foes from Ms. Hodges or Lawan. 

The substance of the formal charges gave Respondent adequate notice of the asserted 

sanctionable misconduct, which constitutes a violation of Rule 3.1, not 3.3. Rule 3.1 states, in 

pertinent patt, that a lawyer shall not bring or defend a proceeding, or assert or controvert an issue 

therein, unless there is a basis in law and fact for doing so that is not frivolous, which includes a 

good faith argument for an extension, modification or reversal of existing law. 

By frivolously pursing attorney's fees in the court system, to which he clearly was not 

legally entitled, Respondent violated Rule 3.l. The Board finds a violation of this Rule, although 

not specifically charged. See In re Aucoin, 2021-0847 (La. 12/7121), 328 So.3d 409,415 n. 2 

(where the substance of the formal charges gave respondent adequate notice of the asserted 

sanctionable misconduct) the Board was correct in finding a violation of a rule not specially 

charged by the ODC). 

Rule 8.4(d): Rule 8.4(d) provides that it is professional misconduct for a lawyer to engage in 

conduct that is prejudicial to the administration of justice. As noted by the Committee, 

Respon<lent1s protracted insist~nce on representing the interests of both the father and the minor 

child following the auto accident prejudiced the administration of justice in that he disregarded the 

requirement of conflict-free representation of at least two clients and jeopardized their recovery of 

g AJ noted above, Respondent's motion/petition to lntervene was later stricken by c!erk of court due to its deficiencies. 
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• "· '.:,"',;/~• ... ,, 

damages for injuries; caused additional work for legal counsel and the federal courts because of 

the conflict issuej caused the delay in the payment of damages in the form of settlement funds to 

Lawan and Ms. Hodges for approximately seven months; and caused added expenses to the 

litigants, especially due to his motion to intervene in the federal court settlement and his subsequent 

frivolous appeal to the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals. Respondent has additionally violated this 

Rule. 

II. The Appropriate Sanction 

A. The Rule XIX, Section lO(C) Factors 

Louisiana Supreme Court Rule XIX, §lO(C), states that When imposing a sanction after a 

finding of lawyer misconduct, the Court or Board shall consider the following factors: 

(1) Whether the lawyer has violated a duty owed to a client, to the public, to the legal system, 
or to the profession; 

(2) Whether the lawyer acted intentionally, knowingly, or negligently; 

(3) The amount of the actual or potential injury caused by the lawyer's misconduct; and 

(4) The existence of any aggravating or mitigating factors. 

Here, Respondent has violated duties owed to his clients, the legal system, and the 

profession. His conduct was knowing and intentional. The Committee correctly found that 

Respondent's misconduct caused actual harm. Aggravating factors include p1ior 

disCLplinary offense (2002 diversion for negotiating a settlement without client consent); 

dishonest or selfish moti-'(~; pattern of misconduct; multiple offenses; bad faith obstruction 

of the disciplinary proceeding by intentionally failing to comply with rules or orders of the 

disciplinary agency; refiJsal to acknowledge wrongfol nature of conduct~ and substantial 

experience In the practice of law (admitted in 1989), No mitigating factors are present. 
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B. ABA Standards and Case Law 

Under the ABA' s Standards for Imposing Law Sanctions, suspension is the baseline 

sanction in this matter, Standard 4.32 provides that suspension is generally appropriate 

when a lawyer knows of a conflict of interest and does not fully disclose to a client the 

possible effect of that conflict, and causes injury or potential injury to a client. In the instant 

matter, Respondent failed to fully disclose or acknowledge to his clients the possible effect 

his conflict of interest could have had on them. Actual harm occurred in that his failure to 

acknowledge the conflict led to further litigation find costs for his clients and to a substantial 

delay in Ms. Hodges and her son receiving their settlement funds. 

Sanctions ranging from a public reprimand to a significant suspension have been 

imposed f9r similar misconduct. For example, in In re Vidrine, the Court upheld the Board's 

imposition of a public reprimand upon Mr. Vidrine for engaging in a concurrent conflict of 

interest and for making false representations to a tribunal. 2011-1209 (La. l 0/7/11 ), 72 So.3d 

345, See also In re Vidrine, 10-DB-015, Rulihg of the Louisiana Attorney Disciplinary 

Board (6/3/11), Mr. Vidrine was initially retained by two siblings seeking to probate the wills 

of their deceased parents. The siblings were named co-executors in the wills. The wills 

disinherited three other siblings. However, the two siblings decided not to proceed with the 

probate. Rather, Mr. Vid1;11e prepared and filed a petition on behalf of all five siblings 

seeking to proceed with the matter as an intestate succession. The petition falsely stated that 

there was no will. Subsequently, the two siblings favored by the ~ills had a change of heait 

and Mr. Vidrine filed the wil1s for probate on theil' behalf, which was detrimental to the three 

other siblings. The Board found that Mr, Vidrine negligently engaged in a conflict of interest 
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and knowingly filed pleadings containing misrepresentations. The Board determlned that 

Mr, Vidrine1s misconduct caused actual harm in the form of frustration and delay, but it did 

not cause actual financial harm. The only aggravating factor was Respondent's substantial 

experience in the practice of law. There were several mitigating factors: absence of a prior 

disciplinary record, absence of a dishonest or selfish motive, timely effort to rectify the 

consequences of the misconduct, full and free disclosure to the disciplinary board and a 

cooperative attitude toward the proceeding, character and reputation, and remorse. 

In Jnre Beevers, the Board publicly reprimanded Mr. Beevers based upon a conflict 

of interest he had with the executor of a succession who was dete1mined to be Mr. Beevers' 

client. 16-DB-014, Ruling of the Louisiana Attomoy Disciplinary Board (1/22/18), Mr. 

Beevers represented the executor's father in a contested succession. Mr. Beevers took certain 

actions agalnst the executor in the succession matter, including filing a motion to have him 

removed a~ executol'. It was determined that the executor was, in fact. represented by Mr. 

Beevers and his law firm, The Board upheld the Committee's findings that Mr. Beevers acted 

negligently and did not cause any actual injury. Aggravating factors included two prior 

disciplinary offenses and substantial experience in the practice of law, Mitigating factors 

included full and free disclosure to ODC and cooperative attitude toward the proceedings, 

absence of dishonest or selfish motive, character or reputation, remorse, and remoteness of the 

p1ior offenses. 

Jn In re Cook, the Court suspended Mr. Cook for six months, with all but thirty days 

deferred, for engaging in a conflict ofinterest in a succession matter. 2018-1076 (12/5/2018), 

319 So.Jd 272. TI1ree siblings hired Mr. Cook to complete the succession of their deceased 
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mother, At the direction of two of the siblings, Mr. Cook prepared a petition and.judgment of 

possession. contrary to the interest of the third sibling. Upon realizing this, the third sibling 

hired another attorney to protect and pursue his interests, Despite this conflict, Mr, Cook 

continued to represent the other two siblings, The Court found that Mr. Cook acted 

negligently. The following mitigating factors were present: the absence of a prior disciplinary 

record, the absence of a dishonest or selfish motive, full and free disclosure to the disciplinary 

board and a cooperative attitude toward the proceedings, inexperience in the practice of law 

(admitted 2012), and remorse. The only aggravating factor present was Mr. Cook1s 

indifference to maldng restitution, 

In In re Bellaire, the respondent engaged in a conflict of interest when he represented 

both a buyer and seller in a real estate transaction without obtaining a conflict waiver. He 

also failed to cooperate with ODC's investigation. He was found to have violated Rules 

1.7(a), l.9(a), 8.J(b), and 8.l(c). 2022-1084 (La. 9/27/22), 347 So.3d 14. He acted 

negligently in engaging in the conflict of h1terest and knowingly in failing to cooperate with 

ODC. He also caused actual harm to his client and the disciplinary system. Three aggravating 

factors were present: pattern of misoonduc½ refusal to acknowledge the wrongful natme of 

the conduct~ and substantial experience in the practice of law (admitted in 2002), Four 

mitigating factors were also present: absence of a prior disciplinary record, absence of 

dishonest or selfish motive, personal problems, and character or reputation. Given that some 

of Mr. Bellaire"s conduct was knowjng, combined v.rith the aggravating factors present, the 

Court determined that an actual period of suspension was warranted. Mr. Bellaire was 

suspended from the practice ofiaw for six months, with all but ninety days deferred. 

In In re Lapeyrouse
1 
the respondent engaged in a conflict of interest by provjding legal 
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advice to both his client and his client's estranged wife in connection with their divorce and 

by disclosing confidential info11uatio11 to his client's estranged wife. He later filed a 

defamation petition against his client and another witness based on the infmmation they 

provided to ODC regarding his conflict of interest, 2022-0571 (La. J 0/21/22), 352 So.3d 59, 

Mr. Lapeyrouse's misconduct violated Rules 1.6, l.7(a)(2), 3.1, 8.4(a), and 8.4(d), as well as 

Loujsiana Supreme Coutt Rule XIX, Sections 9(a) and 12A. He acted knowingly and caused 

actual and potential harm, There were four aggravating factors present: dishonest or selfish 

motive, multiple offenses, refusal to acknowledge the wro11.gful natul'e of the conduct, and 

substantial experience in the practice of law. One rnitigating factor was present: absence ofa 

prior disciplinary record. Mr. Lapeyrouse was suspended from the practice of law for a period 

of one year1 with six months deferred. 

In In re August, the Court suspended Ms. Augu.st for two years, with all but sixty days 

deferred, for allowing a wrongful death action to prescribe, .rnisfoading the client about the 

presctiption, and failing to withdraw from the matter after being sued for malpractice bytbe 

client (thereby creating a ccnflict). 2010-J 546 (J 0/15/10), 45 So.3d 1019. The Court found 

that Ms. August acted negligently in failing to timely file the wrongful death lawsuit; 

thereafter, she acted knowingly, if not intentionally. Her conduct caused actual and potential 

harm. The Court recognized the following aggravating factors: prior disciplinary offenses, a 

dishonest or selfish motive, aud substantial experience in the practice of law. The mitigating 

factors of full and free disclosure to the disciplinary board and a cooperative attitllde toward 

the proceedings and remoteness of prior offenses were also present. 

In the matter at hand, Respondent's misconduct was knowing and intentional. In an 

effort to collect a fee, he repeatedly ignored the advice of the othe1· counsel with whom he 
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consulted in the Hodges/Rousell/Taylor litigation conceming his un-waivable conflict of 

interest. He also filed a frivolous appeal in the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals following the 

district court's confirmation that he had a conflict of interest. His mental intent is similar to 

that seen in Lapeyrouse (knowing) and August (knowing, if not intentional), and as seen in 

those matters, his misconduct also caused actual harm. Seven aggravating factors and no 

mitigating factors are present in the instant matter, The sanction relating to his misconduct 

invo1vi.ng his conflict of interest falls in between Lapeyrouse and August. Moreover, the 

Committee was rightful1y disturbed by Respondent's "persistent non-participation in this 

process." I-frg, Comm. Rpt., pp. 18~19. Such egregious conduct is addressed by the 

aggravating factor of bad faith obstruction of the disciplinary proceeding by intentionally 

failing to comply with rules or orders of the discipiinruy agency. Clearly, ODC and the 

Committee went to great lengths to ensure that Respondent had the formal opportunity to 

address the u11usual filings in this matte!', submit any evidence he wanted considered, and 

participate in the hearings) but he failed to do so. 

Given the totality of the misconduct, the significant aggravating factors, ABA Standard 

4.32, and the case law cited above, the Committee}s recommended sanction ofa two-year and 

one-day suspension, with one year deferred, appears to be reasonable and is adopted by the 

Board. Such a suspension will require Respondent to petition for reinstatement under Rule 

XIX, Section 24~ should be wish to re-enter the practice of law, 1-Ie will only be reinstated 

upon order of the Court, after meeting the requirements of Section 24(E) ( or showing good or 

sufficient reason why he should nevertheless be reinstated) and demonstrating his fitness to 

practice law. The Board also adopts the Committee's recommendation that Respondent be 

assessed with all costs and expenses of these proceedings in accordance with Rule XIX, 
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Section 10.1. 

CONCLUSION 

The Board adopts the Committee's :findings of fact, with the clarifications noted 

above, and its findings that Respondent violated Rules l.4, l.7(a), and 8.4(d), The Board also 

finds that Respondent violated Rule 3.1. The Board further adopts the Committee's 

recommended sanction of a two-year and one-day suspension, with one year deferred, 

Finally, the Board adopts the Committee's recommendation that Respondent be assessed 

with all costs and expenses of these proceedings in accordance with Rule XIX, Section 10.1. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Given the above, the Board recommends that Respondent be suspended from the 

practice of law for two years and one day, with one year of the suspension defe17ed. The 

Board also recommends that Respondent be assessed with all costs and expenses and these 

proceedings in accordance with Rule XIX, Section t 0.1. 

Jantes B. Letten - Recused. 

LOIDSIANA ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY BOARD 

R, Alan Breithaupt 
Todd S, Clemons 
Albert R. Dennis ID 
Susan P. DesOrmeaux 
Aldric C. Poirier, Jr. 
M. Todd Richard 
Lori A. Waters 

~

DocuSlgned by; 

By: ,w,.,(~~\,\, 
11.m6Eca~ Iida H. Clayton 

FOR THE ADJUDICATIVE COMMITTEE 
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APPENDIX 

Ruic 1.4. Communication 

(a) A lawyer shall:(!) promptly info1m the client of any decision or circumstance with 
respect to which the client's informed consent, as defined in Rule l,O(e), is required by 
these Rulesi (2) reasonably consult with the client about the means by which the client's 
o~jectives are to be accomplished; (3) keep the client reasonably informed about the 
status of the matter; ( 4) promptly comply with reasonable requests for information; and 
(5) consult with the client about any relevant limitation on the lawyer1s conduct when the 
lawyer knows that the client expects assistance not permitted by the Rules of 
Professional Conduct or other law. 
(b) The lawyer shall give the client sufficient infonnation to participate intelligently in 
decisions concerning the objectives of the representation and the means by which they 
are to be pursued, 
(c) A lawyer who provides any form of financial assistance to a client during the course 
of a representation shall, prior to providing such financial assistance, inform the client in· 
writing of the terms and conditions under which such financial assistance is made, 
il1cluding but not limited to, repayment obligations, the imposition and rate of interest 
or other charges, and the scope and limitations imposed upon lawyers providing 
financial assistance as set forth in Rule l,8(e). 

Rule l.7. Conflict of Interest: Current Clients 

(a) Except as provided u, paragraph (b), a lawyer shall not represent a client if the 
representation involves a concurrent conflict of interest. A concmTent conflict of interest 
exists if: (l) the representation of one cUent will be directly adverse to anoth.et client; or 
(2) there is a significant risk that the representation of one or more clients wi11 be 
materially limited by the lawyer's responsibilities to another client, a former client or a 
third person or by a personal interest of the lawyer. 

Rule 3.1. Meritorious Claims and Contentions 

A lawyer shall not bring or defend a pl'oceeding, or assert or controvert an issue therein, unless 
there is a basis in law and fact for doing so that is not frivolous, which includes a good faith 
argument for an extension, modification or reversal of existing law. A lawyer for the 
defendant in a criminal proceeding, or the respondent in a proceeding that could result in 
incarceration, may nevertheless so defend the proceeding as to require that every element of 
the case be established. 

Rule 3.3. Candor Toward the Tribunal 

(a) A lawyer shall not !mowingly: (1) make a false statement of fact or law to a tribunal 
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or fail to correct a false statement of material fact or law previously made to the tribunal 
by the lawyer; (2) fail to disclose to the tribunal legai authority in the controlling 
jurisdiction known to the lawyer to be directly adverse to the position of the client and 
not disclosed by opposing cow1sel; or (3) offer evidence that the lawyer knows to be 
false. If a lawyer, the lmvyer1s client, or a witness called by the lawyer, has offered 
material evidence and the lawyer comes to know of its falsity, the lawyer shall take 
reasonable remedial measures including, if necessary, disclosure to the tribunal. A 
lawyer may refuse to offer evidence, other than the testimony of a defendant in a criminal 
matter, that the lawyer reasonably believes is false, 
(b) A lawyer who represents a client in an adjudicative proceeding and who lmows that 
a person intends to engage, is engaging or has engaged in criminal or fraudulent conduct 
related to the proceeding shall take reasonable remedial measures, including, if 
necessary, disclosure to tl1e tribunal . . 
(c) The duties stated in paragraphs (a)and (b) continue to the conclusion of the 
proceeding and apply even if compliance requires disclosure of information otherwise 
protected by Rule 1.6. 
(d) In an ex patte proceedingi a lawyer shall inform the tl'ibtmal of all material facts 
known to the lawyer that will enable the tribunal to make an informed decision, whether 
or not the facts are adverse. 

Rule 8,4. Misconduct 

It is professional misconduct for a lawyer to: 

(d) Engage in conduct that is prejudicial to the administration of justice. 
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

In re: Kenneth M. Plaisance 
Docket No(s). 21-DB-066 

I hereby certify that a copy of the Recommendation of the Louisiana Attorney 

Disciplinary Board has this day been mailed and emailed to the Respondent(s) and/or 

the Counsel for the Respondent(s) by United States Mall and E-Flled to the Office of 

Disciplinary Counsel this 3,d day of November, 2023 at the following address: 

Mr. Kenneth M. Plaisance 
Attorney at Law 

2202 Touro Street 
New Orleans, LA 70119 

Mr. Christopher D. Kiesel 
Deputy Disciplinary Counsel 

4000 South Sherwood Forest Blvd. 
Suite 607 

Baton Rouge, LA 70816 

DONNA L. ROBERTS 
BOARD ADMINISTRATOR 
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Ms. Veronica 0. Koclanes 
Clerk of Court 
Louisiana Supreme Court 
400 Royal Street 
Suite 4200 

November 3, 2023 

23 , B ., 1460 
New Orleans, LA 70130 .. 8102 

Dear Ms. l<oclanes: 

In Re: KENNETH M. PLAISANCE 
DOCKET NO(S).: 21-DB-066 
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We are transmitting herewith the records in the above referenced case pursuant 
to Supreme Court Rule XIX. Enclosed please find the following: 
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Copies of Formal Charges, Answer, Hearing Committee 
Report & Recommendation to the Supreme Court 
Original Exhibit - ODC 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA 

MELVIA HODGES, INDIVIDUALLY 

AND AS THE MOTHER AND 

ADMINISTRATOR OF THE ESTATE 

OF HER MINOR SON, LAWAN 

ROUSELL 

VERSUS 

TRAVIS JAMES d/b/a CDMT 

TRUCKING and PROGRESSIVE 

NORTHERN INSURANCE COMPANY 

CIVIL ACTION 

NUMBER:  2:18-cv-05889 

SECTION:  H 

MAGISTRATE: 1 

MOTION TO DETERMINE CONFLICT-FREE STATUS 

AND ENTITLEMENT TO ATTORNEY’S FEES 

NOW INTO COURT, comes Plaintiff, Melvia Hodges, Individually and as the Mother 

and Administrator of the Estate of her Minor Son, Lawan Rousell (“Plaintiff”) and her counsel, 

who respectfully request this Court determine whether her prior counsel had an unwaivable 

conflict of interest under Rule 1.7 of the Louisiana Rules of Professional Conduct by 

representing both Lawan Rousell and his father, Larry Taylor, in connection with injuries they 

sustained in a motor vehicle collision, that would render him ineligible to receive a share of the 

attorney’s fees derived from Plaintiff’s settlement in this matter. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff and her counsel respectfully request that this Court grant this 

Motion to Determine Conflict-Free Status and Entitlement to Attorney’s Fees.  
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      Respectfully Submitted, 

      GAINSBURGH, BENJAMIN, 

      DAVID, MEUNIER & WARSHAUER, LLC 

 

      /s/ Brittany R. Wolf   

      Brittany R. Wolf (La. Bar 36733) 

      Michael Ecuyer (La. Bar 23050) 

      2800 Energy Centre  

      1100 Poydras Street   

      New Orleans, Louisiana 70163   

      Phone: (504) 522-2304 

      Fax:   (504) 528-9973 

      Email: bwolf@gainsben.com 

      Email: mecuyer@gainsben.com  

 

       -and- 

 

      DERRYBERRY ZIPS WADE, PLLC  
DANIEL G. GIBBINS (pro hac vice) 

DARYL L. DERRYBERRY (pro hac vice) 

CRAIG D. ZIPS (pro hac vice) 

100 E. Ferguson St.  

Suite 1212  

Tyler, Texas 75702  

Telephone: (903) 526-2767  

Facsimile: (903) 526-2714  

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

 I hereby certify that on the 4th day of September, 2019, I electronically filed the 

foregoing with the Clerk of the Court using the CM/ECF system. 

       /s/ Brittany R. Wolf   

       Brittany R. Wolf  
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA 

MELVIA HODGES, INDIVIDUALLY 

AND AS THE MOTHER AND 

ADMINISTRATOR OF THE ESTATE 

OF HER MINOR SON, LAWAN 

ROUSELL 

VERSUS 

TRAVIS JAMES d/b/a CDMT 

TRUCKING and PROGRESSIVE 

NORTHERN INSURANCE COMPANY  

CIVIL ACTION 

 

NUMBER:  2:18-cv-05889 

 

SECTION:  H 

 

MAGISTRATE: 1 

 

 

 

 

  

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DETERMINE CONFLICT-FREE 

STATUS AND ENTITLEMENT TO ATTORNEY’S FEES 

 

NOW INTO COURT, comes Plaintiff, Melvia Hodges, Individually and as the Mother 

and Administrator of the Estate of her Minor Son, Lawan Rousell (“Plaintiff”) and her counsel, 

who respectfully request this Court determine whether her prior counsel had an unwaivable 

conflict of interest under Rule 1.7 of the Louisiana Rules of Professional Conduct by 

representing both Lawan Rousell and his father, Larry Taylor, in connection with injuries they 

sustained in a motor vehicle collision, that would render him ineligible to receive a share of the 

attorney’s fees derived from Plaintiff’s settlement in this matter. 

I. Background 

This case arises out of a motor vehicle collision on June 14, 2017 in which Plaintiff’s 

minor son, Lawan Rousell (“Lawan”), was a passenger in a vehicle driven by his father, Larry 

Taylor (“Taylor”), when Taylor’s vehicle was caused to collide with an eighteen-wheeler driven 

by Travis James d/b/a CMDT Trucking. Lawan and Taylor both suffered serious bodily injuries.1  

 
1 The liability portion of this matter settled following a successful mediation between the parties on May 7, 2019. 
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On June 15, 2017, Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of Lawan, signed a retainer 

agreement with attorney Kenneth Plaisance (“Plaisance”) through which Plaisance agreed to 

provide representation to Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of Lawan, and Taylor.2 (See 

Timeline chronicling Plaisance’s involvement in the litigation attached hereto as Exhibit “A” at 

p.1). Upon information and belief, Taylor also signed a retainer agreement with Plaisance on or 

around that date. Upon information and belief, a conflict waiver was not executed by either party 

at that time.3  

From the inception of this litigation, the potential for an unwaivable conflict existed with 

respect to the dual representation of Lawan and Taylor because Taylor rear-ended the eighteen-

wheeler after the truck effected an illegal U-turn and, therefore, Taylor likely had some liability 

in the matter. Furthermore, the police report documenting the collision placed fault on Taylor 

and that the driver of the truck, Mr. James, did not commit a traffic violation in connection with 

the collision. (See Incident Report, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” at Bates Labeled 000003.) 

This concern for a potentially unwaivable conflict should have become heightened when, 

following the collision, Taylor’s drug screen tested positive for THC, indicating that marijuana 

was present in his system.  

Plaisance filed suit on behalf of Plaintiff and Taylor, individually and on behalf of their 

minor child Lawan, on October 18, 2017 (Civil Action No. 2017-9634). Defendant removed the 

matter on December 1, 2017. (See R. Doc. 1 in Case No. 17-cv-14040.) On December 22, 2017, 

 
2 A timeline detailing Plaisance’s representation of Plaintiff, Lawan, and Taylor, and his subsequent withdrawal 

from Plaintiff’s and Lawan’s claims is contained in Exhibit A. Where available, counsel has provided 

documentation to substantiate each event outlined in the timeline. Plaintiff and her counsel refer the Court to Exhibit 

A for an account of the events which give rise to the instant motion.  

 
3 Following Plaisance’s assertion of claim for attorney’s fees, in June 2019 Plaisance produced to DZW two undated 

waivers of a conflict of interest signed by Plaintiff and Taylor. It is unclear when these waivers were executed, and it 

is likewise unclear whether Plaisance fully explained the potential conflict and whether Plaintiff and Taylor truly 

gave informed consent to the waiver.  
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Plaisance moved to dismiss the matter without prejudice. (See R. Doc. 8 in Case No. 17-cv-

14040.)  

Shortly after the matter was removed from CDC to this Court, Plaisance began looking to 

associate counsel to assist him in pursuing the litigation in federal court. Plaisance evidently 

approached the law firm of Leger & Shaw. On December 26, 2017, Franklin Shaw advised 

Plaisance by letter that his firm would not participate in the representation of Plaintiff, Lawan, or 

Taylor and “suggest[ed] that [Plaisance] consult with ethics counsel as soon as possible as to 

how [he] should proceed[.]” (Ex. A at Bates Labeled 000012) Whether Plaisance ever sought 

such counsel is unknown.  

In early 2018, Plaisance approached the Texas law firm, Derryberry Zips Wade, PLLC 

(“DZW”) to gauge its interest in the case. On March 9, 2018, Plaisance and Taylor executed a 

Consent to Associate Counsel permitting Plaisance to associate DZW on his case. (Ex. A at 

Bates Labeled 000013.) On March 28, 2018, Plaisance presented to the DZW offices in Tyler, 

Texas to discuss the case. (Ex. A at p. 1.) During this meeting, attorney Daryl Derryberry and 

Plaisance engaged in a lengthy discussion of the matter and of the conflict issue that existed by 

virtue of Taylor’s potential liability in the collision. (Ex. A at Bates Labeled 00001–2.) Upon 

information and belief, at that time, Plaisance determined that he would remain involved in the 

representation of Plaintiff and Lawan, and that he would find other counsel to represent Taylor. 

Shortly thereafter, in May 2018, DZW associated the law firm of Gainsburgh, Benjamin, David, 

Meunier & Warshauer (“GB”) to serve as local counsel in connection with the claims of Plaintiff 

and Lawan only for the suit to be later filed in this Court.  

On June 12, 2018, Plaintiff, Lawan, and Plaisance presented to GB’s office, where they 

met with undersigned counsel (attorneys for DZW participated in this conference via telephone). 
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At this meeting, the potential conflicts in the matter were discussed and the need for Lawan and 

Taylor to have separate counsel. Plaintiff was presented with a retainer agreement that reflected 

that DZW, GB, and Plaisance would all represent Plaintiff and Lawan. The retainer was signed 

by Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of Lawan, Plaisance, and GB attorney Michael Ecuyer. 

Also around this time, upon information and belief, Plaisance contacted attorney Craig Robinson 

(“Robinson”) to represent Taylor. 

On June 14, 2018, undersigned filed a complaint on behalf of Plaintiff and Lawan in 

Civil Action No. 18-5889.4 On that same date, Taylor filed a pro se complaint in Civil Action 

No. 18-5903. On June 22, 2018, Plaisance filed an ex parte motion to enroll as counsel for 

Taylor. (See 18-5903 R. Doc. 5.) Three days later, the Court issued an order consolidating 

Taylor’s case (No. 18-cv-5903, R. Doc. 6) with Plaintiff’s and Lawan’s (No. 18-cv-5889). On 

August 29, 2018, Robinson filed an ex parte motion to substitute him in place of Plaisance as 

Taylor’s attorney, which was granted on September 12, 2018. (R. Docs. 13, 14.) This filing was 

the first notice received by undersigned that Plaisance had enrolled as counsel for Taylor.  

Given Plaisance’s apparent change of heart with respect to his representation of Taylor, 

Plaintiff’s and Lawan’s counsel at DZW advised Plaisance that ethically he could no longer 

continue to represent Taylor and Plaintiff and Lawan. Plaisance told DZW that due to his 

relationship with Taylor, he determined it necessary to remain a part of Taylor’s case and 

understood that he could no longer continue to represent Plaintiff and Lawan. DZW advised 

Plaisance of the intention to have Plaintiff execute a new retainer agreement with only DZW and 

GB as counsel. This new retainer agreement was executed by Plaintiff, individually and on 

behalf of Lawan, on September 6, 2018.  

 
4 Plaisance’s name was not listed on this complaint due to the uncertainty surrounding whether he was admitted to 

this Court, and moreover, whether his license had been reinstated following a suspension.  
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On October 16, 2018, Plaisance filed a “Motion/Petition to Intervene to Collect Attorneys 

Fees”, asserting his right to collect attorney’s fees from any settlement of Plaintiff and Lawan’s 

claims. (R. Doc. 20.) The following day, the Clerk’s Office issued a notice of deficiency, 

ordering Plaisance to refile the document within seven calendar days (by October 24, 2018) or it 

would be stricken by the court without further notice. Plaisance failed to correct this deficiency.  

DZW and GB continued to represent Plaintiff and Lawan. A mediation was held in May 

2019. At the mediation, DZW appeared for Plaintiff and Lawan and Craig Robinson represented 

Taylor; Plaisance did not attend. At that mediation, Defendants settled all claims against them, 

both on behalf of Plaintiff and Lawan, and Taylor. Upon information and belief, Robinson and 

Plaisance have collected attorney’s fees in connection with Taylor’s settlement.  

Following settlement of Plaintiff and Lawan’s claims, Plaisance and DZW have 

exchanged several letters and emails in which Plaisance has asserted his right to collect a share 

of the attorney’s fees in connection with Plaintiff and Lawan’s settlement. DZW and GB believe 

there exists an unwaivable conflict of interest which precludes Plaisance from collecting a fee 

from Plaintiff and Lawan and have repeatedly advised Plaisance of their concern.  

On July 19, 2019, undersigned contacted the Louisiana Office of Disciplinary Counsel to 

request an ethics opinion in the matter to ensure that neither GB or DZW, nor Plaisance, would 

run afoul of the ethical rules by sharing a fee with Plaisance.5 Undersigned was referred to the 

Ethics Advisory Committee of the LSBA for an ethics opinion. Shortly thereafter, undersigned 

spoke with a representative of the Ethics Advisory Committee,6 who advised that because the 

issue involved a dispute over attorney’s fees, the Committee would not provide an ethics opinion 

 
5 Counsel did not mention Plaisance by name during this telephone call.  

 
6 Again, counsel did not mention Plaisance by name during this telephone call.  
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in this matter. Instead, it was suggested that the parties place the matter before the Court for 

resolution.  

To date, defense counsel has not provided counsel for Plaintiff and Lawan with payment 

for the settlement of the claims and is holding the settlement funds until further direction from 

Plaintiff’s counsel. Thus, Plaintiff and Lawan have not been able to collect their portion of the 

settlement. The reasons for this delay are not limited solely to the question of attorney’s fees 

involving Plaisance; counsel for Plaintiff and Lawan have been working to establish a Special 

Needs Trust for Lawan. Additionally, on August 15, 2019, undersigned appeared in CDC for a 

hearing on Plaintiff’s Petition for Authority to Approve the Minor’s Settlement. Following the 

hearing, Judge Nakisha Ervin-Knott approved the minor’s settlement.  

Plaintiff and Lawan and their counsel are moving this Court for a ruling on whether 

Plaisance is entitled to attorney’s fees, given the apparent conflict in the dual representation of 

Lawan and Taylor. Counsel is apprehensive that sharing fees without such a ruling by an 

independent arbiter could risk both Plaintiff’s counsel and Plaisance running afoul of the ethics 

rules and is seeking guidance from this Court.  

II. Law and Argument  

“The United States District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana as adopted the 

Rules of Professional Conduct adopted by the Supreme Court of the State of Louisiana.” 

Johnson v. Clark Gin Serv., Inc., 15-3290, 2016 WL 7017267 at *8 (E.D. La. Dec. 1, 2016) 

(Jolivette Brown, J.). “A district court is ‘obliged to take measures against unethical conduct 

occurring in connection with any proceeding before it.’” Id. (quoting Woods v. Covington Cty. 

Bank, 537 F.2d 804, 810 (5th Cir. 1976)).  
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Louisiana Rule of Professional Conduct 1.7, titled “Conflict of Interest: Current Clients,” 

provides: 

(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b), a lawyer shall not represent a 

client if the representation involved a concurrent conflict of interest. A concurrent 

conflict of interest exists if: 

(1) the representation of one client will be directly adverse to 

another client; or 

(2) there is a significant risk that the representation of one or more 

clients will be materially limited by the lawyer’s responsibility to another 

client, a former client, or a third person or by a personal interest of the 

lawyer. 

(b) Notwithstanding the existence of a concurrent conflict of interest under 

paragraph (a), a lawyer may represent a client if: 

(1) the lawyer reasonably believes that the lawyer will be able to 

provide competent and diligent representation to each affected client; 

(2) the representation is not prohibited by law; 

(3) the representation does not involve the assertion of a claim by 

one client against another client represented by the lawyer in the same 

litigation or other proceeding before a tribunal; and 

(4) each affected client gives informed consent, confirmed in 

writing. 

 

La. Rules of Prof’l Conduct R. 1.7 (eff. June 2, 2016). When the court is tasked with resolving 

whether there exists an unwaivable conflict under Rule 1.7,  

the Court first considers whether there is either direct adversity between two or 

more Plaintiffs or a significant risk of material limitation on counsel’s advocacy 

due to counsel’s relationship with multiple clients. Then, if there is a conflict, the 

Court must determine if the conflict could be consented to. Finally, if the conflict 

could be consented to, the Court must determine whether or not there was 

informed consent given by all affected Plaintiffs. 

 

Johnson, 2016 WL 7017267 at *8.  

On March 29, 2008, the LSBA Rules of Professional Conduct Committee (“RPCC”) 

issued a Public Opinion (No. 08-RPCC-106) titled, “Conflict of Interest: Simultaneous 

Representation of Driver and Guest-Passenger”. (See LSBA RPCC Public Opinion 08-RPCC-

016, attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.) The RPCC opined: 
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Lawyers often inquire whether the conflict rules permit them to represent both the 

driver and the guest-passenger in an automobile accident. In almost all such cases, 

there will be a prohibited conflict of interest between the driver and the guest-

passenger that will prevent such a joint/simultaneous representation. The most 

common conflict will arise when the driver is even slightly at fault in the accident, 

which is a fact that may not be known or realized until the case is factually 

developed. Thus, even when a conflict is not apparent at the outset of the 

representation, in most cases a conflict will arise when the defense begins to 

assert and develop facts that the driver was partially at fault. At that moment, even 

the lawyer who believed in good faith that the driver was not at fault will have a 

conflict that must be addressed, since the passenger client will now have an 

interest in pursuing a claim based on that driver-fault theory, if ultimately proven 

true. For all of these reasons, the only safe ethical course is to decline the 

proposed joint representation of the driver and guest-passenger from the outset. 

 

(Ex. B at p. 2.)  

 In Johnson v. Clark Gin Service, Inc., the defendant filed a “Motion to Determine 

Conflict-Free Representation”, alleging that plaintiff’s counsel had an unwaivable conflict of 

interest that would disqualify them from representation of the plaintiffs in the litigation. See 

Johnson, 2016 WL 7017267 at *1. In Johnson, the plaintiffs brought multiple actions, which 

were consolidated, arising out of injuries sustained during a collision between an Amtrak train 

and a tractor-trailer. Id. Eight of the nine plaintiffs represented by counsel were employees of 

Amtrak, serving the train in different capacities at the time of the collision including a 

locomotive engineer, a conductor, and service crew members. One plaintiff was a passenger 

aboard the train. See id. Each of the plaintiffs brought claims against, inter alia, Amtrak, alleging 

negligence through its agents, servants, or employees acting in the course and scope of their 

employment. Id. at *1–*2.  

 In its motion, the defendant contended that the plaintiff’s counsel could not ethically 

provide dual representation to all plaintiffs because plaintiffs suggested that the vicarious 

liability of Amtrak was due, in part, to the negligent actions of the other plaintiffs. See id. at *2–

*3. The defendant argued that the plaintiff’s counsel had an unwaivable conflict under Rule 1.7, 
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due to counsel’s representation of one plaintiff would be materially limited because decisions as 

to the locomotive engineer’s claims could impact and limit counsels’ responsibilities to the other 

employee plaintiffs and the passenger plaintiff. See id. at *3. In support, the defendant cited 

RPCC Opinion No. 08-RPCC-106, analogizing the representation of the locomotive engineer 

and the crew and passengers of the train to the impermissible representation of driver and guest 

passenger. Id. at *4.  

 The court first found that the plaintiff’s dual representation of all nine plaintiffs 

“involve[d] a material limitation conflict of interest under Rule 1.7(a)(2).” Id. at *9 (citing Model 

Rules of Prof’l Conduct R. 1.7(a)(2)). The court found two impermissible limitations: first, 

between representation the locomotive engineer, who may have had fault in causing the 

collision, and second, between the passenger plaintiff and the Amtrak employees. See id. at *9–

*10. With respect to the first conflict, the court said the locomotive engineer “has an interest in 

denying fault for not issuing a warning, because his potential damages award could be reduced 

for contributory negligence[,]” while on the other hand, the other plaintiffs had an interest in 

proving Amtrak was at fault and the locomotive engineer’s deposition testimony “suggests that 

his actions or inactions are relevant to proving Amtrak was at fault.” Id. at *10. With regard to 

the passenger/employee conflict, the court found that furthering the passenger’s claims against 

Amtrak would be contrary to the interests of the employee plaintiffs, because the passenger 

alleged his injuries were caused, in part, by the negligence of Amtrak’s employees. Based upon 

these conflicts, the court found that there was “a ‘significant risk’ that Plaintiffs’ counsel’s 

‘ability to consider, recommend or carry out an appropriate course of action’ for each of their 

clients will be materially limited by obligations to other clients in this action.” Id. (quoting 

Model Rules of Prof’l Conduct R. 1.7(a)(2)).  
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 After determining that an “actual conflict” existed in the dual representation of all the 

plaintiffs, the court next determined that the concurrent conflicts of interest were not consentable 

under Rule 1.7(b) due to “the serious and unavoidable conflicts of interest presented by the 

representation of Plaintiffs[.]” Id. at *11. Finally, the court found that even if the conflicts were 

consentable, plaintiffs’ counsel did not obtain the appropriate informed consent, which requires 

“each affected client ‘be aware of the relevant circumstances and of the material and reasonably 

foreseeable ways that the conflict could have adverse effects on the interests of that client.’” Id. 

at *12 (quoting Model Rules of Prof’l Conduct, R. 1., cmt. 18).  

 Although this case presents a far less complicated factual scenario, Plaintiff submits that 

Johnson provides the Court with guidance as to how to resolve the instant matter. The fact that 

Taylor rear-ended the vehicle driven by Mr. James and was attributed fault by the police report 

relating to the accident would have put a reasonable attorney on notice that there exists an ethical 

conflict in the dual representation of Taylor and Lawan. Even assuming the conflict was 

waivable, upon information and belief, Plaisance did not obtain informed consent from his 

clients at the inception of his representation of both clients. Given that Plaisance continued to 

represent Taylor, and received a fee from Taylor’s settlement, Plaintiff is uncertain whether he 

can ethically recover from her and Lawan. 

III. Conclusion 

For the reasons set forth above, Plaintiff and her counsel request the assistance of this 

Court in resolving the issue of whether Kenneth Plaisance is entitled to share in the attorney’s 

fees derived from the settlement of Plaintiff’s and Lawan’s claims or is he barred due to an 

unwaivable conflict of interest.   
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WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court grant this Motion to 

Determine Conflict-Free Status and Entitlement to Attorney’s Fees.  

 

      Respectfully Submitted, 

      GAINSBURGH, BENJAMIN, 

      DAVID, MEUNIER & WARSHAUER, LLC 

 

      /s/ Brittany R. Wolf-Freedman  

      Michael Ecuyer (La. Bar 23050) 

      Brittany R. Wolf-Freedman (La. Bar 36733) 

      2800 Energy Centre  

      1100 Poydras Street   

      New Orleans, Louisiana 70163   

      Phone: (504) 522-2304 

      Fax:   (504) 528-9973 

      Email: bwolf@gainsben.com 

      Email: mecuyer@gainsben.com  

 

       -and- 

 

      DERRYBERRY ZIPS WADE, PLLC  
DANIEL G. GIBBINS (pro hac vice) 

DARYL L. DERRYBERRY (pro hac vice) 

CRAIG D. ZIPS (pro hac vice) 

100 E. Ferguson St.  

Suite 1212  

Tyler, Texas 75702  

Telephone: (903) 526-2767  

Facsimile: (903) 526-2714  

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

 I hereby certify that on the 4th day of September, 2019, I electronically filed the 

foregoing with the Clerk of the Court using the CM/ECF system. 

       /s/ Brittany R. Wolf-Freedman  

       Brittany R. Wolf-Freedman  
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Louisiana State Bar Association 
Rules of Professional Conduct Committee 
 
PUBLIC Opinion 08-RPCC-0161      March 29, 2008 
  
 
Conflict of Interest: Simultaneous Representation of Driver and Guest-Passenger 
 

Conflicts are probably the most perplexing ethical issues that a lawyer will 
encounter.  In general, a lawyer will not be able to represent both a driver and a 
guest-passenger simultaneously in an automobile accident due to a prohibited 
conflict of interest that will usually arise as a matter of course.  This conflict derives 
from the fact, which is present in almost all such cases, that the passenger will have a 
claim against the driver and/or his insurer if the driver is even slightly at fault in the 
accident. However, in some rare instances, the dual representation may be 
permissible if the conflict is reasonably waivable and if the lawyer strictly follows the 
rules for informed consent with both clients.  Because these instances are so rare, and 
because the potential for failing to obtain truly informed consent from both clients is 
substantial, the safe and recommended ethical course of action is to avoid this type of 
dual representation entirely. 

 
 
Because they customarily share some familial or social relationship, it is not unusual for drivers 

and their guest-passengers to seek joint legal representation following an automobile accident.  

Such representations are fertile ground for conflicts of interest due to the potential for driver fault 

and adverse and/or competing claims by the passengers.  In these situations, the lawyer often 

                                                 

 1 The comments and opinions of the Committee—public or private—are not binding on any person or 

tribunal, including—but not limited to—the Office of Disciplinary Counsel and the Louisiana Attorney Disciplinary 

Board.  Public opinions are those which the Committee has published—specifically designated thereon as 

“PUBLIC”—and may be cited.  Private opinions are those that have not been published by the Committee—

specifically designated thereon as “NOT FOR PUBLICATION”—and are intended to be advice for the originally-

inquiring lawyer only and are not intended to be made available for public use or for citation.  Neither the LSBA, the 

members of the Committee or its Ethics Counsel assume any legal liability or responsibility for the advice and 

opinions expressed in this process. 
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cannot adequately represent the passenger without compromising the lawyer’s duty of loyalty to 

the driver, and vice versa. 

 

Lawyers often inquire whether the conflict rules permit them to represent both the driver and the 

guest-passenger in an automobile accident.  In almost all such cases, there will be a prohibited 

conflict of interest between the driver and the guest-passenger that will prevent such a 

joint/simultaneous representation.  The most common conflict will arise when the driver is even 

slightly at fault in the accident, which is a fact that may not be known or realized until the case is 

factually developed.  Thus, even when a conflict is not apparent at the outset of the 

representation, in most cases a conflict will arise when the defense begins to assert and develop 

facts that the driver was partially at fault.  At that moment, even the lawyer who believed in good 

faith that the driver was not at fault will have a conflict that must be addressed, since the 

passenger client will now have an interest in pursuing a claim based on that driver-fault theory, if 

ultimately proven to be true.  For all of these reasons, the only safe ethical course is to decline 

the proposed joint representation of the driver and guest-passenger from the outset. 

 

Rule 1.7 

The permissibility of a particular representation is fact-intensive and turns upon an application of 

the facts to Rule 1.7.2  Rule 1.7(a)3 provides that a “concurrent” conflict of interest exists when: 

(1) the representation of one client will be “directly adverse” to another of the lawyer’s clients; 

or (2) there is a “significant risk” that the lawyer’s representation of one client will be 

“materially limited” by the lawyer’s responsibilities to another client, a former client, a third 

person or by a personal interest of the lawyer.4   

                                                 
2 Rule 1.7 of the Louisiana Rules of Professional Conduct. 
3 Rule 1.7(a) of the Louisiana Rules of Professional Conduct. 
4 Indeed, a lawyer considering a proposed simultaneous representation of a driver and guest-passenger 

should reflect upon whether the lawyer’s own financial desires and/or pressures may be influencing the lawyer’s 
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When there is a concurrent conflict of interest, the second part of the Rule – Rule 1.7(b)5 – 

governs whether the representation can still proceed nonetheless.  There is essentially a three-

step process that must be considered: 

 

First, some conflicts are so pronounced that they are not susceptible to waiver6 by the clients and, 

accordingly, are fatal to the representation.  For example, a lawyer representing two clients in the 

same litigation may never assert a claim by one of the clients against the other client in that same 

litigation.7 

 

                                                                                                                                                             
professional judgment about the prudence of the proposed representation, given the respective individual interests of 

each proposed client. 
5  Rule 1.7(b) of the Louisiana Rules of Professional Conduct. 
6 It should be noted, for technical accuracy, that Rule 1.7(b) does not use the term “waiver”, instead 

referring to “informed consent, confirmed in writing.”   Rule 1.0 of the Louisiana Rules of Professional Conduct 

defines these terms.  Rule 1.0(e) states: “…(e) ‘Informed consent’ denotes the agreement by a person to a proposed 

course of conduct after the lawyer has communicated adequate information and explanation about the material risks 

of and reasonably available alternatives to the proposed course of conduct…”  Rule 1.0(b) states “…(b) ‘Confirmed 

in writing,’ when used in reference to the informed consent of a person, denotes informed consent that is given in 

writing by the person or a writing that a lawyer promptly transmits to the person confirming an oral informed 

consent.  See paragraph (e) for the definition of ‘informed consent.’  If it is not feasible to obtain or transmit the 

writing at the time the person gives informed consent, then the lawyer must obtain or transmit it within a reasonable 

time thereafter…” 
7 The district court in Verret v. State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company, 759 So. 2d 115 (La. 

App. 3rd Cir., 2000), vacated a default judgment on the grounds that the lawyer, on behalf of a guest-passenger, 

obtained it against his other client, the driver.  While the court of appeal decided the case on a procedural issue 

without reaching the conflict, Rule 1.7(b)(3), as amended in 2004, expressly forbids this conduct.  
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Second, the lawyer must reasonably believe that he can “provide competent and diligent 

representation to each affected client,” notwithstanding the conflict.8  Of course, if the lawyer 

does not believe that he can do so (or a disinterested lawyer would find the belief unreasonable), 

the lawyer must decline the representation.  In performing this analysis, the relationship and 

wishes of the clients should be taken into account.  Moreover, the lawyer’s duty of disclosure is 

ongoing.  Therefore, consent should be revisited if any new pertinent facts develop over the 

course of the litigation. 

 

Third, assuming that the first two conditions noted above are satisfied, the lawyer must obtain 

the informed consent of each of the affected clients, confirmed in writing.9  The lawyer should 

include a discussion of options and available alternatives for the affected clients—in this case, 

noting the option of each client to choose alternate, independent legal counsel rather than 

continue with the proposed representation.  If each client then still chooses to proceed with the 

proposed representation, acknowledging and waiving the option to choose alternate, independent 

legal counsel—and confirms that in writing—the lawyer has satisfied Rule 1.7(b) and may 

proceed with the proposed representation, despite the concurrent conflict. 

 

As such, the Committee acknowledges that in very rare factual cases, simultaneous 

representation of the driver and the guest-passenger may be possible, though it is still not 

advisable.  The Committee must stress that these cases in our view are very few, and still will 

usually present conflicts of interest that must be addressed.  First, an objectively reasonable 

lawyer must conclude that the conflict is one that can be waived, which often will not be the 

case, even if the lawyer involved feels differently.  Second, even if a reasonable lawyer would 

conclude that the conflict can be waived, the lawyer then must strictly comply with the rules of 

informed consent, as amplified above.  Again, however, the Committee must urge great caution.  

                                                 
8 Rule 1.7(b)(1) of the Louisiana Rules of Professional Conduct. 
9 Rule 1.7(b)(4) of the Louisiana Rules of Professional Conduct. 
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In cases such as these, the clients are often unsophisticated, thus elevating the risk that the lawyer 

may not be successful in obtaining truly informed consent even when he or she tries in good faith 

to do so. 

 

An Example: Simultaneous Representation of Spouses 

To understand the concept (which must be stated generally and contoured to the specific facts of 

each representation), it is helpful to consider a proposed dual/simultaneous representation of 

spouses.  Many ethics inquiries feature husbands and wives who are adamant that they are not 

willing to allege claims against each other under any circumstances.  Although it has been said 

that “love conquers all” and the lawyer may feel certain that the proposed representation poses 

no danger, prudence would still suggest that the lawyer recognize the concurrent conflict 

between a driver and guest-passenger and evaluate the facts under Rule 1.7.10 

 

In terms of immediate rights, the passenger-spouse may not realize or understand that there may 

be insurance coverage available for the driver’s fault, i.e., that while the driver may not 

personally have to come out-of-pocket to satisfy a monetary award, the driver may still need to 

be sued in order to obtain a recovery from the driver’s insurer.  By the same token, the 

passenger-spouse must also understand that the claims against the driver are subject to liberative 

prescription and may be lost forever if suit is not filed timely.11 

 

What is more, circumstances sometimes change.  Spouses cooperating happily in pursuit of a tort 

action today may be warring ruthlessly in a divorce action tomorrow.  Under those 

                                                 
10 Rule 1.7 of the Louisiana Rules of Professional Conduct. 
11 In cases such as this, it may even be advisable to invite independent counsel to advise the passenger, 

confirmed in writing, as to the conflict and the advisability of providing informed consent to the proposed 

simultaneous representation.  If the passenger still chooses to provide the informed consent, then the shared lawyer 

has a very solid record on which to proceed with the joint representation. 
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circumstances, a lawyer who neglected to explain at the outset of the dual/simultaneous 

representation that confidentiality is shared commonly/equally between the co-clients is 

particularly at risk of being disqualified from continuing to represent either client.12 

 

For reasons such as these, the Committee believes that facts will rarely be present to suggest that 

a simultaneous representation of driver and guest-passenger would be prudent, even if otherwise 

technically permitted by Rule 1.7. 

 

Conclusion 

Conflicts are probably the most perplexing ethical issues that a lawyer will encounter.  In 

general, a lawyer will not be able to represent both a driver and a guest-passenger simultaneously 

in an automobile accident due to a prohibited conflict of interest that will usually arise as a 

matter of course.  This conflict derives from the fact, which is present in almost all such cases, 

that the passenger will have a claim against the driver and/or his insurer if the driver is even 

slightly at fault in the accident.  However, in some rare instances, the dual representation may be 

permissible if the conflict is reasonably waivable and if the lawyer strictly follows the rules for 

informed consent with both clients.  Because these instances are so rare, and because the 

potential for failing to obtain truly informed consent from both clients is substantial, the safe and 

recommended ethical course of action is to avoid this type of dual representation entirely. 

                                                 
12 In joint representations, confidentiality, under Rule 1.6 of the Louisiana Rules of Professional Conduct, 

may be simply characterized as an “all-for-one and one-for-all” arrangement—i.e., any information relating to the 

representation provided to the lawyer by either client is “pooled” for the mutual benefit of the clients and the lawyer 

can have no secrets about the case to the exclusion of either client.  In the event the joint representation is cut short, 

Rule 1.9(c)—with its prohibition against using confidential information to the disadvantage of a former client—

becomes particularly pertinent. 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA 

MELVIA HODGES, INDIVIDUALLY 

AND AS THE MOTHER AND 

ADMINISTRATOR OF THE ESTATE 

OF HER MINOR SON, LAWAN 

ROUSELL 

VERSUS 

TRAVIS JAMES d/b/a CDMT 

TRUCKING and PROGRESSIVE 

NORTHERN INSURANCE COMPANY  

CIVIL ACTION 

 

NUMBER:  2:18-cv-05889 

 

SECTION:  H 

 

MAGISTRATE: 1 

 

 

 

 

  

NOTICE OF SUBMISSION 

 

TO: ALL COUNSEL OF RECORD 

 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Plaintiff, Melvia Hodges, Individually and as the Mother and 

Administrator of the Estate of her Minor Son, Lawan Rousell, and her counsel’s Motion to 

Determine Conflict-Free Status and Entitlement to Attorney’s Fees will come before the Court 

for submission on the 25th day of September 2019, at 10:00 a.m. 

 

      Respectfully Submitted, 

      GAINSBURGH, BENJAMIN, 

      DAVID, MEUNIER & WARSHAUER, LLC 

 

      /s/ Brittany R. Wolf   

      Brittany R. Wolf (La. Bar 36733) 

      Michael Ecuyer (La. Bar 23050) 

      2800 Energy Centre  

      1100 Poydras Street   

      New Orleans, Louisiana 70163   

      Phone: (504) 522-2304 

      Fax:   (504) 528-9973 

      Email: bwolf@gainsben.com 

      Email: mecuyer@gainsben.com  
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-and-

DERRYBERRY ZIPS WADE, PLLC  
DANIEL G. GIBBINS (pro hac vice) 

DARYL L. DERRYBERRY (pro hac vice) 

CRAIG D. ZIPS (pro hac vice) 

100 E. Ferguson St.  

Suite 1212  

Tyler, Texas 75702  

Telephone: (903) 526-2767  

Facsimile: (903) 526-2714  

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on the 4th day of September, 2019, I electronically filed the 

foregoing with the Clerk of the Court using the CM/ECF system. 

/s/ Brittany R. Wolf 

Brittany R. Wolf 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA 

 
 

MELVIA HODGES     CIVIL ACTION 
 
 
VERSUS NO: 18-5889 c/w 18-5903 
 
 
TRAVIS JAMES ET AL.    SECTION “H” 
 

 

ORDER  

 Before the Court is a Motion to Determine Conflict-Free Status and 

Entitlement to Attorney’s Fees filed by Plaintiff Melvia Hodges, Individually 

and as the Mother of her minor son, L.R. (Doc. 31). In her Motion, Plaintiff 

asks this Court to determine whether her former counsel, Kenneth Plaisance, 

was operating under a conflict of interest at the time of his representation and 

whether he should be entitled to a share of attorney’s fees resulting from the 

settlement of Plaintiff’s claims. Plaisance has not responded to this Motion. 

This case arises out of an automobile accident during which Larry Taylor 

was driving and L.R. was riding as a passenger. The police report at the time 

of the accident placed fault for the accident on Taylor, and he tested positive 

for THC following the collision. Accordingly, it was clear from the outset that 
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there was a possibility that Taylor was at least partially liable for the injuries 

sustained by L.R. in the accident.  

Despite this, Plaisance agreed to provide representation to Plaintiff, 

individually and on behalf of L.R., as well as Taylor. Louisiana Rule of 

Professional Conduct 1.7 provides that: 

[A] lawyer shall not represent a client if the representation 
involves a concurrent conflict of interest. A concurrent conflict of 
interest exists if . . . there is a significant risk that the 
representation of one or more clients will be materially limited by 
the lawyer’s responsibilities to another client, a former client or a 
third person or by a personal interest of the lawyer. 

Here, it is clear that Plaisance’s ability to secure damages for L.R. against 

those who caused his injuries was limited by his loyalty to Taylor, a possible 

cause of L.R.’s injuries. There is no evidence that this conflict was waived by 

the parties. Accordingly, Plaisance was operating under a conflict of interest 

during his representation of both Plaintiff and Taylor. Because Plaisance 

received a fee from the settlement of Taylor’s claims, he is not entitled to share 

in the fees from the settlement of Plaintiff’s claims. 

 Accordingly; 

 IT IS ORDERED that Plaintiff’s Motion is GRANTED. This Court has 

determined that Plaintiff’s prior counsel had a conflict of interest under Rule 

1.7 of the Louisiana Rules of Professional Conduct by representing both 

Plaintiff and Larry Taylor in connection with injuries they sustained in a motor 

vehicle collision and that he is ineligible to receive a share of the attorney’s fees 

derived from Plaintiff’s settlement in this matter. 
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  New Orleans, Louisiana this 7th day of October, 2019. 

 

____________________________________ 
     JANE TRICHE MILAZZO 
     UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE 
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